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PART |
ITEM1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

Owens Corning was founded in 1938. Since then thragainy has continued to grow as a market-leadingviator of glass fiber technology.
Owens Corning is a world leader in composite arittiimg materials systems, delivering a broad raoigeigh-quality products and services.
Our products range from glass fiber used to read@omposite materials for transportation, eleétsgmarine, infrastructure, wind-energy

and other high-performance markets to insulatichraofing for residential, commercial and indudtapplications.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, the tel@sens Corning,” “Company,” “we” and “our” in thigport refer to Owens Corning and its
subsidiaries. References to a particular year tf@a@ompany’s year commencing on January 1 anchgruai December 31 of that year.

SEGMENT OVERVIEW

We operate within two segments: Composites, whicludes our Reinforcements and Downstream busisgasd Building Materials, which
includes our Insulation and Roofing businesses.@mposites and Building Materials reportable segmaccounted for approximately 3!
and 65% of our total reportable segment net sedspectively, in 2012.

Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statementsagasinformation regarding net sales to externat@mers and total assets attributabl
each of Owens Corning’s reportable segments angrgpbic regions, earnings before interest and thotesach of Owens Corning’s
reportable segments, and information concerninglépendence of our reportable segments on forgigrations, for each of the years 2012,
2011 and 2010.

Composites

Owens Corning glass fiber materials can be fourmlvar 40,000 end-use applications within seven anyjnmarkets: power and energy,
housing, water distribution, industrial, transptian, consumer and aerospace/military. Such endxppbcations include pipe, roofing
shingles, sporting goods, computers, telecommunitsicables, boats, aircraft, defense, automaiiekistrial containers and wind-energy.
Our products are manufactured and sold worldwide.pimarily sell our products directly to parts iheds and fabricators. Within the
building and construction market, our Compositegrsent sells glass fiber and/or glass mat directly small number of major shingle
manufacturers, including our own Roofing business.

Our Composites segment is comprised of our Reiefosmts and Downstream businesses. Within the Rearfeents business, the Company
manufactures, fabricates and sells glass reinfagogsrin the form of fiber. Within the Downstreansimess, the Company manufactures and
sells glass fiber products in the form of fabricst, veil and other specialized products.

Demand for composites is driven by general globahemic activity and, more specifically, by thermasing replacement of traditional
materials such as aluminum, wood and steel withpasites that offer lighter weight, improved strdndack of conductivity and corrosion
resistance. We estimate that over the last 15 yearaverage, annual global demand for compositenaés grew at about 1.5 times global
GDP.

We compete with composite manufacturers worldwitzording to various industry reports and Compastyneates, our Composites segn
is a world leader in the production of glass fibginforcement materials. Primary methods of contipetinclude innovation, quality, custon
service and global geographic reach. For our conitypdoducts, price is also a method of competitiSignificant competitors to the
Composite
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)

segment include China Fiberglass Co., Ltd., Chamgé&iolycom International Corporation Ltd (CPIC) @ mdustries, Taishan Glass Fiber
Co., Ltd, and Johns Manville.

Our manufacturing operations in this segment aneggdly continuous in nature, and we warehouse noficiur production prior to sale since
we operate primarily with short delivery cycles.

Building Materials
Our Building Materials reportable segment is cosguli of the following businesses:
Insulation

Our insulating products help customers conserveggnerovide improved acoustical performance addrafonvenience of installation and
use, making them a preferred insulating produchéw home construction and remodeling. These ptedaoclude thermal and acoustical
batts, loose fill insulation, foam sheathing andessories, and are sold under well-recognized bmantes and trademarks such as Owens
Corning PINK® FIBERGLAS™ Insulation. We sell our irlation products primarily to insulation installefr®me centers, lumberyards,
retailers and distributors in the United States @adada.

Demand for Owens Corning’s insulating productsrigeh by new residential construction, remodeling aepair activity, commercial and
industrial construction activity, increasingly sigent building codes and the growing need for gnefficiency. Sales in this business
typically follow seasonal home improvement, remaughnd renovation and new construction industitygpas. Demand for new residential
construction typically follows on a thrementh lagged basis. The peak season for home aotistr and remodeling in our geographic mar
generally corresponds with the second and thirdnchdr quarters, and therefore, our sales levelypieally higher during the second half of
the year.

Our Insulation business competes primarily with ofaoturers in the United States. According to wasiomdustry reports and Company
estimates, Owens Corning is North America’s largestiucer of residential, commercial and indusiriallation, and the second-largest
producer of extruded polystyrene foam insulatioind®pal methods of competition include innovatemd product design, service, location,
quality, price and compatibility of systems solato Significant competitors in this business inel@krtainTeed Corporation, Johns Manv
Dow Chemical and Knauf Insulation.

Our Insulation business includes a diverse podfaiith a geographic mix of United States, CanadaaRacific, Europe and Latin America
market mix of residential, commercial, industrintiaother markets, and a channel mix of retail, atibr and distribution.

Working capital practices for this business histalty has followed a seasonal cycle. Typically, msulation plants run continuously
throughout the year. This production plan, alonthwhie seasonal nature of the business, geneealjts in higher finished goods inventory
balances in the first half of the year. Since salesease during the second half of the year, oooants receivable balances are typically
higher during this period.

Roofing

Our primary products in the Roofing business amgifate and strip asphalt roofing shingles. Othedpcts include oxidized asphalt and
roofing accessories. We have been able to megfrtveing demand for longer lasting, aestheticaltyaative laminate products with modest
capital investmen
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)

We sell shingles and roofing accessories primahitgugh home centers, lumberyards, retailers,idigtirs and contractors in the United
States and sell other asphalt products internalipanufacture residential roofing products andres#y to other roofing manufacturers. We
also sell asphalt to roofing contractors and disitors for builtup roofing asphalt systems and to manufactureasviariety of other industrie
including automotive, chemical, rubber and congtounc

Demand for products in our Roofing business is galyedriven by both residential repair and remaughactivity and by new residential
construction. Roofing damage from strong stormssignificantly increase demand in this businessaAssult, sales in this segment do not
always follow seasonal home improvement, remodedimdj new construction industry patterns as cloaglgur Insulation business.

Our Roofing business competes primarily with maotufeers in the United States. According to varimaiistry reports and Company
estimates, Owens Corning’s Roofing business iséitend largest producer of asphalt roofing shiniglése United States. Principal methods
of competition include innovation and product desigroximity to customers and quality. Significaoimpetitors in the Roofing business
include GAF-ELK, CertainTeed Corporation and TAMKO.

Our manufacturing operations are generally contiisua nature, and we warehouse much of our proslugtiior to sale since we operate v
relatively short delivery cycles. One of the rawtengls important to this business is sourced feosole supplier. We have a lotegm supph
contract for this material, and have no reasoretiete that any availability issues will existthis supply was to become unavailable, our
production could be interrupted until such timetessupplies again became available or the Compefoymulated its products. Additionally,
the supply of asphalt, another significant raw makén this segment, has been constricted at tithAough this has not caused an
interruption of our production in the past, proledgasphalt shortages would restrict our abilitprimduce products in this business.

GENERAL
Major Customers

No one customer accounted for more than 10% otonsolidated net sales for 2012. A significant jporof the net sales in our Buildit
Materials segment is generated from large UnitetieSthome improvement retailers.

Patents and Trademarks

Owens Corning continuously works toward improvimggucts and processes. Because of this continnowsation process, patents and
trademarks play a key role in each of our busire$3&ens Corning has numerous United States ap@jfopatents and trademarks issued
and applied for relating to products and processeach business, resulting from research and dprednt efforts. Owens Corning does not
expect the expiration of existing patents and trzatis to have a material adverse affect on thenbasias a whole.

Through continuous and extensive use of the cdlKRince 1956, Owens Corning became the first avafi@ single color trademark
registration in the United States. For over 25 ge@wens Corning has licensed from Metro-GoldwyrnysdteStudios Inc. (the owner of the
Pink Panther character) the exclusive right totheePink Panther in all of our major market segrmamd we make extensive use of the Pink
Panther character in the marketing of our prodWs believe our PINK trademark and the Pink Pantharacter are some of the most
widely recognized marks in the building productduistry.

We have issued roya-bearing patent licenses to companies in severaigorcountries
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS (continued)

Including registered trademarks for the Owens Gurhdgo and the color PINK, Owens Corning has axiprately 250 trademarks registered
in the United States and approximately 1,500 trad&eregistered in other countries. Owens Cornamydpproximately 400 patents in the
United States and approximately 1,300 patents éssuether countries.

Backlog
Our customer volume commitments are generally sieon, and we do not have a significant backlogrders.
Research and Development

The Company'’s research and development expensegdesich of the last three years is presented itatiie below (in millions):

Research anc

Period Development Expens
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2012 $ 79
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2( $ 77
Twelve Months Ended December 31, 2( $ 76

Environmental Control

Owens Corning is committed to complying with alennmental laws and regulations that are applieablour operations. We are dedicated
to continuous improvement in our environmental ltheand safety performance.

We have not experienced a material adverse effemt our capital expenditures or competitive positis a result of environmental control
legislation and regulations. Operating costs assediwith environmental compliance were approxifge83 million in 2012. We continue
invest in equipment and process modifications toaia in compliance with applicable environmentaldaand regulations worldwide.

Our manufacturing facilities are subject to numerpational, state and local environmental protadéws and regulations. Regulatory
activities of particular importance to our operationclude those addressing air pollution, watdiugon, waste disposal and chemical con
The most significant current regulatory activitythi® United States Environmental Protection Agesoyigoing evaluation of the past air
emission and air permitting activities of the glasfustry, including fiberglass insulation. We egppassage and implementation of new laws
and regulations specifically addressing climatengiea toxic air emissions, ozone forming emissiors fane particulate during the next two
five years. However, based on information knowthesCompany, including the nature of our manufaetuoperations and associated air
emissions, at this time we do not expect any ofelreew laws, regulations or activities to have tenal adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition or long-term ligifyd

We have been deemed by the United States Envirdiair@rotection Agency to be a Potentially Respdeditarty (“PRP”) with respect to
certain sites under the Comprehensive Environm&eaponse Compensation and Liability Act. We hdse been deemed a PRP under
similar state or local laws and in other instarmméer PRPs have brought suits against us as a&RBritribution under such federal, state, or
local laws. At December 31, 2012, we had envirortaleemediation liabilities as a PRP at 19 sitegmghwve have a continuing legal
obligation to either complete remedial actions amtdbute to the completion of remedial actionpagt of a group of PRPs. For these sites we
estimate a reserve to reflect environmental libdithat have been asserted or are probable eftiass in which liabilities are probable and
reasonably estimable. At December 31, 2012, o@rvesfor such liabilities was $7 millio
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Number of Employees

As of December 31, 2012 Owens Corning had appraeiiyd5,000 employees. Approximately 7,100 of semtployees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. We believe thatrelations with employees are good.

AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION

Owens Corning makes available, free of charge utitiats website the Company’s Annual Report on Fb0aK, Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and all amendmtmthose reports as soon as reasonably pra&iaétbl such material is electronically
filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exatpa Commission. These documents are availabledghrthe Investor Relations page of the
Compan’s website at www.owenscorning.cao
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS AND OUR INDUSTRY

Low levels of residential or commercial constructia activity can have a material adverse impact on agwbusiness and results of
operations.

A portion of our products are used in the marketgésidential and commercial construction, repatt improvement, and demand for certain
of our products is affected in part by the leveheiv residential construction in the United Stagédthough typically not until a number of
months after the change in the level of constructitistorically, construction activity has been lgyal and is influenced by prevailing
economic conditions, including the level of inténeges and availability of financing and othertfas outside our control.

Worldwide economic conditions and credit tighteningcould have a material adverse impact on the Compan

The Company’s business may be adversely impactethdyges in United States or global economic cmmdt including inflation, deflation,
interest rates, availability of capital, consumgerding rates, energy availability and costs, &edeffects of governmental initiatives to
manage economic conditions. Volatility in finanamérkets and the deterioration of national and @lesonomic conditions could materially
adversely impact the Company’s operations, findmetgults and/or liquidity including as follows:

» the financial stability of our customers or supgienay be compromised, which could result in adddl bad debts for the Compe
or nor-performance by supplier

« one or more of the financial institutions syndichtmder the Credit Agreement applicable to our cittechsenior revolving credit
facility may cease to be able to fulfill their fungd obligations, which could materially adverseatypact our liquidity;

» it may become more costly or difficult to obtaindncing or refinance the Compi’s debt in the future
» the value of the Compa’s assets held in pension plans may decline; a
» the Compan’'s assets may be impaired or subject to write dovwmarite off.

Uncertainty about global economic conditions mayseaconsumers of our products to postpone speirdi@gponse to tighter credit,
negative financial news and/or declines in incomasset values. This could have a material adwergact on the demand for our products
and on our financial condition and operating resudt deterioration of economic conditions woulcelik exacerbate these adverse effects and
could result in a wide-ranging and prolonged impacgeneral business conditions, thereby negatiwghacting our operations, financial
results and/or liquidity.

We face significant competition in the markets weesve and we may not be able to compete successfully

All of the markets we serve are highly competitie compete with manufacturers and distributor#h Bathin and outside the United Sta
in the sale of building products and composite pobsl Some of our competitors may have superianial, technical, marking and other
resources than we do. In some cases, we face citiop&iom manufacturers in countries able to proglgimilar products at lower costs. We
also face competition from the introduction by catiors of new products or technologies that majr@sk our customers’ needs in a better
manner, whether based on considerations of pricisability, effectiveness, sustainability or otfeatures or benefits. If we are not able to
successfully commercialize our innovati
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

efforts, we may lose market share. Price compatitioovercapacity may limit our ability to raiseqas for our products when necessary, may
force us to reduce prices and may also resultdnaed levels of demand for our products and caside lose market share. In addition, in
order to effectively compete, we must continuedwadop new products that meet changing consumérpreees and successfully develop,
manufacture and market these new products. Ouilityab effectively compete could result in theskof customers and reduce the sales of
our products, thereby adversely impacting our lssnfinancial condition and results of operations.

Our sales may fall rapidly in response to declinein demand because we do not operate under long-termolume agreements to supply
our customers and because of customer concentratiam certain segments.

Many of our customer volume commitments are shentit therefore, we do not have a significant mactufégng backlog. As a result, we do
not benefit from the hedge provided by long-terrtuate contracts against downturns in customer deraaddsales. Further, we are not able
to immediately adjust our costs in response toideslin sales. In addition, although no single @ur represents more than 10% of our
annual sales, sales of some of the products itailding materials product category are dependearda bmited number of customers, who
account for a significant portion of such salese Toss of key customers for these products, ogrfgiant reduction in sales to those
customers, could significantly reduce our reverfum® these products. In addition, if key customexperience financial pressure, they could
attempt to demand more favorable contractual tewhih would place additional pressure on our nresgind cash flows. Lower demand for
our products could adversely impact our businésantial condition and results of operations.

Adverse weather conditions and the level of sevestorms could have a material adverse impact on ouesults of operations.

Weather conditions and the level of severe storamshave a significant impact on the markets fodesgial and commercial construction,
repair and improvement, which can in turn impactlmusiness as follows:

» Generally, any weather conditions that slow orfirasidential or commercial construction activigncadversely impact demand for
our products

e A portion of our annual product demand is attriblgzo the repair of damage caused by severe stémrpgriods with below
average levels of severe storms, demand for swtupts could be reduce

Lower demand for our products as a result eithéhese scenarios could adversely impact our busifieancial condition and results of
operations.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely impact olusiness, financial condition or results of operéions.
Our debt level and degree of leverage could hay®itant consequences, including the following:

» they may limit our ability to obtain additional dedr equity financing for working capital, capietpenditures, debt service
requirements, acquisitions and general corporatgh@mr purpose:

* asubstantial portion of our cash flows from operat could be required for the payment of princiguad interest on our
indebtedness and may not be available for othénéss purpose:

» certain of our borrowings are at variable rategtdrest exposing us to the risk of increased @&serates

« if due to liquidity needs we must replace any irtddhess upon maturity, we would be exposed toisketlrat we may not be able
refinance such indebtedne
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» they may limit our ability to adjust to changing ket conditions and place us at a competitive diaathge compared to our
competitors that have less debt; :

e we may be vulnerable in a downturn in general enga@onditions or in our business, or we may bebleso carry out important
capital spending

In addition, the credit agreement governing ouiaerredit facility, the indentures governing oengr notes and the Receivables Purchase
Agreement governing our receivables securitizafimility contain various covenants that impose afing and financial restrictions on us
and/or our subsidiaries.

Our ongoing efforts to increase productivity and r@luce costs may not result in anticipated savings ioperating costs.

Our cost reduction and productivity efforts, indhaglithose related to our existing operations, patida capacity expansions and new
manufacturing platforms, may not produce anticigasults. Our ability to achieve cost savings aiiner benefits within expected time
frames is subject to many estimates and assumpfitiese estimates and assumptions are subjedrtificant economic, competitive and
other uncertainties, some of which are beyond outrol. If these estimates and assumptions ararec if we experience delays, or if other
unforeseen events occur, our business, financralition and results of operations could be advgrsepacted.

We may be exposed to increases in costs of enengterials and transportation or reductions in avaibbility of materials and
transportation, which could reduce our margins andhave a material adverse impact on our business, famcial condition and results of
operations.

Our business relies heavily on certain commoddigs raw materials used in our manufacturing preessdditionally, we spend a
significant amount on natural gas inputs and sesvtbat are influenced by energy prices, suchsadts a large number of chemicals and
resins and transportation costs. Price increasdbdse inputs could raise costs and reduce ouwyinsaif we are not able to offset them by
increasing the prices of our products, improvingdurctivity or hedging where appropriate. Availalyilof certain of the raw materials we use
has, from time to time, been limited, and our smgof some of these raw materials from a limitedhiber of suppliers, and in some cases a
sole supplier, increases the risk of unavailabiliigspite our contractual supply agreements withyntd our suppliers, it is possible that we
could experience a lack of certain raw materialictvicould limit our ability to produce our produgctereby adversely impacting our
business, financial condition and results of openast

Our hedging activities to address energy price flucations may not be successful in offsetting increas in those costs or may reduce or
eliminate the benefits of any decreases in thosests.

In order to mitigate short-term variation in oureogting results due to commodity price fluctuatioms hedge a portion of our near-term
exposure to the cost of energy, primarily natues.drhe results of our hedging practices coulddsitipe, neutral or negative in any period
depending on price changes of the hedged exposures.

Our hedging activities are not designed to mitidateg-term commodity price fluctuations and, theref will not protect us from long-term
commodity price increases. In addition, in the fataur hedging positions may not correlate to @iwa energy costs, which would cause
acceleration in the recognition of unrealized gaind losses on our hedging positions in our opegatsults
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The Company’s income tax net operating loss carryfovards may be limited and our results of operationsnay be adversely impacted.

The Company has substantial deferred tax asseteddio net operating losses (NOLSs) for UnitedeStéederal and state income tax purpc
which are available to offset future taxable incoewever, the Company ability to utilize or realize the current carryinalue of the NOL
may be impacted as a result of certain events, asichanges in tax legislation or insufficient fettaxable income prior to expiration of the
NOLs or annual limits imposed under Section 38thefinternal Revenue Code, or by state law, aswdtref a change in control. A change
control is generally defined as a cumulative chavfgg0% or more in the ownership positions of dartaockholders during a rolling three
year period. Changes in the ownership positioreedfin stockholders could occur as the resultadkstransactions by such stockhold
and/or by the issuance of stock by the Companyh 8oitations may cause the Company to pay incaamed earlier and in greater amounts
than would be the case if the NOLs were not sultgestich limitations.

Should the Company determine that it is likely ttetecorded NOL benefits are not realizable,Gloenpany would be required to reduce the
NOL tax benefit reflected on its financial statetseto the net realizable amount either by a diagpistment to the NOL tax benefit or
establishing a valuation reserve and recordingrgesponding charge to current earnings. The cooretipg charge to current earnings would
have an adverse effect on the Company’s finanoiadlition and results of operations in the periowiich it is recorded. Conversely, if the
Company is required to increase its NOL tax bergdfiter by a direct adjustment or reversing anyiporof the accounting valuation against
its deferred tax assets related to its NOLs, suetlicto current earnings could have a positiveefbn the Company’s business financial
condition and results of operations in the periodhich it is recorded.

Our operations require substantial capital, leadingto high levels of fixed costs that will be incurrd regardless of our level of business
activity.

Our businesses are capital intensive, and reguledyire capital expenditures to expand operatior@sntain equipment, increase operating
efficiency and comply with applicable laws and dagions, leading to high fixed costs, including depation expense. Also, increased
regulatory focus could lead to additional or higbests in the future. We are limited in our abitilyreduce fixed costs quickly in response to
reduced demand for our products and these fixei$ cogy not be fully absorbed, resulting in highegrage unit costs and lower gross
margins if we are not able to offset this higheit oost with price increases. Alternatively, we nisylimited in our ability to quickly respond
to unanticipated increased demand for our produdiigh could result in an inability to satisfy demdafor our products and loss of market
share.

We may be subject to liability under and may make gbstantial future expenditures to comply with envionmental laws and
regulations.

Our manufacturing facilities are subject to numerfmreign, federal, state and local laws and regunia relating to the presence of hazardous
materials, pollution and the protection of the eawiment, including those governing emissions tpdifitharges to water, use, storage and
transport of hazardous materials, storage, treatarehdisposal of waste, remediation of contamihattes and protection of worker health
and safety.

Liability under these laws involves inherent unagtties. Violations of environmental, health antesalaws are subject to civil, and, in some
cases, criminal sanctions. As a result of thesemainties, we may incur unexpected interruptieansgerations, fines, penalties or other
reductions in income which could adversely impasgtlusiness, financial condition and results ofrapens. Continued and increased
government and public emphasis on environmentaésss expected to result in increased future invests for environmental controls at
ongoing operations, which will be charged againsbime from future operations. Present and ft
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS (continued)

environmental laws and regulations applicable toaperations, and changes in their interpretatiosty require substantial capital
expenditures or may require or cause us to modifyudail our operations, which may have a matextblerse impact on our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to risks associated with our interntonal operations.

We sell products and operate plants throughoutvthréd. Our international sales and operations abgest to risks and uncertainties,
including:

» difficulties and costs associated with complyinghsa wide variety of complex and changing lawsatiess and regulation
» limitations on our ability to enforce legal rigrdad remedies

e economic and political conditions, war and civetdirbance

» taxrate change:

» tax inefficiencies and currency exchange contiwds imay adversely impact our ability to repatrizash from non-United States
subsidiaries

» the imposition of tariffs or other import or expogstrictions;

» costs and availability of shipping and transpootait

» nationalization of properties by foreign governnseind

e currency exchange rate fluctuations between théedr8tates dollar and foreign currenc

As we continue to expand our business globallymag have difficulty anticipating and effectively neging these and other risks that our
international operations may face, which may adlgrsnpact our business outside the United Statdsoarr business, financial condition ¢
results of operations.

In addition, we operate in many parts of the wahnlat have experienced governmental corruption amdauld be adversely affected by
violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices ActCHFA”) and similar worldwide anti-bribery laws. TREPA and similar anti-bribery laws in
other jurisdictions generally prohibit companies émeir intermediaries from making improper paymseotnon-U.S. officials for the purpose
of obtaining or retaining business. Although we dete compliance with these anti-bribery laws anthtaa an anti-corruption compliance
program, we cannot assure you that these measiltegegessarily prevent violations of these lawsdoy employees or agents. If we were
found to be liable for FCPA violations, we couldltable for criminal or civil penalties or otherrgdions, which could have a material adv:
impact on our business, financial condition anditsf operations.

If our efforts in acquiring and integrating other businesses, establishing joint ventures or expandiraur production capacity are not
successful, our business may not grow.

We have historically grown our business throughuggitions, joint ventures and the expansion of gnaduction capacity. Our ability to grow
our business through these investments dependsaypability to identify, negotiate and financetabie arrangements. If we cannot
successfully execute on our investments on a titnasys, we may be unable to generate sufficierme® to offset acquisition, integration or
expansion costs, we may incur costs in excess af wh anticipate, and our expectations of futuselts of operations, includir
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cost savings and synergies, may not be achievegliigitions, joint ventures and production capaekpansions involve substantial risks,
including:

» unforeseen difficulties in operations, technolog@®educts, services, accounting and persol

« diversion of financial and management resources ®&isting operations

* unforeseen difficulties related to entering geobiapegions or markets where we do not have pripedence

» risks relating to obtaining sufficient equity ordédinancing;

« difficulty in integrating the acquired busin’ standards, processes, procedures and control®withxisting operation:
» potential loss of key employees; &

e potential loss of customel

Our failure to address these risks or other problentountered in connection with our past or fubaguisitions and investments could cause
us to fail to realize the anticipated benefitswflsacquisitions or investments, incur unanticigaitbilities, and harm our business generally.
Future acquisitions and investments could alsdtr@sdilutive issuances of our equity securitif® incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities,
or amortization expenses, or write-offs of goodwvaly of which could have a material adverse impaabur business, financial condition.
Also, the anticipated benefits of our investmengymot materialize.

Our intellectual property rights may not provide meaningful commercial protection for our products or brands, which could adversely
impact our business, financial condition and result of operations.

Owens Corning relies on its proprietary intellet@perty, including numerous registered tradersgals well as its licensed intellectual
property. We monitor and protect against activitiest might infringe, dilute, or otherwise harm @atents, trademarks and other intellectual
property and rely on the patent, trademark andradéves of the United States and other countriesvéi@r, we may be unable to prevent third
parties from using our intellectual property withour authorization. To the extent we cannot priodee intellectual property, unauthorized
use and misuse of our intellectual property coaldrhour competitive position and have a materiskagk impact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In additidve kaws of some non-United States jurisdictionsigle less protection for our proprietary
rights than the laws of the United States and weeflore may not be able to effectively enforceiatellectual property in these jurisdictions.
If we are unable to maintain certain exclusiver®es, our brand recognition could be adversely ategoh Current employees, contractors and
suppliers have, and former employees, contractatssappliers may have, access to information réggumur operations which could be
disclosed improperly and in breach of contractuo@mpetitors or otherwise used to harm us.

We could face potential product liability and warranty claims, we may not accurately estimate costsleged to such claims, and we mg
not have sufficient insurance coverage available tcover such claims.

Our products are used and have been used in avaitty of residential and commercial application® face an inherent business risk of
exposure to product liability or other claims ir thvent our products are alleged to be defectithairthe use of our products is alleged to
have resulted in harm to others or to property.riédg in the future incur liability if product lialfiy lawsuits against us are successful.
Moreover, any such lawsuits, whether or not sudoessould result in adverse publicity to us, whiobuld cause our sales to decli
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In addition, consistent with industry practice, previde warranties on many of our products and &g experience costs of warranty or
breach of contract claims if our products have cksfen manufacture or design or they do not meetraotual specifications. We estimate our
future warranty costs based on historical trendsmoduct sales, but we may fail to accuratelyneste those costs and thereby fail to
establish adequate warranty reserves for them. ¥letain insurance coverage to protect us againstyat liability, warranty and breach of
contract claims, but that coverage may not be aatecio cover all claims that may arise or we maybmoable to maintain adequate insurance
coverage in the future at an acceptable cost. Aafylity not covered by insurance or that exceadgsestablished reserves could materially
and adversely impact our business, financial caordind results of operations.

We are subject to litigation in the ordinary courseof business and uninsured judgments or a rise imgurance premiums may adversel
impact our business, financial condition and resul of operations.

In the ordinary course of business, we are sulijeearious claims and litigation. Any such claimdether with or without merit, could be
time consuming and expensive to defend and couktidinanagement’s attention and resources. In daoge with customary practice, we
maintain insurance against some, but not all, eéé¢potential claims. In the future, we may noalble to maintain insurance at commercially
acceptable premium levels at all. In addition, lthesls of insurance we maintain may not be adequdaidly cover any and all losses or
liabilities. If any significant judgment or clairs not fully insured or indemnified against, it cdtlave a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition and results of openst We cannot assure that the outcome of aleatior future litigation will not have a
material adverse impact on the Company and itdtsestioperations.

We depend on our senior management team and othekitled and experienced personnel to operate our birsess effectively, and the
loss of any of these individuals or the failure tattract additional personnel could adversely impacbur business financial condition
and results of operations.

We are highly dependent on the skills and expee@iour senior management team and other skilleideaiperienced personnel. These
individuals possess sales, marketing, manufactulaggstical, financial, business strategy and adstiative skills that are important to the
operation of our business. The loss of any of thedi@iduals or an inability to attract, retain amdintain additional personnel could prevent
us from implementing our business strategy anddcadiersely impact our business and our futurenfirz condition or results of operations.
We cannot assure that we will be able to retainfatlur existing senior management personnel atttact additional qualified personnel
when needed.

Increases in the cost of labor, union organizing aiwity, labor disputes and work stoppages at our failities could delay or impede our
production, reduce sales of our products and increse our costs.

The costs of labor are generally increasing, inolgidhe costs of employee benefit plans. We argestibo the risk that strikes or other types
of conflicts with personnel may arise or that weyrbacome the subject of union organizing activitgdditional facilities. In particular,
renewal of collective bargaining agreements tyjpidalolves negotiation, with the potential for vkastoppages or increased costs at affected
facilities.

Downgrades of our credit ratings could adversely irpact us.

Our credit ratings are important to our cost ofizdpThe major debt rating agencies routinely aaéd our debt based on a number of factors,
which include financial strength and business aiskvell as transparency with rating agencies andlimess of financial reporting. A
downgrade in our debt rating could result in insehinterest and other expenses on our existingblarinterest rate debt, and could result in
increased interest and other financing expensédstore borrowings. Downgrades in our debt ratingldalso restrict our access to capital
markets and affect the value and marketabilitywfautstanding note
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We will not be insured against all potential losseand could be seriously harmed by natural disastersatastrophes or sabotage.

Many of our business activities involve substariti@estments in manufacturing facilities and mamydoicts are produced at a limited nunr
of locations. These facilities could be materiglgmaged by natural disasters such as floods, tosnadrricanes and earthquakes or by
sabotage. We could incur uninsured losses anditiebiarising from such events, including damageur reputation, and/or suffer material
losses in operational capacity, which could haweaterial adverse impact on our business, finamciatlition and results of operations.

We are subject to risks relating to our informationtechnology systems, and any failure to adequateprotect our critical information
technology systems could materially affect our opations.

We rely on information technology systems acrogsoperations, including for management, supply rclaaid financial information and
various other processes and transactions. Outyatuileffectively manage our business depends esdleurity, reliability and capacity of
these systems. Information technology system feslunetwork disruptions or breaches of securityccdisrupt our operations, causing del
or cancellation of customer orders or impedingrtteufacture or shipment of products, processirtgaolactions or reporting of financial
results. An attack or other problem with our systamould also result in the disclosure of proprigtaformation about our business or
confidential information concerning our customeremployees, which could result in significant dgm#o our business and our reputation.

We have put in place security measures designptbtect against the misappropriation or corruptidour systems, intentional or
unintentional disclosure of confidential informatjar disruption of our operations. However, adwahcyber-security threats, such as
computer viruses, attempts to access to informatind other security breaches, are persistent@mtihcie to evolve making them
increasingly difficult to identify and prevent. Reating against these threats may require sigmficesources, and we may not be able to
implement measures that will protect against athefsignificant risks to our information technojogystems. In addition, we rely on a nun
of third party service providers to execute certaisiness processes and maintain certain IT systachinfrastructure, any breach of security
on their part could impair our ability to affectlyeperate. Moreover, our operations in certairatamns, such as China, may be particularly
vulnerable to security attacks or other problentsy Breach of our security measures could resulihauthorized access to and
misappropriation of our information, corruptiondsdta or disruption of operations or transactionyg, & which could have a material adverse
effect on our business.

RISKS RELATED TO OWNERSHIP OF OUR COMMON STOCK
The market price of our common stock is subject toolatility.

The market price of our common stock could be suligewide fluctuations in response to numerousofag many of which are beyond our
control. These factors include actual or anticidatariations in our operational results and cast flour earnings relative to our competition,
changes in financial estimates by securities atglymding volume, sales by holders of large arteahour common stock, short selling,
market conditions within the industries in which agerate, seasonality of our business operatibegyeneral state of the securities markets
and the market for stocks of companies in our itrjugovernmental legislation or regulation andrency and exchange rate fluctuations, as
well as general economic and market conditionsh siscrecession
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We are a holding company with no operations of ouown and depend on our subsidiaries for cash.

As a holding company, most of our assets are helolb direct and indirect subsidiaries and we wiilmarily rely on dividends and other
payments or distributions from our subsidiarieset our debt service and other obligations arehéble us to pay dividends. The ability of
our subsidiaries to pay dividends or make othenpats or distributions to us will depend on thespective operating results and may be
restricted by, among other things, the laws ofrtheisdiction of organization (which may limit tteenount of funds available for the payment
of dividends or other payments), agreements ofetlsobsidiaries, agreements with any co-investon@mwholly-owned subsidiaries, the
terms of our credit facility and senior notes amgl ¢ovenants of any future outstanding indebtedwessr our subsidiaries may incur.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificatef incorporation and bylaws or Delaware law might dscourage, delay or prevent a
change in control of our company or changes in oumanagement and therefore depress the trading pricef our common stock.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpmmaaind bylaws contain provisions that could deptiesdrading price of our common stock
through provisions that may discourage, delay ev@nt a change in control of our company or chairgesr management that our
stockholders may deem advantageous.

Additionally, we are subject to Section 203 of Bbelaware General Corporation Law, which generalbhfbits a Delaware corporation from
engaging in any of a broad range of business caatibims with any “interested” stockholder for a perbf three years following the date on
which the stockholder became an “interested” stolddr and which may discourage, delay or prevesftaage in control of our company.

We may pay no cash dividends on our common stock.

The payment of any future cash dividends to oulkstolders will depend on decisions that will be m&g our Board of Directors and will
depend on then existing conditions, including cperating results, financial conditions, contractestrictions, corporate law restrictions,
capital agreements, applicable laws of the Staf@etdware and business prospects. We may pay hoddadends for the foreseeable future.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

Owens Corning has nothing to report under this I
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Composites

Our Composites segment operates out of 30 manuiiagtiacilities. Principal manufacturing facilitidsr our Composites segment, all of
which are owned by us except the Ibaraki, Japailitfaevhich is leased, include the following:

Amarillo, Texas Kimchon, Koree
Anderson, South Carolir L’'Ardoise, Franct
Chambery, Franc Rio Claro, Brazil
Gous, Russi Tlaxcala, Mexicc
Hangzhou, Zhejiang, Chir Yuhang, Chin
Ibaraki, Japal Taloja, India

Jackson, Tenness
Building Materials

Our Building Materials segment operates out of @huofacturing facilities, primarily in North Americ@hese facilities are summarized be
by each of the businesses within our Building Matsrsegment.

Our Insulation business operates out of 31 manufi;ct facilities. Principal manufacturing facilifdor our Insulation business, all of which
are owned, include the following:

Delmar, New York Newark, Ohic
Edmonton, Alberta, Canat Rockford, lllinois
Fairburn, Georgii Santa Clara, Californi
Guangzhou, Guandong, Chi Tallmadge, Ohic
Kansas City, Kanse Toronto, Ontario, Canac
Mexico City, Mexico Waxahachie, Texe

Our Roofing business operates out of 29 manufamUecilities. Principal manufacturing facilitiesrfour Roofing business, all of which are
owned by us, include the following:

Atlanta, Georgit Kearny, New Jerse
Compton, Californie Medina, Ohic
Denver, Colorad: Portland, Orego
Irving, Texas Savannah, Georg
Jacksonville, Floridi Summit, lllinois

We believe that these properties are in good cmmdé#nd well maintained, and are suitable and aalegio carry on our business. The
capacity of each plant varies depending upon pitohixc

Our principal executive offices are located in @@ens Corning World Headquarters, Toledo, Ohi@aséd facility of approximately
400,000 square feet.

Our research and development activities are priyneoinducted at our Science and Technology Celtteated on approximately 500 acres of
land owned by us outside of Granville, Ohio. It sists of approximately 20 structures totaling mbian 650,000 square feet. In addition, we
have application development and other productraaket focused research and development centeesiwus locations
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ITEM3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has nothing to report under this item.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable

-16-
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF OWENS CORNING

The name, age and business experience during shéiymyears of Owens Corning’s executive officassof February 20, 2013 are set forth
below. Each executive officer holds office unti for her successor is elected and qualified ot kistior her earlier resignation, retirement or
removal. All those listed have been employees oé@snCorning during the past five years except diséted.

Name and Agt Position*
John W. Christy (54) Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Segrsitace December 2011; formerly Vice

President, Interim General Counsel and Secret@¥1(g Vice President Deputy General
Counsel (2010) and Vice President and Assistane@éCounsel, Transactions and

Business

Charles E. Dana (57) Group President, Building Materials since Decen#i&0; formerly Group President,
Composite Solutions (2008) and Vice President aedifent, Composite Solutions
Business

Arnaud Genis (48) Group President, Composite Solutions since Dece@®t0; formerly Vice President and

Managing Director, European Composite Solutionsiidss (2007), President of Saint-
Gobain Reinforcement and Composites Business axilél 8olutions Business, Par

Michael C. McMurray (48) Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offidece August 2012; formerly Vice
President Finance, Building Materials Group (20Vi¢e President Investor Relations and
Treasurer (2010), Vice President Finance and Trea$2008) and Finance Manager for
Royal Dutch Shell

Kelly J. Schmidt (47) Vice President, Controller since April 2011; foriyevice President, Internal Audit (2010),
Assistant Controller, Shared Business Servicesadriechnologies Corporation (“UTC")
(2009) and Controller, Sikorsky Helicopter Corparatia division of UTC

Daniel T. Smith (47) Senior Vice President, Human Resources since Septedd09; formerly Executive Vice
President/Chief Administrative Officer, Borders @pp Inc. (2009), Executive Vice
President, Human Resources, Borders Group

Michael H. Thaman (48) President and Chief Executive Officer since Decan2d@7 and also Chairman of the Board
since April 2002; Director since January 20

* Information in parentheses indicates year duthepast five years in which service in positiogdre The last item listed for each
individual represents the position held by suchviddial at the beginning of the five year peri
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ITEM5. MARKET FOR OWENS CORNING 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Owens Corning’s common stock trades on the New Yatdck Exchange under the symbol “OC.” The follogvtable sets forth the high and
low sales prices per share of Owens Corning comstaek for each quarter from January 1, 2011 thrddgbember 31, 2012:

Period High Low

First Quarter 2011 $37.7( $30.3:
Second Quarter 201 $38.81 $33.2¢
Third Quarter 201 $38.9¢ $21.57
Fourth Quarter 201 $31.2¢ $18.67
First Quarter 201, $38.0( $29.3:
Second Quarter 201 $35.8¢ $26.3¢
Third Quarter 201; $35.9¢ $25.7(
Fourth Quarter 201 $37.4: $29.4¢

Holders of Common Stock
The number of stockholders of record of Owens Gay'sicommon stock on January 31, 2013 was 478.
Cash Dividends

Owens Corning did not pay cash dividends on itsroomstock during the two most recent years. Thengay of any future cash dividends
our stockholders will depend on decisions that béllmade by our Board of Directors and will dependhen existing conditions, including
our operating results, financial condition, contuat restrictions, corporate law restrictions, talpiequirements, the applicable laws of the
State of Delaware and business prospects. AlthougBoard of Directors is expected to consider ftame to time the payment of quarterly
cash dividends, there can be no assurance weayilapy cash dividend, or if declared, the amourstuch cash dividend.

As a consequence of certain provisions of the Caryipasenior notes, senior credit facilities andereables securitization facility, the
Company and its subsidiaries are subject to ceréaitnictions on their ability to pay dividends andransfer cash and other assets to each
other and to their affiliates.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities

Owens Corning has nothing to report under this I
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ITEMS5. MARKET FOR OWENS CORNING 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES (continued)

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table provides information about Owedorning’s purchases of its common stock durimgttinee months ended December 31,
2012:

Maximum Number
(or Approximate
Dollar Value) of

Total Number of Shares (or Units) tha
Total Number of Shares (or Units)
Average Price Purchased as Part ¢ May Yet Be
Shares (or Units Paid per Share Purchased Under the
Publicly Announced
Period Purchased (or Unit) Plans or Programs** Plans or Programs**
October 1-31, 2012 5,16¢ $ 33.51] — 10,000,00
November -30,
2012 3,231 33.8¢ — 10,000,00
December 1-31,
2012 2,057 35.7¢ — 10,000,00
Total 10,45+ $ 34.0¢ —

* The Company retained 10,457 shares surrenderedisfysax withholding obligations in connectiontlwihe vesting of restricted sha
granted to our employee

**On April 25, 2012, the Company announced a slmarg-back program under which the Company is aighdrto repurchase up to
10 million shares of Owens Corning’s outstandinmomn stock. Under the buyack program, shares may be repurchased througt
market, privately negotiated, or other transactidie timing and actual number of shares repurchadlédepend on market conditions
and other factors and will be at the Comy’s discretion
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Statement of Earnings (Loss) Data

Net sales

Gross margir

Marketing and administrative expen:

Earnings from continuing operations before intesest taxe:

Interest expense, n

Loss on extinguishment of de

Income tax expense (bene!

Net earnings (loss

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Cori

Amounts attributable to Owens Corning common stockblders:
Earnings (loss) from operations, net of

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Corti

Basic earnings (loss) per common share attributable Owens
Corning common stockholders
Earnings (loss) from operatio
Basic earnings (loss) per common st

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share attributale to Owens
Corning common stockholders
Earnings (loss) from operatio
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh

Weighted-average common shares
Basic
Diluted
Balance Sheet Data
Total asset
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Total equity

No dividends were declared or paid for any of thequls presented abo\

Twelve
Months

Ended
Dec.
31,

2012 (a

5,17:
797
50¢
14¢€
114

74
(28)
(16)

$ (19

$ (19
$ (19

P HBRH P B P

$ (0.1
$ (0.16)

$ (0.16)
$ (0.16)

119.¢
119.¢

$ 7,56¢
$ 2,07¢
$ 3,57¢

Twelve Twelve Twelve Twelve
Months Months Months Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
Dec. 31 Dec. 31 Dec. Dec.
31, 31,
2011 2010 (b 2009 (c 2008 (d
(in millions, except per share amounts
$ 5,33t $ 4,997 $ 4,80: $ 5,847
$ 1,02¢ $ 95¢ $ 84¢ $ 927
$ 52t $ b5l¢ $ 52z $ 617
$ 461 $ 20¢ $ 192 $ 234
$ 10¢ $ 11C $ 111 $ 11¢
$ — $ — $ — $ —
$ 74 $ (840 $ 14 $ 931
$ 281 $ 94C $ 67 $ (81))
$ 27¢€ $ 93¢ $ 64 $ (813
$ 27¢€ $ 93¢ $ 64 $ (813
$ 27¢ $ 93¢ $ 64 $ (819
$ 2.2t $ 7.4: $ 0.51 $ (6.39)
$ 2.2t $ 7.4c: $ 0.51 $ (6.39)
$ 2.2¢ $ 7.37 $ 0.5C $ (6.39)
$ 2.2t $ 7.37 $ 0.5C $ (6.39)
122.t 125.¢ 124.¢ 127.¢
123.k 126.¢€ 127.1 127.¢
$ 7,527 $ 7,15¢ $ 7,167 $ 7,222
$ 1,93( $ 1,62¢ $ 2,177 $ 2,17:
$ 3,741 $ 3,68¢ $ 2,85: $ 2,78(
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA (continued)

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

During 2012, the Company recorded $136 milliontwdrges related to cost reduction actions and kltdens (comprised of $51 millic
of severance costs and $85 million of other castdusive of $55 million of accelerated depreciatand $30 million in other related
charges). There was also $9 million in lossesedl& Hurricane Sand

During 2010, the Company recorded impairmeatrgés of $117 million, $40 million of charges rethto cost reduction actions and
related items (comprised of $29 million of severnosts and $11 million of other costs), and clag§é&13 million of integration cos
related to the acquisition of Se-Gobair's reinforcement and composite fabrics busines®07 3*2007 Acquisitior”).

During 2009, the Company recorded $53 millidictrarges related to cost reduction actions arateélitems (comprised of $34 million
of severance costs, and $19 million of other castdusive of $13 million of accelerated depre@a)i charges of $33 million of
integration costs related to the 2007 Acquisitamd $29 million for charges related to our emploge®rgence equity progra

During 2008, the Company recorded $85 milliéimeegration costs related to the 2007 Acquisitfmreluding charges of $10 million to
impair assets related to the divestiture in 2008wof composite manufacturing plants (“2008 Divesst)), $26 million of expenses
related to our employee emergence equity progr@miflion in expenses related to leases of cenqpa@tious metals used in production
tooling, $7 million for charges related to costuetion actions and a gain of $48 million relatedhe sale of certain precious metals
used in production tooling
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ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A8)intended to help the reader understand Owensii@gr our operations and our
present business environment. MD&A is provided asmplement t— and should be read in conjunction with — our Gaitkated Financial
Statements and the accompanying Notes theretoinedtan this report. Unless the context requirdseswise, the terms “Owens Corning,”
“Company,” “we” and “our” in this report refer to Ovens Corning.

GENERAL

Owens Corning is a leading global producer of gfdms reinforcements and other materials for cosiles and of residential and commercial
building materials. The Company’s business opematfall within two reportable segments, Composied Building Materials. Composites
includes our Reinforcements and Downstream busesesiilding Materials includes our Insulation d&abfing businesses. Through these
lines of business, we manufacture and sell produotidwide. We maintain leading market positionsriany of our major product categori

EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW

We reported $148 million in earnings before intesesl taxes (“EBIT”) in 2012 compared to $461 roifliin 2011. We generated $293
million in adjusted earnings before interest ane$a(“Adjusted EBIT”) in 2012. EBIT in our Buildiniylaterials segment declined by $39
million and EBIT in our Composites segment declibgds110 million compared to 2011.

Restructuring actions initiated in 2012 represe®E86 million of the amount adjusted out of repdrE&BIT to arrive at Adjusted EBIT, with
the majority of the restructuring charges relatethe repositioning of our European assets in mmgbsites business. We have also adjusted
out $9 million of losses related to a flood thatweed in our Kearny, New Jersey roofing manufantgufacility as a result of Hurricane Sar

in late October. The Company believes that relatsts and business interruption losses will betankiglly covered by insurance. There has
been little impact to our customers as we contiougervice all customers through our regional mactwfring network. See below for further
information regarding adjusted EBIT, including tlegonciliation to net earnings attributable to Osv€wrning.

In our Composites segment, EBIT in 2012 was $9lianicompared to $201 million in 2011 driven prinhaby inflation, lower capacity
utilization, start up costs and slightly lower g@l prices.

In our Building Materials segment, EBIT in 2012 v&293 million compared to $332 million in 2011.dar Roofing business, EBIT declined
$98 million on lower sales volumes driven by weaaim the U.S. roofing shingle market, and raw mi@tenflation. Our Insulation business
narrowed EBIT losses by $59 million compared to226f the strength of higher sales volumes, manufiact productivity and improved
capacity utilization.

We maintain a strong balance sheet with ampledituiWe have access to an $800 million senior Ikgug credit facility with a July 2016
maturity date and a $250 million receivables seization facility with a December 2014 maturity eatVe have no other significant debt
maturities before 2016. During the fourth quantes, further strengthened our liquidity position witte issuance of $600 million of 4.2%
senior notes due 2022.

We repurchased 3.7 million shares of the Compargrsmon stock for $107 million in 2012 under a poengly announced repurchase
program. As of December 31, 2012, 10 million shaeasain available for repurchase under the autednmogram
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Consolidated Results (in millions)

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2012 2011 2010

Net sales $5,17: $5,33¢ $4,991
Gross margir $ 797 $1,02¢ $ 95€
% of net sale 15% 19% 19%
Charges related to cost reduction acti $ 51 $ — $ 2¢
Earnings before interest and ta: $ 14¢ $ 461 $ 20€
Interest expense, n $ 114 $ 10¢ $ 11C

Loss on extinguishment of de $ 74 $ — $ —
Income tax expense (bene $ (28 $ 74 $ (840
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Corl $ (19 $ 27¢€ $ 93¢

The Consolidated Results discussion below provédesmmary of our results and the trends affecturgoasiness, and should be read in
conjunction with the more detailed Segment Resliisussion that follows.

NET SALES

2012 Compared to 201INet sales decreased by $163 million in 2012 aspawed to 2011 driven by lower sales volumes inRawfing
business, which were partially offset by higheesalolumes in our Insulation business, and thevanédle impact of translating sales
denominated in foreign currencies into United $tatellars in our Composites segment.

2011 Compared to 2010let sales increased $338 million in 2011 as conthbar@010 driven by increased sales volumes, higales prices,
and the favorable impact of translating sales deénatad in foreign currencies into United Statedaisl These increases were partially offset
by the impact of the December 2010 divestiturewfldnited States Masonry Products business anifl#ye2011 divestiture of our glass
reinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil. All afur businesses delivered increased sales voluitle®ur Roofing business delivering
significant increased volumes based on strong ddreapported by storm activity.

GROSS MARGIN

2012 Compared to 2011Gross margin in 2012 included $85 million in ajes resulting from our European restructuring astiovhich are
reflected in cost of sales. The primary contributothe remaining change in gross margin as a ptage of net sales was a decrease in gross
margin in our Composites segment. Gross marginpesaentage of net sales decreased in our Roofisipdss; however this was partially
offset by an increase in our Insulation business.

2011 Compared to 2010Gross margin as a percentage of net sales rechfiirien 2011 as compared to 2010. Improved umitgms in our
Composites business and the favorable impact ofliwestiture of the United States Masonry Prodbaisiness in December 2010 were of
by unit margin declines in our Roofing businesstr Raofing business delivered EBIT margins of 20cpet in 2011
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CHARGES RELATED TO COST REDUCTION ACTIONS

2012 Compared to 201 1During 2012, we took actions to improve the cotitiye position of our global Composites manufastgrnetwork
through the closure or optimization of certain liiels, primarily in Europe. As a result of thesgtians, in addition to the charges recorded in
cost of sales discussed above, we recognized $b@rmn severance charges in 2012. The total chsrglated to cost reduction actions and
related items for 2012 was $136 million. No chargese taken in 2011 as a result of cost reductgios.

2011 Compared to 2010There were no charges related to cost reductiars in 2011. During 2010, as part of our revigvour
Composites manufacturing network we took actiorfsitther balance global capacity and respond tdketaronditions.

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES

2012 Compared to 2011EBIT decreased by $313 million in 2012 comparedQ11. In our Composites segment, EBIT decreageil b0
million and EBIT in our Building Materials segmetecreased by $39 million compared to 2011. Corpde&IT losses during 2012 increa
by $164 million compared to 2011, primarily relateccost reduction actions and related items oB&h8lion.

2011 Compared to 20LCEBIT increased by $255 million in 2011 compare@010. In our Composites segment, EBIT increayeblit
million and EBIT in our Building Materials segmentsreased by $51 million compared to 2010. CorgoEBIT losses declined by $178
million in 2011 compared to 2010. Total adjustitems included in Corporate EBIT were $175 milliar2D10, compared to none in 2011.

INTEREST EXPENSE, NET

2012 Compared to 201 1year-to-date 2012 interest expense was higheritha011 due primarily to higher average borrowliexgls.

2011 Compared to 20I0nterest expense was lower in 2011 than in 20#9td higher interest income and the favorable ochphthe
interest rate swap, of which two-thirds was oftsghigher average borrowing rates and increaseWwaorg levels.

LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEBT

2012 Compared to 2011Year-to-date 2012 loss on extinguishment of dedg $74 million as a result of refinancing portiai®ur Senior
Notes due in 2016 and 2019. We did not record adosextinguishment of debt in 20!

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Income tax benefit for 2012 was $28 million compite an expense of $74 million in 2011.

The company'’s effective tax rate for 2012 was 7@@et on a pre-tax loss of $40 million. After ading for our European restructuring
actions, our extinguishment of debt, and the rdlt® planning initiatives during 2012, the effeettax rate was 23% on adjusted pre-tax
income of $179 million. The difference between 2366 effective tax rate and the statutory tax r&t&85846 is primarily attributable to lower
foreign tax rates and various tax planning iniies.

The company’s effective tax rate for 2011 was 2t@at. The difference between the 21 percent é¥ffetax rate and the statutory rate of 35
percent is primarily attributable to the favorabgact of various tax planning strategies, loweeign tax rates and the benefit of a favorable
settlement of a lor-standing claim with the United States Internal RexeService
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Income tax benefit for 2010 was $840 million. Thedme tax benefit was the result of reversing $88lion of the valuation allowance
primarily related to the Company’s United Statedefal and state deferred tax assets. The valuallimwance was originally established in
2008 based primarily on negative evidence of them@any's losses before income taxes in the UnitateStduring 2007 and 2008.

After removing the effect of valuation allowancesidg 2010, the effective tax rate was 69%. Théedihce between the 69% effective tax
rate and the statutory tax rate of 35% is primaatlyibutable to increases in global tax reservekthe impact of the goodwill impairment.
The effective rate was decreased by the benelitvedr foreign tax rates and various tax plannirigiatives, which have significantly reduced
our cash taxes and tax provision related to oeriational operations.

Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Taxes“(Adjusted EBIT”)

Adjusted EBIT excludes certain significant itemattmanagement does not allocate to our segmeritséscause it believes they are not a
result of the Company’s current operations. Adjd$E8IT is used internally by the Company for vasqurposes, including reporting results
of operations to the Board of Directors of the Camy analysis of performance and related emplogegensation measures. Although
management believes that these adjustments rasulneasure that provides a useful representationraperational performance, the
adjusted measure should not be considered inigolat as a substitute for net earnings attrib@ablOwens Corning as prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States.

Adjusting items are shown in the table below (itlions):

Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Net precious metal lease expe —

$ — $ $ @

Charges related to cost reduction actions andeeitg¢ms —
(13€) (40

Acquisition integration and transaction costs —
— 13

Gains (losses) on sales of assets and relatedesharg —
— (120)

Losses related to Hurricane Sandy —

(©) —

Total adjusting items —
$ (145 $ $ (175
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The reconciliation from net earnings attributaloléOwens Corning to Adjusted EBIT is shown in theldéebelow (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2012 2011 2010

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNIN $ (19 $ 27¢ $ 93¢
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrollintgiests 3 5 7

NET EARNINGS (LOSS (16) 281 94C
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 4 2 4
Income tax expense (bene! (28) 74 (840
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE TAXE: (40) 352 96
Interest expense, n 114 10¢€ 11C

Loss on extinguishment of de 74 — —
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXE:! 14¢ 461 20¢
Less: adjusting items from abo (145) — (175)
ADJUSTED EBIT $ 29: $ 461 $ 381

Segment Results

Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT”) by seghtonsists of net sales less related costs grehegs and are presented on a basis that i
used internally for evaluating segment performa@etain items, such as general corporate expemsasome and certain other expense or
income items, are excluded from the internal eu@dnaf segment performance. Accordingly, thesmgéere not reflected in EBIT for our
reportable segments and are included in the Caigadtaher and Eliminations category, which is pnése following the discussion of our
reportable segments.

Composites
The table below provides a summary of net sale$] BRd depreciation and amortization expense forGamposites segment (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Net sales $1,85¢ $1,97¢ $1,90¢
% change from prior yee -6 % 4% 17%
EBIT $ 91 $ 201 $ 17t
EBIT as a % of net sal 5% 10% 9%
Depreciation and amortization expense $ 128 $ 12¢ $ 117

NET SALES

2012 Compared to 201INet sales in our Composites business were $1llibmiower in 2012 than in 2011. Net sales weréanprably
impacted by approximately $85 million as a reséfitranslating sales denominated in foreign currenanto United States dollars. Favorable
mix and slightly higher sales volumes were more
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offset by slightly lower selling prices. The 201@wparison to 2011 was unfavorably impacted by apprately $20 million from the May
2011 divestiture of our glass reinforcements facih Capivari, Brazil.

2011 Compared to 201(Net sales in our Composites business were $7mHtigher in 2011 than in 2010. Higher sellingcps and the
favorable impact of translating sales denominatefiieign currencies into United States dollarstigbated equally to the increase in net
sales. Partially offsetting these increases irsakts was approximately $30 million in lower saes result of the May 2011 divestiture of
glass reinforcements facility in Capivari, Brafin a year-over-year basis sales volumes increasgtbbal glass reinforcements market
growth of four percent, which was partially offést unfavorable mix.

EBIT

2012 Compared to 2011EBIT in our Composites segment was $110 milliondr in 2012 than in 2011. Slightly lower sellingces and
inflation contributed equally to approximately $®llion of the decline in EBIT. Approximately $30iltion of EBIT decline was driven
equally by the impact of rebalancing supply and alethin our manufacturing network along with plans&ft-up and maintenance costs at
facilities in Russia, Mexico and the United Stafse remaining decline was primarily due to theofable resolution of an acquisition
liability in the first quarter of 2011.

2011 Compared to 20LCEBIT in our Composites segment was $26 millioghleir in 2011 than in 2010 primarily driven by loveests
achieved through manufacturing productivity. Highelling prices more than offset inflation in m#&éand energy costs and together this
contributed about one-third to the increase in EBlIly offsetting this benefit was the unfavorabitgact of our divestiture of our glass
reinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil.

OUTLOOK

Global glass reinforcements market demand hasrhuatly grown on average with global industrial duetion and we believe this
relationship will continue. In 2012, global glasénforcements market demand grew less than thertuat average of five percent driven by
weaknesses in developing markets and Europeantiredysoduction. In 2013, we expect global glasisforcements market demand to grow
at comparable levels to what we experienced in 2012 margins should benefit from the asset refwsitg that we executed in 2012 (see
additional discussion on Composites restructurizigpas in footnote 14) and we expect increasedatibn after bringing our inventory lev
down at the end of 201
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Building Materials

The table below provides a summary of net sale$T BBd depreciation and amortization expense (itiong) for the Building Materials
segment and our businesses within this segme2010, changes were made to reflect the sale of Mageroducts. Other primarily consists
of Masonry Products.

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010

Net sales

Insulation $1,46¢ $1,36¢ $1,30¢

Roofing 2,01« 2,16¢ 1,84

Other — — 87
Total Building Materials $3,48: $3,531 $3,24:

% change from prior yee 2% 9% -2%

EBIT

Insulation $ (39 $ (97 $ (102)

Roofing 331 42¢ 40~

Other — — (22
Total Building Materials $ 29¢ $ 332 $ 281

EBIT as a % of net sal 8% 9% 9%

Depreciation and amortization expenst

Insulation $ 10t $ 11€ $ 117

Roofing 38 41 42

Other — — 9
Total Building Materials $ 145 $ 157 $ 16€
NET SALES

2012 Compared to 2011INet sales in our Building Materials segment werg &8llion lower in 2012 than in 2011. Higher saledumes
within our Insulation business were more than affgelower sales volumes in our Roofing business.

In our Roofing business, 2012 net sales were $li8®mlower in 2012 than in 2011. The decline ietrsales was driven primarily by lower
sales volumes, which was partially offset by fabdeanix. In 2012, sales volumes decreased as # tdsudecline in the size of the United
States shingle market compared to 2011, largelyitieg from lower year over year storm demand.iBglprices were slightly lower on a
yearover-year basis.

In our Insulation business, 2012 net sales wer® $illion higher in 2012 than in 2011. The impathaher sales volumes in 2012 was
partially offset by unfavorable mix.

2011 Compared to 201(Net sales in our Building Materials segment wergillion higher in 2011 than in 2010, primarilyelto higher
sales volumes in both our Roofing and Insulatiositesses. Offsetting this increase was the losgtdales from the December 2010
divestiture of our United States Masonry Producisifiess
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In our Roofing business, 2011 net sales were ug $3ftion from 2010. More than twthirds of the increase in net sales was drivenigldr
sales volumes. Increases in selling prices and&ée product mix contributed equally to the renrarincrease in net sales. Sales volumes
increased as a result of greater overall UniteteStshingle demand supported by above normal stotivity. Selling prices were slightly
higher on a year-over-year basis.

In our Insulation business, 2011 net sales wer@S@million from 2010. Substantially all of the iease in net sales was driven by higher
sales volumes. In addition, the increase in nessfibom our July 2011 acquisitions of two FiberTtkKilities was offset by unfavorable
customer mix.

EBIT

2012 Compared to 2011EBIT in our Building Materials segment was $3dliomn lower in 2012 than in 2011. Our Insulationsiness
narrowed EBIT losses on higher sales volumes, &ermanufacturing productivity and improved capatilization; however this was
more than offset by lower sales volumes and irftatiosts within our Roofing business.

In our Roofing business, EBIT was $98 million lovie2012 than in 2011. The decline in EBIT was dnivequally by lower sales volumes
and raw material inflation, primarily asphalt. Rbe year, favorable product mix was offset by sliglower selling prices.

In our Insulation business, we narrowed EBIT logge$59 million in 2012 compared to 2011. Approxtatg $50 million of the increase in
EBIT was the result of manufacturing productivitydamproved capacity utilization. Unfavorable protimix was more than offset by higher
sales volumes and slightly higher selling prices.

2011 Compared to 20LCEBIT in our Building Materials segment was $51lioi higher in 2011 as compared to 2010 primadifiven by
higher sales volumes within the Roofing businessraanufacturing productivity in our Insulation buesss. Also, contributing to this increase
was the favorable impact of our divestiture of th@ted States Masonry Products business in Dece&i.

In our Roofing business, EBIT was $24 million highe2011 than in 2010. Favorable manufacturinglpmntivity drove all of the
improvement in EBIT. For the full year, increaseselling prices were more than offset by inflafiprimarily asphalt. This margin impact
offset nearly all of the benefit of higher salesuvoes.

In our Insulation business, we reduced EBIT logse$5 million in 2011 as compared to 2010. Highades volumes drove substantially all of
the improvement in EBIT. Favorable manufacturingdurctivity offset raw material and delivery inflati. In addition, the launch of
EcoTouch™ was completed during 2011.

OUTLOOK

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Seasonatfyuated Annual Rate (“SAAR”) of United States hagsstarts rose to approximately
900,000 starts versus an annual average in 204gprbximately 780,000 starts. While the recentrimfation on United States housing starts
has been positive, the timing and pace of recogétlie United States housing market remains unicerta

In our Roofing business, we expect the factorshlae driven margins in recent years to continugetver profitability. Uncertainties that
may impact our Roofing margins include competifivieing pressure and the cost and availabilityaesf materials, particularly asphe
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The Company expects our Insulation business toftbér@n an improving U.S. housing market, improvaidcing, and continued operating
leverage. With a seasonally slower start in that fialf, we expect a return to full year profitélgiin 2013. We believe the geographic, pros
and channel mix of our portfolio may continue todarate the impact of any demand-driven variabégociated with United States new
construction.

Corporate, Other and Eliminations

The table below provides a summary of EBIT and eejption and amortization expense for the Corpoftker and Eliminations category
(in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2012 2011 2010
Net precious metal lease expe $ — $— $ 2
Charges related to cost reduction actions andeetiggms (136€) (17) (40)
Acquisition integration and transaction cc — — (13
Gains (losses) on sales of assets and relatedas — 16 (220
Losses related to Hurricane Sar 9 — —
General corporate exper (92) (72) (75)
EBIT $ (236) $ (72 $ (250
Depreciation and amortizatic $ 83 $ 33 $ 3E
EBIT

2012 Compared to 2011n Corporate, Other and Eliminations, EBIT losse2012 were $164 million higher than in 2011. ibgr2012, we
recorded $136 million in charges related to codtiction actions and related items, primarily to ioy@ our competitive position in Europe.
These charges consist primarily of severance aceleated depreciation charges. We also incurredi®n in property damage and related
charges as a result of Hurricane Sandy’s impactiusrRoofing facility in Kearny, New Jersey.

General corporate expense and other increasedm$on in 2012 compared to 2011, primarily reldtto approximately $10 million of
higher nonservice pension costs and approximately $10 millioreduced foreign currency gains. Corporate @aséntive compensation w
approximately $10 million lower on weaker compayfprmance in 2012 compared to 2011, but was offgétigher stock compensation
expense resulting from our company stock perforragmar-over-year. Company-wide cash incentive corsgtion was approximately $20
million lower year-over-year and $30 million lowiyan our target for the year.

2011 Compared to 2010n Corporate, Other and Eliminations, 2011 EBI$des were $178 million lower than in 2010. We réed a $16
million gain on the May 2011 divestiture of our ggareinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil. ecember 2010 we recorded $124 million
in charges related to the divestiture of our Unii¢ates Masonry Products business and the impatrof@ther indefinite-lived intangible
assets. The 2011 charges related to cost redudti@mns and related items were the result of etialganarket conditions in our Insulation
business. In 2010, we took charges associatedasttbns to balance our global Composites capagityuisition integration and transaction
costs were lower in 2011 than in 2010 as integnatiork associated with the 2007 Acquisition was ptated in 2010
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General corporate expense was favorably impacteppyoximately $10 million reduction in incentiverapensation expense and a similarly
sized improvement related to foreign currency gaims losses in 2011 compared to 2010. A portianagntive compensation is dependent
upon our stock price relative to the performancthefcomponents of the S&P 500 Index, which cawedsignificant changes on a year-over-
year basis. Offsetting these improvements was appaiely $10 million increase in n-service pension costs and net increases in other
corporate expenses.

OUTLOOK

In 2013, we expect general corporate expense o gr@approximately $110 to $120 million. The primalriver of the increase is higher
incentive compensation expense commensurate wiitigated levels of performance, partially offsgtdbdecrease in non-service pension
costs.

SAFETY

As of December 31, 2012, we celebrated our eleveorisecutive year of safety improvements. Our ooeiil focus to be a world-class leader
in safety has resulted in a 95 percent reductidRaoordable Incidence Rate (“RIR”) since 2001. Vifagksafely is a condition of employment
at Owens Corning. We believe this organization-waglpectation provides for a safer work environnfenemployees, improves our
manufacturing processes, reduces our costs andiehaur reputation. Furthermore, striving to lveodd-class leader in safety provides a
platform for all employees to understand and apipdyresolve necessary to be a high-performing,ajlotganization. We measure our
progress on safety based on RIR as defined by tiited)States Department of Labor, Bureau of LahkatiSics. Our full year performance
improved 10% in 2012 over our performance in 2011.

LIQUIDITY, CAPITAL RESOURCES AND OTHER RELATED MATT ERS

Liquidity

We have an $800 million senior revolving creditiligcand a $250 million receivables securitizati@tility, which serve as our primary
sources of liquidity. Our senior revolving credicflity matures in July 2016, and our receivabkssusitization facility matures in December
2014. We have no other significant debt maturitiefore 2016. As of December 31, 2012, the recedsabbcuritization facility was fully

utilized and we had $723 million available on teaisr revolving credit facility. As of December 3012, we had $2.1 billion of total debt
and cash-on-hand of $55 million.

Cash and cash equivalents held by foreign subg@dianay be subject to U.S. income taxation upoatrigtion to the U.S. We do not provide
for U.S. income taxes on the undistributed earnafghese subsidiaries as earnings are reinvesidrathe opinion of management, will
continue to be reinvested indefinitely outsideh®f UJ.S. As of December 31, 2012, and December@l,,2ve had approximately $41 milli
and $46 million, respectively, in cash and cashwedents in certain of our foreign subsidiaries véhee consider undistributed earnings for
these foreign subsidiaries to be permanently reitece

We expect our cash on hand, coupled with futurl dasvs from operations and other available sounfd&juidity, including our senior
revolving credit facility, will provide ample liqdity to allow us to meet our cash requirements. &uicipated uses of cash include capital
expenditures, working capital needs, pension doutiins, meeting financial obligations and reduangstanding amounts under the senior
credit facility and the securitization facility. Weve an outstanding share repurchase authorizationvill evaluate and consider
repurchasing shares of our common stock as weliragegic acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventuaad othe
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transactions to create stockholder value and emhimancial performance. Such transactions mayiregash expenditures beyond current
sources of liquidity or generate proceeds.

We are closely monitoring changes in the operatorgdition of our customers for the potential impactour operating results. To date,
changes in the operating condition of our custorhax& not had a material adverse impact on ouratipgrresults; however, it is possible
we could experience material losses in the futucarirent economic conditions worsen.

The credit agreements applicable to our seniorlvéevgp credit facility and the receivables secustipn facility contain various covenants that
we believe are usual and customary for agreeméitese types. The senior revolving credit facitityd the securitization facility each
include a maximum allowed leverage ratio and a mimh required interest expense coverage ratio. We within compliance with these
covenants as of December 31, 2012.

Cash flows

The following table presents a summary of our dadhnce, cash flows, and unused committed crewis|{in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Cash balance $ 55 $ 52 $ 52
Cash provided by operating activiti $ 33C $ 28¢ $ 48¢
Cash used for investing activiti $(25%) $(445)  $(249
Cash provided by (used for) financing activit $ (76) $ 174 $ (750
Unused committed credit lines under the seniorlkévg credit facility $ 728 $ 73¢ $ 94€

Operating activitiesin 2012, we generated $330 million of cash fromrapieg activities compared to $289 million in 20Chash for both
working capital requirements and pension contrimgiwere lower in 2012 than in 2011.

Investing activitiesThe decrease in cash used for investing activii@®d12 compared to 2011 was primarily the resbiteduced capital
expenditures of $332 million in 2012 compared tdZillion in 2011. In 2011, we acquired two NoAmerican Building Materials
facilities for $84 million, which was partially afét by $55 million in proceeds from the sale of Gomposites glass reinforcement facility in
Capivari, Brazil.

Financing activities Cash used for financing activities in 2012 was 8iflion compared to cash provided by financing atigs of $174
million in 2011. In 2012, approximately $600 miliian proceeds generated by the issuance of our 36ar Notes was used primarily to
fund the tender of $250 million of our 2016 Seritmtes, $100 million of our 2019 Senior Notes angdg down our Senior Revolving Cre
Facility. We recognized a $74 million loss on egtilshment of debt in connection with these actidis.also purchased the noncontrolling
interest of one of the Company’s consolidated slibses, Northern Elastomeric Incorporated (“NEf9; $22 million. In 2011, cash provid
by financing activities was primarily a result afrbowings to support our increased working capiglirements and our investing activities.
Offsetting these increases in cash provided bynfiimey activities were share repurcha:
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2013 Investments

Capital ExpendituresThe Company will continue a balanced approacheaie of its cash flow. Operational cash flow wélused to fund
the Company’s growth and innovation. Capital exjtemels in 2013 are expected to be slightly highantdepreciation and amortization,
excluding the investment required to rebuild ouaik® roofing plant (resulting from damage sustaifieth Hurricane Sandy). The Company
will also continue to evaluate projects and acdjoiss that provide opportunities for growth in dursinesses, and invest in them when they
meet our strategic and financial criteria.

Tax Net Operating Losses

Upon emergence and subsequent distribution of mgaitit stock and cash in January 2007, we geneaaiphificant United States federal”
net operating loss of approximately $3.0 billiors éf December 31, 2012, our federal tax net opggdtisses remaining were $2.3 billion.
Our net operating losses are subject to the limitatimposed under section 382 of the Internal RegeCode. These limits are triggered w

a change in control occurs, and are computed hgsau several variable factors including the shaieepf the Company’s common stock on
the date of the change in control. A change inrobiig generally defined as a cumulative chang®0d86 or more in the ownership positions
certain stockholders during a rolling three yeaiquk Our initial three year period for measuringa@avnership change started at October 31,
2006.

In addition to the United States net operatingdestescribed above, we have net operating lossesious state and foreign jurisdictions
which totaled $3.3 billion and $807 million as oé@mber 31, 2012, respectively. Our ability toizgithese net operating losses may be
limited as a result of certain events, such asfiicéent future taxable income prior to expiratiohthe net operating losses or changes in tax
legislation. Should we determine that it is likétyat our recorded net operating loss benefits ateealizable, we would be required to reduce
the net operating loss tax benefits reflected anGansolidated Financial Statements to the neizaale amount by establishing an accour
valuation allowance and recording a correspondiragg@e to current earnings. To date, we have redordiiation allowances against certain
of these deferred tax assets.

Pension contributions

The Company has several defined benefit pensiorsplehe Company made cash contributions of $50amidind $117 million to the plans
during the twelve months ended December 31, 204281, respectively. The decrease in pensionitoitvns in 2012 was driven by low
pension contributions required to maintain our feohdtatus. The Company expects to contribute $8®min cash to its pension plans
during 2013. Actual contributions to the plans nshginge as a result of a variety of factors, inclgdihanges in laws that impact funding
requirements. The ultimate cash flow impact toGenpany, if any, of the pension plan liability ethé timing of any such impact will
depend on numerous variables, including future glaarn actuarial assumptions, legislative changg@ension funding laws, and market
conditions.

Derivatives

In the normal course of business, the Companypssed to, among other risks, the impact of chaimgesmmodity prices, foreign currency
exchange rates and interest rates. To mitigate sdithe near-term volatility in our earnings angltflows, we use financial and derivative
instruments to hedge certain exposures, princigaltyency- and energy-related. The Company doesmtet into such transactions for
trading purposes. Our current hedging practice leetdge a variable percentage of certain energeaedyy-related exposures. Going
forward, the results of our hedging practice cdaddpositive, neutral or negative in any period deliry on price changes in the hedged
exposures, and will tend to mitigate r-term volatility in the



Table of Contents

-34-
ITEM7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
(continued)

exposures hedged. The practice is neither intendedxpected to mitigate longer term exposures.Ngee 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for further discussion.

Our current practice is to manage our interestegposure by balancing the mixture of our fixedd &ariable-rate instruments. We utilize,
among other strategies, interest rate swaps t@eelhis balance in interest rate exposures. Tarereurrently no derivatives outstanding
which are related to balancing our fixed- and Jddéaate instruments.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has entered into limited off-balanceeslarrangements, as defined under Securities xetthBge Commission rules, in the
ordinary course of business. The Company doesaimve these arrangements will have a materiatetfe the Company’s financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenaesxpenses, results of operations, liquidity itedexpenditures or capital resources.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

In the ordinary course of business, the Compangrsiiito contractual obligations to make cash pays® third parties. The Company’s
known contractual obligations as of December 31228re as follows (in millions):

Payments due by period

2018 antc

201: 201¢ 201t 201¢ 2017 Beyond Total

Long-term debt obligations $ 1 $14z2 $ 1 $47: $— $ 1,39¢ $2,01¢
Interest on fixed rate de 11€ 11z 11z 11z 86 892 1,43(
Interest on variable rate debt | 5 5 5 2 — — 17
Capital lease obligatior 3 3 3 4 4 35 52
Operating lease obligatiol 51 40 26 19 13 50 19¢
Purchase obligations (. 124 38 36 22 21 51 292
Deferred acquisition paymer 10 5 — 6 4 — 25
Pension contributions (: 38 62 66 68 44 44 322
Total (4) $34€ $407 $24¢ $70€ $17z $ 2,471 $4,35:

(1) Interest on variable rate debt is calculatadgithe weighted-average interest rate in effeatfddecember 31, 2012 for all future
periods.

(2) Purchase obligations are commitments to sugpl@purchase goods or services, and includedadpay arrangements, capital
expenditures, and contractual commitments to pwseleguipment. We did not include ordinary courseusiness purchase orders in
this amount as the majority of such purchase ondaeng be canceled and are reflected in historicatatng cash flow trends. We do not
believe such purchase orders will adversely affectiquidity position.

(3) The 2013 pension contributions are based amatts the Company currently projects contributimnsur pension plans will be. For
other years presented, contributions represenhthenum amount that the company is required to rtonte to the plan

(4) The Company has not included its accountingufarertainty in income taxes liability in the cattual obligation table as the timing of
payment, if any, cannot be reasonably estimated.bEfance of this liability at December 31, 2012%a9 million.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Our discussion and analysis of our financial caadiand results of operations is based upon ous@iated Financial Statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the United Statbe freparation of these financial
statements requires management to make estimatessanmptions that affect the reported amountss#ta and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafrresvenues and expenses during the
reporting period. On an ongoing basis, managemeaitiates its estimates and judgments related sethssets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses. We believe these estimates to be redsamaler the circumstances. Management basediitsagss and judgments on historical
experience, expected future outcomes, and on \adther factors that are believed to be reasonatder the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis for making judgments aboutdeying values of assets and liabilities thatresereadily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

We believe that the following accounting estimatess critical to our financial results:

Tax Estimates The determination of our tax provision is compleredo operations in several tax jurisdictions aléshe United States. We
apply a more-likely-than-not recognition threshfidall tax uncertainties. Such uncertainties idelany claims by the Internal Revenue
Service for income taxes, interest, and penaltieatable to audits of open tax years.

In addition, we record a valuation allowance touaalour deferred tax assets to the amount thaelieve is more likely than not to be
realized. We estimate future taxable income ancttfeet of tax planning strategies in our consitleraof whether deferred tax assets will
more likely than not be realized. In the event wazemto determine that we would not be able tozeadil or part of our net deferred tax assets
in the future, an adjustment to reduce the netrdedetax assets would be charged to earnings ipghied such determination was made.
Conversely, if we were to determine that we wouddhble to realize our net deferred tax asseteiffiutiure in excess of their currently
recorded amount, an adjustment to increase theefietred tax assets would be credited to earnmgsei period such determination was
made.

Impairment of Asse. The Company exercises judgment in evaluating agsetmpairment. Goodwill and other indefinite-lidéntangible
assets are tested for impairment annually, or vdirenmstances arise which indicate there may benpairment. Long-lived assets are tested
for impairment when economic conditions or manag@rdecisions indicate an impairment may exist. €htests require comparing recorded
values to estimated fair values for the assets rurdéew.

The Company has recorded its goodwill and condutetsting for potential goodwill impairment at a ogfing unit level. Our reporting units
represent a business for which discrete finanofakination is available and segment managementadgueviews the operating results.
There are nine reporting units within the Compamiyty over 90% of the goodwill recorded in two refiog units within the Building
Materials operating segment.

Gooduwill testing is performed in accordance withG\850-20 which allows a company to perform qualitatesting prior to the two-step
impairment testing. See Note 1 to the Consolid&iedncial Statements for further discussion. Godidests require assessing qualitative
factors to determine that a reporting unit’s cargyvalue would be more-likely-than-not to excesddir value. In the event we were to
determine that a reporting unit’'s carrying valuandobe more-likely-than not to exceed its fair \glguantitative testing would be performed
comparing recorded values to estimated fair val
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As part of our goodwill qualitative testing proces® evaluate various factors to determine wheathereasonably likely that management’s
assessment would indicate a material impact ofeih@alue of a reporting unit. Factors assessdtiémgualitative approach are cash flow
forecasts of our reporting units, the strengthwflmalance sheet, changes in strategic outlookgamzational structure, industry and market
changes and macroeconomic indicators. The cashffieasts of the reporting units are based upamagement’s long-term view of our
markets and are the forecasts that are used byrsaanagement and the Board of Directors to evalopérating performance. The strength
of our balance sheet is sufficient in our view teanour obligations. Management changes in stataglook or organizational structure are
our view on internally driven strategic or orgati@aaal changes that would have a material impacttoresults of operations or product
offerings. Industry and market changes are our viewhanges outside of our company that would lavaterial impact to our results of
operations or product offerings. Macroeconomicdatbrs are our view of economic conditions that Mdwave a material impact on future
cash flow forecasts. For the testing performeddb2 we concluded that there were no reasonaldyylithanges that would materially imp
the fair value of a reporting unit. However, chamgestrategic outlook by management on the besblithe company’s asset portfolio or
decreases in the Company’s long-term view for dmyuo reporting units could increase the likelihafdecognizing an impairment charge in
the future.

Our annual test of goodwill for impairment was coaigtd as of October 1, 2012, which concluded tbakeporting units were more-likely-
than-not to having a carrying value in excessofdtr value, and thus, no impairment charges begngired.

Generally, when performing goodwill quantitativettag, fair values are estimated using a discouossth flow approach unless
circumstances indicate that a better estimateiot&ue is available. Significant estimates in tfigcounted cash flow approach are cash flow
forecasts of our reporting units, the discount,rdite terminal business value and the projecteanirgctax rate. The cash flow forecasts of the
reporting units are based upon management’s lamg-teew of our markets and are the forecasts tteatiaed by senior management and the
Board of Directors to evaluate operating perforneafihe discount rate utilized is management’s edérof what the market’'s weighted
average cost of capital is for a company with alaintlebt rating and stock volatility, as measubgdeta. The projected income tax rates
utilized are the cash tax rates that a prospebtiyer would most likely factor into a fair valud@aation for each reporting unit. Key factors
considered are the statutory rate for the countviesre each reporting unit operates and the impiéatien of a reasonable level of income
planning strategies. The terminal business valdetisrmined by applying a business growth factdh#¢olatest year for which a forecast
exists. As part of our goodwill quantitative tegtiprocess, we would evaluate whether there aremehdy likely changes to management'’s
estimates that would have a material impact omghelts of the goodwill impairment testing.

For the testing performed in 2012, we assessedtafivgd factors and we concluded that there areemasonably likely changes that would
materially impact the fair value of a reportingtusad thus, no quantitative testing being requiktalvever, changes in strategic outlook by
management on the best use of the company’s amgfilip or decreases in the Company’s long-terewfor any of our reporting units
could increase the likelihood of recognizing an @anment charge in the future.

Other indefinite-lived intangible assets are thenpany’s trademarks. Fair values used in testing@ential impairment of our trademarks
are calculated by applying an estimated marketevedyalty rate to the forecasted revenues of tiséniesses that utilize those assets. The
assumed cash flows from this calculation are distamliusing the Company’s weighted average cosaital.

Fair values for long-lived asset testing are cal®d by estimating the undiscounted cash flows fiteenuse and ultimate disposition of the
asset or by estimating the amount that a willingdtparty would pay. For impairme
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testing, long-lived assets are grouped at the Iblegsl for which identifiable cash flows are lalgadependent of the cash flows of other
groups of assets and liabilities. We group longdivassets based on manufacturing facilities treatymre similar products either globally or
within a geographic region. Management tests agseips for potential impairment whenever eventshanges in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable. Cunmntket conditions have caused the Company to liieeapacity. We consider such idled
capacity to be unimpaired because there has natdsignificant change in the forecasted long-teash flows at the asset group level to
indicate that the carrying values may not be reahe. While managemestturrent strategy is to utilize this capacity teaetnexpected futu
demand, any significant decrease in this expectaicchange in management’s strategy could restiiture impairment charges related to
this excess capacity. We evaluated and concludedhbre are not any reasonably likely changesaioagement’s estimates that would
indicate that the carrying value of our long-liveskets is unrecoverable.

In addition, changes in management intentions, atartinditions, operating performance and otherlamgircumstances could affect the
assumptions used in these impairment tests. Chamgles assumptions could result in impairment gearthat could be material to our
Consolidated Financial Statements in any giveropleri

Pensions and Other Postretirement Bene. Accounting for pensions and other postretiremenglits involves estimating the cost of bene
to be provided well into the future and attributthgt cost over the time period each employee wdrksaccomplish this, extensive use is
made of assumptions about investment returns, diggates, inflation, mortality, turnover, and nedicosts. Changes in assumptions used
could result in a material impact to our ConsokdbFinancial Statements in any given period.

Two key assumptions that could have a significamact on the measurement of pension liability agrspn expense are the discount rate
and the expected return on plan assets. For aggdaiplan, the United States plan, the discouatuséd for the December 31, 2012
measurement date was derived by matching projdxrdfit payments to bond yields obtained from tbe/d@rs Watson proprietary United
States RATE:Link 40-90 pension discount curve deyedl as of the measurement date. The Towers Whitsited States RATE:Link 40-90
pension discount curve is based on certain corpdrands rated Aa whose weighted average yieldgitien the 400 to 90 percentiles of th
bonds considered. Corporate bonds are treatedras Aa or better generally if at least half of theilable ratings are Aa or better as
determined by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, Fitch &aiminion Bond Rating Services. The result supgbaeliscount rate of 3.80% at
December 31, 2012 compared to 4.60% at Decemb@031, A 25 basis point increase (decrease) inligemunt rate would decrease
(increase) the December 31, 2012 projected bestafgation for the United States pension plans figraximately $38 million. A 25 basis
point increase (decrease) in the discount rate dvdetrease (increase) 2013 net periodic pensidrbgapproximately $0.5 million.

The expected return on plan assets in the Unita:Splan was derived by taking into considerati@ntarget plan asset allocation, historical
rates of return on those assets, projected fuiset&lass returns and net outperformance of thketlay active investment managers. We
the target plan asset allocation because we retmtaur portfolio to target on a quarterly basis.asset return model was used to develop an
expected range of returns on plan investments @26 year period, with the expected rate of resatected from a best estimate range within
the total range of projected results. This processlted in the selection of an expected return®¥% at the December 31, 2012
measurement date, which is used to determine migidepension cost for the year 2013. This assionps .25% higher and .25% lower tt
the 7.25% return selected at the December 31, 80d17.75% return selected at the December 31, 2@H3urement dates, respectively. /
basis point increase (decrease) in return on Eaets assumption would result in a respective dser@ncrease) of 2013 net periodic pension
cost by approximately $2 millioi
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The discount rate for our United States postretinginplan was selected using the same method astobtor the pension plan. The result
supported a discount rate of 3.50% at Decembe2@I2 compared to 4.35% at December 31, 2011. Aa8Ipoint increase (decrease) ir
discount rate would decrease (increase) the Uitates postretirement benefit obligation by apprately $6 million and decrease (incree
2013 net periodic postretirement benefit cost Isg nan $1 million.

The methods corresponding to those described amevesed to determine the discount rate and expeetiegrn on assets for nahS. pensio
and postretirement plans, to the extent applicable.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting StandardaiBidssued updated guidance on the periodic tesfiirglefinitedived intangible assets fi
impairment. The updated guidance gives compangsykion to perform a qualitative assessment terdenhe whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of their indefinitexed intangible assets are less than its carrgimgunt and, thus, whether further impairment tgss
necessary. The updated accounting guidance igigldor fiscal years beginning after September2(8,2, with early adoption permitted.
The Company believes there will be no impact frbm adoption of this standard on its Consolidatedf¢ial Statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

We have been deemed by the United States Envirdiairferotection Agency to be a Potentially Respdedtarty (“PRP”) with respect to
certain sites under the Comprehensive Environm&eaponse Compensation and Liability Act. We hdse been deemed a PRP under
similar state or local laws and in other instarmméer PRPs have brought suits against us as a&RBritribution under such federal, state, or
local laws. At December 31, 2012, we had envirortaleemediation liabilities as a PRP at 19 sitegmghwe have a continuing legal
obligation to either complete remedial actions antdbute to the completion of remedial actionpag of a group of PRPs. For these sites we
estimate a reserve to reflect environmental libdithat have been asserted or are probable eitiass in which liabilities are probable and
reasonably estimable. At December 31, 2012, o@rvesfor such liabilities was $7 millio
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT CONCERNING FORWARD-LOOKING STA TEMENTS

Our disclosures and analysis in this report, inclgdvlanagemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &®esults of Operatior
contain forward-looking statements within the megnof Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 &mtion 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934. Forward-looking statemenésent our current forecasts and estimates of fetweats. These statements do not

strictly relate to historical or current resultslazan be identified by words such as “anticipateélieve,” “estimate,” “expect,” “i

intend,”
“likely,” “may,” “plan,” “project,” “strategy,” “will” and other terms of similar meaning or importdonnection with any discussion of future

operating, financial or other performance. Thesw#&wd-looking statements are subject to risks, taggies and other factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from #hpsojected in the statements. These risks, unogemand other factors include, without
limitation:

» economic and political conditions, including newgitation or other governmental actio

» levels of residential and commercial constructiotivity;

e competitive factors

» pricing factors;

» weather conditions

» our level of indebtednes

* industry and economic conditions that affect thekaband operating conditions of our customerspbers or lenders

» availability and cost of raw materia

e availability and cost of credi

* interest rate movement

» issues related to expansion of our production agpe

e issues related to acquisitions, divestitures amd j@ntures

» our ability to utilize our net operating loss cdoryvards;

» achievement of expected synergies, cost reductind&r productivity improvement

e issues involving implementation of new businessesys;

» foreign exchange fluctuation

» research and development activiti

« difficulties in managing production capacity; e

* labor disputes
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All forward-looking statements in this report shebble considered in the context of the risk andrdidetors described above and as detailed
from time to time in the Company’s Securities angliange Commission filings. Any forward-lookingtstaents speak only as of the date
the statement is made and we undertake no obligadiapdate or revise any forward-looking statememhether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise. It is possible to identify all of the risks, uncertaistend other factors that may affect future
results. In light of these risks and uncertaintiee,forward-looking events and circumstances dised in this report may not occur and actual
results could differ materially from those antidigd or implied in the forward-looking statementscArdingly, users of this report are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on the fatvi@oking statements.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

The Company is exposed to the impact of chang&séign currency exchange rates, interest rategtangrices of various commaodities ut

in the normal course of business. To mitigate sofitee near-term volatility in our earnings anditllews, the Company manages certain of
our exposures through the use of certain finardatracts, contracts for physical delivery of atipatar commodity, and derivative financial
instruments. The Company’s objective with thesg¢rimsents is to reduce exposure to fluctuationsaimiags and cash flows. The Company’s
policy enables the use of foreign currency, interate and commaodity derivative financial instrungeonly to the extent necessary to manage
exposures as described above. The Company doesteotinto such transactions for trading purposes.

A discussion of the Company’s accounting policiesderivative financial instruments, as well as @@mpany’s exposure to market risk, is
included in the Notes to the Consolidated Finanstatements.

For purposes of disclosing the market risk inheneits derivative financial instruments the Compaises sensitivity analysis disclosures that
express the potential loss in fair values of mar&td sensitive instruments resulting from charnigésterest rates, foreign currency exchange
rates, and commaodity prices that assume instan@nearallel shifts in exchange rates, interest yald curves, and commodity prices. The
following analysis provides such quantitative im@tion regarding market risk. There are certaintsbmings inherent in the sensitivity
analyses presented, primarily due to the assumfimtrexchange rates change instantaneously ahihtéigest rates change in a parallel
fashion. In addition, the analyses are unablefteatthe complex market reactions that normallyuldaarise from the market shifts modeled.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

The Company has foreign currency exposures retatbdying, selling, and financing in currenciesestthan the local currencies in which it
operates. The Company enters into various forwandracts, which change in value as foreign currenahange rates change, to preserv
carrying amount of foreign currency-denominated#sdiabilities, commitments, and certain antitgobforeign currency transactions.
Exposures are primarily related to the US Dollaisus the Japanese Yen, Chinese Yuan, Canadiam, dédaican Peso, and European Euro
exchange rates. The net fair value of financiaruments used to limit exposure to foreign currensly was approximately $(2) million and
$1 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 respaygt The potential change in fair value at bothcBmber 31, 2012 and 2011 for such
financial instruments from an increase (decreab&D% in quoted foreign currency exchange ratesldvba an increase (decrease) of
approximately $18 million and $3 million, respeetiy.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company is subject to market risk from exposomehanges in interest rates due to its finandimggsting, and cash management
activities. The Company has a revolving creditlfagireceivables securitization facilit
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other floating rate debt and cash and cash equitsalehich are exposed to floating interest ratesraay impact cash flow. As of
December 31, 2012, the Company had $73 million$H million outstanding on the senior revolvingdit facility and account
securitization facility, respectively, with the bate of other floating rate debt of $7 million. ésDecember 31, 2011, the balance of the
senior term loan facility, and other floating rdiebt was $136 million, and $158 million, respediiv€ash and cash equivalents were $55
million and $52 million at December 31, 2012 and R(0respectively. A one percentage point incredseréase) in interest rates at both
December 31, 2012 and 2011 would increase (degreas@nnual net interest expense for each pesdsRmillion.

The fair market value of the Compasysenior notes are subject to interest rate risk.dstimated that at December 31, 2012, a oreeptg!
point increase (decrease) in interest rates walddréase) increase the fair market value of thesmbie in 2016 by 4%, the notes due in 2019
by 7%, the notes due in 2022 by 6% and the notesrd2036 by 13%. At December 31, 2011, it wasvestiéd that a one percentage point
increase (decrease) in interest rates would dexi@asease) the fair market value of the notesid@916 by 4%, the notes due in 2019 by
6% and the notes due in 2036 by 13%.

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is exposed to changes in prices of cmitids used in its operations, primarily assodatéth energy, such as natural gas, and
raw materials, such as asphalt and polystyrene Cidmepany enters into cash-settled natural gastrieiée and crude oil swap contracts to
protect against changes in natural gas and eneiggsgghat mature within 15 months; however, nariicial instruments are currently used to
protect against changes in raw material costs. étebnber 31, 2012 and 2011, the net fair value i swap contracts was a liability of
approximately $1 million and $3 million, respectiveThe potential change in fair value at Decenier2012 and 2011 resulting from an
increase (decrease) of 10% change in the underbgngmodity prices would be an increase (decredsa)mroximately $3 million and $2
million, respectively. This amount excludes theseffing impact of the price risk inherent in thegzgibal purchase of the underlying
commodities
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Pages 47 through 90 of this filing are incorpordtete by reference.

ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

The Company has nothing to report under this Item.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

The Company maintains (a) disclosure controls andgalures (as such term is defined in Rules 13a}#5(d 15d-15(e) under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, (the “Exchange Act”)), anflifternal control over financial reporting (as kuerm is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act).

The Company’s management, with the participatiothefCompany’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiafdficial Officer, has evaluated the
effectiveness of the Compasytisclosure controls and procedures as of theoktite period covered by this report. Based on swehuation
the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer have concluded that, as of the englioh period, the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

A report of the Company’s management on the Companternal control over financial reporting is ¢aimed on page 45 hereof and is
incorporated here by reference. Pricewaterhouse&€edgp P’s report on the effectiveness of interraitcol over financial reporting is
included in the Report of Independent Registerdali®éccounting Firm beginning on page 46 hereof.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company aged its enterprise resource planning system ferobits businesses as part of its overall
information technology strategy. The system chamge not made in response to any deficiency in t@@any’s internal controls. There
were no other changes in the Comparigternal controls over financial reporting thaiterially affected, or are reasonably likely to em&tly
affect, the Company’s internal controls over finahceporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

The Company has nothing to report under this I
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ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Information with respect to directors and corpogadgernance will be presented in the 2013 ProxteStant in the sections entitled
“Information Concerning Directors,” “Governance dnfnation” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial OwnershigpRrting Compliance,” and such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information with respect to executive officersnsluded herein under Part |, “Executive Officerafens Corning.”
Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Owens Corning has adopted an Ethics Policy for {Hxecutive and Senior Financial Officers that &pto our Chief Executive Officer,
Chief Financial Officer and Controller. The Compdras filed this policy as an exhibit to this Ann&adport on Form 10-K.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information regarding executive officer and direatompensation will be presented in the 2013 P&tatement under the section entitled
“Executive Compensation,” exclusive of the subsecéntitled “Compensation Committee Report,” areldbction entitled “2012 Non-
Employee Director Compensation,” and such infororats incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Information regarding security ownership of certa@meficial owners and management and related lsbbadr matters, as well as equity
compensation plan information, will be presentethm2013 Proxy Statement under the sections etiecurity Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Securitiath@rized for Issuance Under Equity Compensatiam®l' and such information is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS, RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIR ECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Information regarding certain relationships andétexd transactions and director independence wilirbsented in the 2013 Proxy Statement
under the sections entitled “Certain Transactioitk Related Persons,” “Review of Transactions ViReidated Persons,” “Director
Qualifications Standar” and“Director Independenc” and such information is incorporated herein bynafee.
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The aggregate accounting fees billed and serviaesded by the Company’s principal accountantstlieryears ended December 31, 2012
and 2011 are as follows (in thousands):

2012 2011
Audit Fees (1) $4,65: $4,617
Audit-Related Fees (¢ 15 37
Tax Fees 45( 427
All Other Fees (3 25¢ 21F
Total Fees $5,37¢ $5,29¢

(1) Amounts shown reflect fees for the years ended ibbee 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivi
(2) The fees relate primarily to review of the Comf’s required franchise disclosure documents in 20022811,
(3) Amounts shown include fees related primarily to diligence work in 2012 and 201

It is the Company’s practice that all services jmed the Company by its independent registeredipabktounting firm be prapproved eithe
by the Audit Committee or by the Chairman of thed&AlCommittee pursuant to authority delegated leyAldit Committee. No part of the
independent registered public accounting firm sewirelated to the Audit-Related Fees, Tax Feesll @ther Fees listed in the table above
was approved by the Audit Committee pursuant teetteamption from pre-approval provided by paragrém(v)(i)(C) of Rule 2-01 of
Regulation -X.
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(2) DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPOF

1. See Index to Consolidated Financial Statementsage g8 hereo

2.  See Index to Financial Statement Schedules on Jagaereof

3.  See Exhibit Index beginning on page 110 her

Management contracts and compensatory plans aadlgaments required to be filed as an exhibit puntsisaForm 10-K are denoted in the
Exhibit Index by an asterisl**").
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Section 13i)lof the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, thgi&eant has duly caused this report to be

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

OWENS CORNING

By /s/ Michael H. Thaman
Michael H. Thamar
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeeuf¥ficer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of

the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

/sl Michael H. Thaman

Michael H. Thaman

Chairman of the Board, Preside
Chief Executive Officer and Direct

/sl Michael C. McMurray
Michael C. McMurray
Senior Vice President ar
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OWENS
CORNING

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbfy and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting as such term is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underSeeurities Exchange Act of 1934.

Management has assessed the effectiveness of thpa@g’s internal control over financial reportirgg@ December 31, 2012 based on the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsorimg&hizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOhtarhal Control-Integrated
Framework.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has audited the effawdiss of the internal controls over financial répgras of December 31, 2012 as stated
in their Report of Independent Registered PublicdAmting Firm on page 46 hereof.

Based on our assessment, management determingdgiuditDecember 31, 2012, the Company’s intermatrol over financial reporting was
effective.

/s/ Michael H. Thaman Date February 20, 20:
Michael H. Thaman
President and Chief Executive Offic

/sl Michael C. McMurray Date February 20, 20:
Michael C. McMurray
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Ow€oming:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzdasheets and the related consolidated statemfesdsrongs (loss), comprehensive
earnings (loss), stockholders’ equity and cashdglpvesent fairly, in all material respects, thaficial position of Owens Corning and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2012 and 2011, anck¢hits of their operations and their cash floarsefach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2012 in conformity with accaugnfirinciples generally accepted in the UnitedeStatf America. In addition, in our
opinion, the financial statement schedule listethaindex appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presexitly fin all material respects, the
information set forth therein when read in conjumeiwith the related consolidated financial statataeAlso in our opinion, the Company
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveinal control over financial reporting as of DecemB1, 2012, based on criteria established in
Internal Control- Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission (COSO). The
Company’s management is responsible for thesediahstatements and financial statement schedatenéintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assasat of the effectiveness of internal control dfieancial reporting, included in
Management’s Report on Internal Control over FimgrReporting. Our responsibility is to expressmgins on these financial statements, on
the financial statement schedule, and on the Coypanternal control over financial reporting basmdour integrated audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with the standards oPtltdic Company Accounting Oversight Board (UnitedtSs). Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasoreddarance about whether the financial statemeatse®e of material misstatement and
whether effective internal control over financieporting was maintained in all material respects:. &idits of the financial statements
included examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgahe amounts and disclosures in the finarst@aiements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made dyagement, and evaluating the overall financiaéstant presentation. Our audit of
internal control over financial reporting includeldtaining an understanding of internal control dugncial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaduthie design and operating effectiveness of ivalecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslas we considered necessary in the circumstaMeebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(iiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the companysats that could have a material effect on thentiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods afgect to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L
Toledo, Ohio
February 20, 201
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS (LOSS)
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
NET SALES $5,17: $5,33¢ $4,991
COST OF SALES 4,37¢ 4,307 4,041
Gross margir 797 1,02¢ 95€
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Marketing and administrative expent 50¢ 52t 51€
Science and technology expen 79 77 7€
Charges related to cost reduction acti 51 — 29
Other expenses (income), 1 10 (35 12¢
Total operating expens 64¢ 567 75C
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES 14¢ 461 20¢€
Interest expense, n 114 10¢€ 11C
Loss on extinguishment of de 74 — —
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES (40 358 96
Less: Income tax expense (bene (28) 74 (840
Equity in net earnings of affiliate (4) 2 4
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) (16) 281 94(
Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrollintgiests 3 5 7
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING $ (199 $ 27¢ $ 93¢
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OBNS CORNING COMMON
STOCKHOLDERS
Basic $(0.1¢) $ 2.2t $ 7.4:
Diluted $(0.1¢) $ 2.2¢ $ 7.37
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES
Basic 119.¢ 122.t 125.¢
Diluted 119. 123.t 126.¢

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtéements are an integral part of this Staten
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS (L OSS)

(in millions)
Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
NET EARNINGS (LOSS) $ (16) $ 281 $ 94C
Currency translation adjustme 5 (39 26
Pension and other postretirement adjustment (nietxodf $(27), $(22) and $(35) for the periods

ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respgot (56) (80) (36€)
Deferred income (loss) on hedging (net of tax qf§Q) and $0 for the periods ended December 31,

2012, 2011 and 2010, respective 2 (2 2
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS (LOSS) (65) 16C 93z
Less: Comprehensive earnings attributable to nanalting interests 3 5 8
COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS (LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING $ (68 $ 15 $ 924

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinaBt&dements are an integral part of this Staten
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel

(in millions)

Receivables, less allowances of $17 at Dec. 312 268 $15 at Dec. 31, 20

Inventories
Other current asse
Total current asse

Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible asset
Deferred income taxe
Other nor-current assel

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Shor-term debi
Long-term debt current portior

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current portic

Pension plan liability

Other employee benefits liabili

Deferred income taxe

Other liabilities

OWENS CORNING STOCKHOLDEFR EQUITY
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per shar
Common stock, par value $0.01 per share
Additional paid in capita
Accumulated earning
Accumulated other comprehensive det
Cost of common stock in treasury

Total Owens Corning stockhold’ equity

Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

(&) 10 shares authorized; none issued or outstandibg@t31, 2012 and Dec. 31, 2C
(b) 400 shares authorized; 135.6 issued and 118.3a0disg at Dec. 31, 2012; 134.4 issued and 1208anding at Dec. 31, 20:

(c) 17.3 shares at Dec. 31, 2012 and 13.5 shares aBDe2011

Dec. 31

2012

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtéements are an integral part of this Staten

Dec. 31

2011




Table of Contents

Balance at December 31, 20C

Comprehensive earning
Net earning:
Currency translation adjustme
Pension and other postretirement adjustment
of tax)
Deferred gain on hedging transactions (net of
Total comprehensive earnin
Changes in subsidiary shares from noncontrolling
interests
Stock issuanc
Purchases of treasury stc
Stocl-based compensatic
Balance at December 31, 201

Comprehensive earning
Net earnings
Currency translation adjustme
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Pension and other postretirement adjustment (net

of tax)
Deferred gain on hedging transactions (net of
Total comprehensive earnin
Changes in subsidiary shares from noncontrolling
interests
Stock issuanc
Purchases of treasury stc
Stocl-based compensatic
Balance at December 31, 201

Comprehensive earning
Net earnings
Currency translation adjustme
Pension and other postretirement adjustment
of tax)
Deferred loss on hedging transactions (net of
Total comprehensive earnin
Purchase of subsidiary shares from noncontrolling
interests
Stock issuanc
Purchases of treasury stc
Stocl-based compensatic

Balance at December 31, 201

(a) Additional Paid in Capital*APIC")

(in millions)
Common Stock Treasury Accumulated
Outstanding Stock
Earnings
Shares Par Value Shares Cost APIC (a) (Deficit) AOCI (b) NCI (c) Total
127.¢ $ 1 4.8 $(104) $ 3,841 $ (739) $ (189 $ 33 $2,85¢
— — — — — 93¢ — 7 94C
— — — — — — 25 1 26
— — — — — — (36) — (36)
— — — — — — 2 — 2
93z
— — — — 3 — — ©) —
0.1 3 3
4.9 — 4.5 (125) — — — — (125)
015 — — — 23 — — — 23
124.] $ 1 9.2 $(229) $ 3,87¢ $ 194 $ (199 $ 38 $3,68¢
_ — — — — 27¢ — 5 281
_ _ _ _ — — (39 = (39
— — — — — — (80) — (80)
— — — — — — ) — (&)
16C
— - — - — — - €) €)
0.1 — — 10 — — — 10
4.2) — 4.2 (139 — — — — (139)
0.€ — — — 21 — — — 21
120.¢ $ 1 13.t $(362) $ 3,901 $ 47C $ (31§ $ 40 $3,741
— — — — — (29 — 3 (16)
— — — — — — 5 — 5
— — — — — — (56) — (56)
— — — — — — 2 — 2
(69)
_ — — — (16) — — (6) (22)
015 — — — 11 — — — 11
(3.9) — 3.8 (119) — — — — (119)
0.7 — — — 23 — — — 23
118.2 $ 1 17.2 $(475) $ 3,92¢ $ 451 $ (369 $ 37 $3,57¢

(b) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings (Def{*AOCI")

(c) Noncontrolling Interest*NCI")

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinaBt&dements are an integral part of this Staten
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)

NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIE:
Net earnings (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) tdgasvided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic
(Gain) loss on sale of businesses and fixed a
Asset impairment
Deferred income taxe
Provision for pension and other employee benééitslities
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Other nor-cash
Loss on extinguishment of de
Change in working capit:
Pension fund contributio
Payments for other employee benefits liabili
Other
Net cash flow provided by operating activit
NET CASH FLOW USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIE!
Additions to plant and equipme
Investment in subsidiaries and affiliates, netadtcacquire:
Proceeds from Hurricane Sandy insurance cli
Proceeds from the sale of assets or affili
Net cash flow used for investing activiti
NET CASH FLOW PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) FINANCING ACVITIES
Proceeds from senior revolving credit and receisiskecuritization facilitie
Payments on senior revolving credit and receivakdesiritization facilitie!
Proceeds from lor-term debt
Payments on lor-term debt
Purchases of noncontrolling inter:
Net increase (decrease) in siterm debt
Purchases of treasury stc
Other
Net cash flow provided by (used for) financing wities
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD
DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for income ta
Cash paid during the year for inter

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2012 2011 2010
$ (16 $ 281 $ 94C
34¢ 31¢ 32C
a7 (30 2

6 — 117

(59 55 (867)
36 36 26

24 21 23
(14) (22 (19
74 — —

9 (262) 15

(50 (117 (32
(22) (29) (26)
10 33 (11
33C 28¢ 48¢
(332 (442) (319
_ (84) _
20 — —

59 81 65
(259 (445 (249
1,871 1,912 631
(1,959 (1,630 (619)
59¢ 6 5
(447) (20 (609)
(22) — (30)
(23 26 (20
(113 (13¢) (220
4 8 2

(76) 174 (750

2 (18) (1)

3 — (512)

52 52 564

$ 55 $ 52 $ 52
$ 30 $ 24 $ 16
$ 122 $ 111 $ 10¢

The accompanying Notes to the Consolidated FinhBtéements are an integral part of this Staten
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES

Description of Business

Owens Corning, a Delaware corporation, is a leadiobal producer of glass fiber reinforcements athebr materials for composite systems
and of residential and commercial building matstidhe Company operates within two segments: Coitgsosvhich includes the Compasy’
Reinforcements and Downstream businesses; andiBgiMaterials, which includes the Company'’s Insiolat Roofing, and Other
businesses. Through these lines of business, OGeaming manufactures and sells products worldwldte Company maintains leading
market positions in all of its major product categs.

Basis of Presentation

Unless the context requires otherwise, the termsei@® Corning,” “Company,” “we” and “our” in thispert refer to Owens Corning and its
subsidiaries.

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statentemts been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the
United States.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Compaitude the accounts of majority-owned subsidisrintercompany accounts and
transactions are eliminated.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to th& 20 2010 Consolidated Financial Statements arieésNo the Consolidated Financial
Statements to conform to the classifications use2Dil 2.

Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith accounting principles generally acceptethie United States requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affeceff@ted amounts of assets and liabilities and aisce of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the redamounts of revenues and expenses during theingpperiod. Actual results could differ
materially from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when title and risk of lasssgo the customer. Provisions for discounts ahdtes to customers, returns, warranties
and other adjustments are provided in the samedgé#rat the related sales are recorded and ard badaistorical experience, current
conditions and contractual obligations, as appl&ab

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes material, labor, energyraadufacturing overhead costs, including depreaiadiod amortization expense associated
with the manufacture and distribution of the Compsaiproducts. Distribution costs include inbounéifht costs; purchasing and receiving
costs; inspection costs; warehousing costs; shipgid handling costs, which include costs incuretgting to preparing, packaging, and
shipping products to customers; and other costiseo€Company’s distribution network. All shippingdahandling costs billed to the customer
are included as net sales in the ConsolidatedrSéates of Earnings (Loss
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

Marketing and Administrative Expenses

Marketing and administrative expenses includersglind administrative costs, including depreciatind amortization expense, not directly
associated with the manufacture and distributiothefCompany’s products.

Included in marketing and administrative expenseswaarketing and advertising costs, which are espanhe first time the advertisement
takes place. Marketing and advertising costs irekdvertising, substantiated customer incentivgnaras, and marketing communications.
Marketing and advertising expenses for the yeade@mecember 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010 were $10®mi$105 million and $111
million, respectively.

Science and Technology Expenses

The Company incurs certain expenses related toseiend technology. These expenses include salbtidding and equipment costs,
utilities, administrative expenses, materials amgpties associated with the improvement and dewedon of the Company’s products and
manufacturing processes. These costs are expesseclared.

Earnings (Loss) per Share

Basic earnings (loss)per share are computed ustnge¢ighted-average number of common shares odistaduring the period. Diluted
earnings (loss)per share reflect the dilutive ¢ftdcommon equivalent shares and increased statwould result from the conversion of
equity securities. The effects of anti-dilution a presented.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company defines cash and cash equivalentshsoa time deposits with original maturities ae#hmonths or less when purchased.

Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thedgada@mount and do not bear interest. The allowtoragoubtful accounts is an estimate of
the amount of probable credit losses in our exgstiocounts receivable. Account balances are chafjedainst the allowance when the
Company believes it is probable the receivable moli be recovered.

Inventory Valuation

Inventory costs include material, labor, and maaufidang overhead costs, including depreciation amdrtization expense associated with
manufacture and distribution of the Company’s patsluinventories are stated at lower of cost orketaralue. Cost is determined by the first-
in, first-out (“FIFO”) method.

Investments in Affiliates

The Company accounts for investments in affiliate20% to 50% ownership when the Company does aet la controlling financial intere
using the equity method under which the Compausfiare of earnings of the affiliate is reflecte@arnings and dividends are credited agi
the investment in affiliate when declar
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill assets are not amortized but are testethfpairment on at least an annual basis. In tmeeotiyear, the Company used a qualitative
approach to determine whether it was more likenthot that the fair value of a reporting unit Wess than its carrying amount.

As part of our goodwill qualitative testing proces® evaluate various factors to determine wheathemreasonably likely that management’s
assessment would indicate a material impact ofeih@alue of a reporting unit. Factors assessdtiérgualitative approach are cash flow
forecasts of our reporting units, the strengthwflmalance sheet, changes in strategic outlookgamzational structure, industry and market
changes and macroeconomic indicators. If this agsest indicates the possibility of impairment, ith@ome approach to test for goodwill
impairment would be used unless circumstancesaelithat a better estimate of fair value was abkglarhis review is performed annually,
or when circumstances would arise which indicaéeghmay be impairment. When applying the incomeaaah, the Company would
perform a discounted cash flow analysis basedsoexjpectations of future net earnings from eacbrtag unit. Significant assumptions used
would include projected cash flows, discount rptejected income tax rate and terminal busineasevaihese inputs are considered Level 3
inputs under the fair value hierarchy as they heeGompany’s own data, and are unobservable imtr&etplace. See Note 5 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for further dismn.

Other indefinitelived intangible assets are not amortized butestet for impairment on at least an annual basighen determined to have
finite useful life. Substantially all of the indefte-lived intangible assets are in trademarksteamte names. The Company uses the royalty
relief approach to determine whether it is moreliitkhan not that the fair value of these assdtssisthan its carrying amount. This review is
performed annually, or when circumstances arisehvindicate there may be impairment. When applytregroyalty relief approach, the
Company performs a discounted cash flow analysiedan the value derived from owning these tradksramd trade names and being
relieved from paying royalty to third parties. Siggant assumptions used include projected cashd]aliscount rate, projected income tax
rate and terminal business value. These inputsarsidered Level 3 inputs under the fair valuedrigy as they are the Compasigwn date
and are unobservable in the marketplace.

Identifiable intangible assets with a determinaisieful life are amortized over that determinalfie INmortization expense for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $2bm#22 million and $21 million, respectively. Sdete 5 to the Consolidated Finan
Statements for further discussion.

Properties and Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at caktiapreciated over their estimated useful livesguflie straight-line method. Property, plant
and equipment accounts are relieved of the costelattd accumulated depreciation when assetsgesid of or otherwise retired. Preci
metals used in our production tooling are inclugtegroperty, plant and equipment and are depletetiey are consumed during the
production process. Depletion typically represamsnnual expense of less than 3 percent of thetamating value and is recorded in cost of
sales on the Consolidated Statements of EarnimyssjLFor the years ended December 31, 2012, 2a@l2@10 depreciation expense was
$328 million, $296 million and $299 million, respisely.
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

The range of useful lives for the major componenfithe Company’s plant and equipment is as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improveme 15-40 year
Machinery and equipme
Furnace: 4-15 year
Information system 5-10 year
Equipment 5-20year

Expenditures for normal maintenance and repairegpensed as incurred.

Asset Impairments

The Company exercises judgment in evaluating td@gibd intangible long-lived assets for impairmdiitis requires significant assumptions
including projected cash flows, projected incomertte and terminal business value. These inpetsa@msidered Level 3 inputs under the
value hierarchy as they are the Company’s own datdare unobservable in the marketplace. Changesmagement intentions, market
conditions or operating performance could indi¢htg impairment charges might be necessary thatddmrimaterial to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements in any giveropleri

Income Taxes

The Company recognizes current tax liabilities assets for the estimated taxes payable or refuadabthe tax returns for the current year.
Deferred tax balances reflect the impact of temyyodéferences between the carrying amount of asaed liabilities and their tax basis.
Amounts are stated at enacted tax rates expectalitoeffect when taxes are actually paid or reced. In addition, realization of certain
deferred tax assets is dependent upon our alligeherate future taxable income. The Company dscwvaluation allowance to reduce its
deferred tax assets to the amount that it beliesvewre likely than not to be realized. In addititle Company estimates tax reserves to covel
potential taxing authority claims for income taxe®l interest attributable to audits of open taxgea

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Govement Authorities and Taxes Paid to Vendors

Taxes are assessed by various governmental aigbaitdifferent rates on many different typesrahsactions. The Company charges sales
tax or Value Added Tax (“VAT") on sales to custom&rere applicable, as well as capture and clatk bl available VAT that has been
paid on purchases. VAT is recorded in separatelpjaya receivable accounts and does not affectrueer cost of sales line items in the
income statement. VAT receivable is recorded asraegmtage of qualifying purchases at the time #raor invoice is processed. VAT
payable is recorded as a percentage of qualifyahgssat the time an Owens Corning sale to a custeuigect to VAT occurs. Amounts are
paid to the taxing authority according to the mdthad collection prescribed by local regulationfiéfé applicable, VAT payable is netted
against VAT receivable. The Company also pays gale® vendors who include a tax, required by goweent regulations, to the purchase
price charged to the Company.

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits

Accounting for pensions and other postretiremenelits involves estimating the cost of benefitbéoprovided well into the future and
attributing that cost over the time period each legge works. To accomplish this, extensive useas@nof assumptions about investment
returns, discount rates, inflation, mortality, tover and medical cost
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIN G POLICIES (continued)

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company recognizes all derivative instrumeastsither assets or liabilities at fair value onltlaéance sheet. To the extent that a
derivative is effective as a cash flow hedge, thenge in fair value of the derivative is deferreéiccumulated other comprehensive deficit
(“OCI"). Any portion considered to be ineffective fieported in earnings immediately. To the extieat & derivative is effective as a fair value
hedge, the change in the fair value of the dereas offset by the change in the fair value ofiteen being hedged in the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss). See Note 4 to thes@imlated Financial Statements for further disicunss

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of the Company’s subsiéisiis generally the applicable local currency. £saad liabilities of foreign subsidiaries
are translated into United States dollars at thimgeend rate of exchange, and their StatemenEaanfings (Loss) and Statements of Cash
Flows are converted on an ongoing basis at the mhpaterage rate. The resulting translation adjesinis included in accumulated OCI in
the Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidaggdrs¢nts of Stockholders’ Equity. Transaction gaims losses that arise from exchange
rate fluctuations on transactions denominateddareency other than the functional currency aréuihed in the Consolidated Statements of
Earnings (Loss) as incurred. The Company recordede#gn currency transaction loss of $3 milliorgain of $5 million and a loss of $8
million during the years ended December 31, 2002,12and 2010, respectively.

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two reportable segments: Compasit8uilding Materials. Accounting policies foeteegments are the same as thos
the Company. The Company’s two reportable segnaetsefined as follows:

Composites eomprised of our Reinforcements and Downstreamrmlessies. Within the Reinforcements business, thep@oynmanufactures,
fabricates and sells glass reinforcements in tha faf fiber. Within the Downstream business, therpany manufactures and sells glass f
products in the form of fabrics, mat, veil and athpecialized products.

Building Materials— comprised of our Insulation and Roofing businesgéghin the Insulation business, the Company mactufas and sells
fiberglass insulation into residential, commerdiadlustrial and other markets for both thermal aodustical applications. It also manufact
and sells glass fiber pipe insulation, energy &ffitflexible duct media and foam insulation use@love- and below-grade construction
applications. Within the Roofing business, the Campmanufactures and sells residential roofingghmand oxidized asphalt materials t
in residential and commercial construction and gigcapplications
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

NET SALES

The following table summarizes our net sales byrssg and geographic region (in millions). Exterciagtomer sales are attributed to
geographic region based upon the location from lwthie product is shipped to the external customer.

Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010

Reportable Segmen

Composites $1,85¢ $1,97¢ $1,90¢
Building Materials 3,48 3,531 3,24:
Total reportable segmer 5,341 5,51: 5,14¢
Corporate elimination (169 (17¢) (152)
NET SALES $5,17: $5,33¢ $4,99
External Customer Sales by Geographic Re
United State: $3,50¢ $3,55: $3,231
Europe 55¢€ 61¢ 573
Asia Pacific 63¢ 674 67¢
Canada and oth 471 49C 51F
NET SALES $5,172 $5,33¢ $4,997
Sales by Product Grot
Composites $1,85¢ $1,97¢ $1,90¢
Insulation 1,46¢ 1,36¢ 1,30¢
Roofing 2,01¢ 2,16¢ 1,847
Other — — 87
Corporate Elimination (169) (17¢) (152)
NET SALES $5,17: $5,33¢ $4,997

EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXES

Earnings before interest and taxes (“EBIT”) by seghtonsists of net sales less related costs grehegs and are presented on a basis that i
used internally for evaluating segment performa@mrtain items, such as general corporate expemsasome and certain other expense or
income items, are excluded from the internal e@naf segment performance. Accordingly, thesmgere not reflected in EBIT for our
reportable segments and are included in the Caipdaher and Eliminations catego
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following table summarizes EBIT by segmentniions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010

Reportable Segmen
Composites $ 91 $201 $ 17¢
Building Materials 293 332 281

Total reportable segmer $ 384 $53¢ $ 45¢€
Corporate, Other and Eliminatio
Net precious metal lease expe $ — $— $ (2
Charges related to cost reduction actions andelitgéms (a (13¢) a7 (40)
Acquisition integration and transaction cc — — a3
Gains (losses) on sales of assets and relatedeshé) — 16 (220
Losses related to Hurricane Sar 9 — —
General corporate exper (92) (72) (75)
EBIT $ 14¢ $461 $ 20€

(a) For 2012, 2011, and 2010, includes $51 milli&hmillion, and $29 million of charges relatecctust reduction actions and $85 million,
$17 million, and $11 million of other related iter

(b) The gains (losses) on sales of assets an@édethtarges for 2011 includes $16 million gain de s& Capivari, Brazil facility and for
2010 includes $114 million charge related to tHe eaMasonry Products and $10 million of assetampents.
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

TOTAL ASSETS AND PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT BY G EOGRAPHIC REGION

The following table summarizes total assets by ssgrand property, plant and equipment by geogragggion (in millions):

Dec. 31,

TOTAL ASSETS 2012 2011
Reportable Segmen
Composite $2,412  $2,471
Building Materials 3,89¢ 3,87¢

Total reportable segmer $6,31C  $6,34¢
Reconciliation to consolidated total ass
Cash and cash equivale $ 55 $ 52
Deferred income taxe 604 53¢
Investments in affiliate 51 55
Corporate property, plant and equipment and otbsste 54& B¢
CONSOLIDATED TOTAL ASSETS $7,56¢ $7,521
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT BY GEOGRAPHIC REGION
United State: $1,46C  $1,48]
Europe 57€ 61:
Canade 22¢€ 21¢€
Asia Pacific 272 26E
Other 36¢ 322
TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT $2,90: $2,90¢

PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION

The following table summarizes the provision fopaiation and amortization by segment (in milljpns

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2012 2011 2010

Reportable Segmen
Composites $ 122 $ 12¢ $ 117
Building Materials 142 157 16¢
Total reportable segmer $ 26€ $ 28t $ 28t
General corporate depreciation and amortizatiol $ 83 $ 38 $ 35
CONSOLIDATED PROVISION FOR DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZ ATION $ 34¢ $ 31¢ $ 32C

(&) 2012 includes $55 million of accelerated depregiatelated to cost reduction actic
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

ADDITIONS TO PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table summarizes additions to propgpstant and equipment by segment (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Reportable Segmen
Composites $ 167 $ 25€ $ 152
Building Materials 127 151 13¢
Total reportable segmer $ 294 $ 407 $ 29C
General corporate additiol 38 35 24
CONSOLIDATED ADDITIONS TO PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIP MENT $ 332 $ 442 $ 314
3. INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of the following (in millions):
__Dec.31,
2012 2011
Finished goods $554 $597
Materials and supplie 232 19¢
Total inventories $78€ $79E

4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to, among other risksntipaét of changes in commodity prices, foreign quryeexchange rates, and interest rates
in the normal course of business. The Companyksmianagement program is designed to manage theeseand volatility arising from
these risks, and utilizes derivative financial instents to offset a portion of these risks. The Gany uses derivative financial instruments
only to the extent necessary to hedge identifiexdinmss risks, and does not enter into such transador trading purposes.

The Company generally does not require collatarakioer security with counterparties to these foianinstruments and is therefore subject
to credit risk in the event of nonperformance; hegrethe Company monitors credit risk and curredtgs not anticipate nonperformance by
other parties. Contracts with counterparties gdiyerantain right of offset provisions. These prsieins effectively reduce the Company’s
exposure to credit risk in situations where the @any has gain and loss positions outstanding witingle counterparty. It is the Company’s
policy to offset on the Consolidated Balance Sh#etsamounts recognized for derivative instrumeuits any cash collateral arising from
derivative instruments executed with the same @rparty under a master netting agreement. As oéber 31, 2012 and 2011, the
Company did not have any amounts on deposit wighodiits counterparties, nor did any of its coupteties have any amounts on deposit
with the Company
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4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The following table presents the fair value angbeesive location of derivatives and hedging instemits on the Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions):

Fair Value at
Dec. 31 Dec. 31

Location 2012 2011
Derivative assets designated as hedging instrumen
Cash flow hedge:
Natural gas and electrici Other current asse $ — $ 1
Amount of gain recognized in OCI (effective portjc OCl $ — $ 1
Derivative liabilities designated as hedging instrments:
Cash flow hedge:
Natural gas and electricity Accounts payable an
accrued liabilities $ 1 $ 4
Amount of loss recognized in OCI (effective pori OClI $ 1 $ 4
Derivative assets not designated as hedging instrumts:
Foreign exchange contrau Other current asse $ 1 $ 2
Derivative liabilities not designated as hedging istruments:
Natural gas Accounts payable an
accrued liabilities $ — $ 1
Foreign exchange contracts Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities $ 3 $ 1



Table of Contents

-66-
OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following table presents the impact and respeddcation of derivative activities on the Condated Statements of Earnings (Loss) (in
millions):

Twelve Months
Ended Dec. 31,

Location 2012 2011 2010
Derivative activity designated as hedging instrumets:
Natural gas and electricit
Amount of loss reclassified from OCI into earnir{gffective portion’ Cost of sale: $ £ $ 4 $ €
Interest rate swap
Amount of loss recognized in earnings (ineffecipogtion) Interest expens
net $— $ 2 $ 4
Derivative activity not designated as hedging instrments:
Natural gas and electricit
Amount of (gain) loss recognized in earnings Other (income)
expenses, ne $— $ @ $ 1
Foreign currency exchange contré
Amount of loss (gain) recognized in earnings (a) Other (income)
expenses, ne $ 17 $(149 $ (2

(a) (Gains)/losses related to foreign currenaywdéves were substantially offset by net revalmaimpacts on foreign denominated
balance sheet exposures, which were also recond®thier (income) expenses, r

Cash Flow Hedges

The Company uses forward and swap contracts, wjalify as cash flow hedges, to manage forecastpdserre to natural gas and
electricity prices. The effective portion of theaclye in the fair value of cash flow hedges is detkim accumulated OCI on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and is subsequently recognizedstroteales on the Consolidated Statements of &gsr(Loss) for commodity hedges, wi
the hedged item impacts earnings. Changes in thediae of derivative assets and liabilities desitgd as hedging instruments are shown in
other within operating activities on the ConsolathStatement of Cash Flows. Any portion of the gean fair value of derivatives designe
as hedging instruments that is determined to bieictéve is recorded in other (income) expensethenConsolidated Statements of Earnings
(Loss).

The Company currently has natural gas derivatiessgthated as hedging instruments that mature withimonths. The Company’s policy is
to hedge up to 75% of its total forecasted expastoethe next two months, up to 50% of its totaktasted natural gas exposures for the
following four months, and lesser amounts for #a@aining periods. Based on market conditions, agar@ariation from the standard policy
may occur. The Company performs an analysis facéffeness of its derivatives designated as hedgstguments at the end of each quarter
based on the terms of the contract and the underityém being hedged.

As of December 31, 2012, $1 million of losses ideld in OCI on the Consolidated Balance Sheetser&datontracts that will impact earnir
during the next 12 months. Transactions and evbatsare expected to occ
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4. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
over the next 12 months that will necessitate raizigg these deferred losses include the recogndfdhe hedged item through earnings.

Fair Value Hedges

The Company manages its interest rate exposuralaypding the mix of its fixed and variable ratetinments at certain times through inte|
rate swaps. The swaps are carried at fair valueeratded as other assets or liabilities, withdfigset to long-term debt on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Changes in the fair value of theaps and that of the related debt are recordedarest expense, net on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss). In the fourth quart®011, the Company terminated all existing ies¢ rate swaps.

Other Derivatives

The Company uses forward currency exchange coatrachanage existing exposures to foreign exchasgeelated to assets and liabilities
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. @ath{sses resulting from the changes in fair vafubese instruments are recorded in
other expenses (income), net on the Consolidat@igents of Earnings (Loss).

5. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets and goodwill consist of the feitg (in millions):

Weighted
Gross Net
Average Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Useful
Dec. 31, 201 Life Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizable intangible assel
Customer relationshif 19 $  16¢ $ (58) $ 111
Technology 20 19¢ (64) 134
Franchise and other agreeme 15 37 (14 23
Indefinite-lived intangible asset:
Trademark: 7717 — 777
Total intangible asse $ 1,187 $ 136) $ 1,04
Goodwill $ 1,14
Weighted
Gross Net
Average Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Useful
Dec. 31, 201 Life Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizable intangible assel
Customer relationshir 19 $ 17¢ $ (48) $ 12z
Technology 20 204 (54) 15C
Franchise and other agreeme 15 36 (12 24
Indefinite-lived intangible asset:
Trademarks 771 — 771
Total intangible asse $ 1,18 $ (119 $ 1,07¢

Goodwiill $ 1,14«
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The changes in the net carrying amount of goodwilkegment are as follows (in millions):

Building
Composite: Materials Total
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 57 $ 1,087 $1,14¢«
Foreign currency adjustmer (1 — (1
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 56 $ 1,087 $1,14%

Other Intangible Assets

The Company expects the ongoing amortization ex@pfarsamortizable intangible assets to be $21 onilln each of the next five fiscal yee
The Company'’s future cash flows are not materiafipacted by its ability to extend or renew agreetmeelated to our amortizable intangible
assets.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

The Company tests goodwill and indefinite-livedamgible assets for impairment as of October 1 gaah, or more frequently should
circumstances change or events occur that woule titagly than not reduce the fair value of a rejpgriunit below its carrying amount. The
annual test performed in 2012 resulted in no impeirt of goodwill.

6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foltma(in millions):

Dec. 31 Dec. 31

2012 2011
Land $ 22z $ 221
Buildings and leasehold improveme 78¢ 727
Machinery and equipme 3,22: 2,93
Construction in progres 147 26€
4,381 4,14¢
Accumulated depreciatic (1,479 (1,249
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 2,908 $ 2,90¢

Machinery and equipment includes certain precioatais used in the Company’s production tooling,afdgomprise approximately 18% and
20% of total machinery and equipment as of DecerBlheP012 and December 31, 2011, respectivelyi®reenetals used in our production

tooling are depleted as they are consumed durmgrtbduction process, which typically representaramual expense of less than 3% of the

outstanding carrying value.

7. CHANGES IN NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

In the third quarter of 2012, the Company execatpdrchase agreement for the remaining noncomtgpititerest of Northern Elastomeric
Incorporated“NEI"), one of the Compar's consolidated subsidiaries. A
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7. CHANGES IN NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS (continued)

result of the purchase agreement, NEI became dywbwhed subsidiary of the Company, with the Compproviding $22 million in cash
consideration. The transaction resulted in a $@anibecrease in Noncontrolling interests on thegididated Balance Sheets.

In the second quarter of 2009, the Company exeaneamended shareholder agreement with the nomdorgrinterest of Owens-Corning
(India) Limited, now known as Owens-Corning (Indijvate Limited (“OCIL"), one of the Company’s cwlidated subsidiaries. This
agreement included a put/call provision outsidecthtrol of the company that was exercised in 2010.

The following table discloses the changes in notrelimg interests on Owens Corning stockholdergliey and effects on net earnings
attributable to Owens Corning (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 201(

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Corl $(19) $27¢€ $93:z
Increase (decrease) in Owens Corning additiondl ipacapital for NEI purchase agreem (16 — —
Increase (decrease) in Owens Corning additional ipacapital for OCIL shareholder —

amendmen — 3
Change from net earnings (loss) attributable to @w@orning and change in noncontrolling

interests $(35) $27€ $93¢€

8. INVESTMENTS IN AFFILIATES

At December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company’s ovaiepercentage in affiliates, which generally angaged in the manufacture of fibrous
glass and related products for the insulation, waoson, reinforcements, and textile markets, udeld:

Dec. 31,
2012 2011
Arabian Fiberglass Insulation Company, Ltd. (S&\mdibia) 49% 49%
Fiberteq LLC (United State: 50% 50%
Neptco LLC (United State: 50% 50%

The following tables provide summarized financrgbrmation on a combined 100% basis for the Comisaaffiliates accounted for under
the equity method (in millions):

Dec. 31,
201; 2000
Current assets $ 53 $ 57
Non-current assel $ 85 $71
Current liabilities $ 22 $ 17

Non-current liabilities $ 24 $ 19
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Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Net sales $ 14C $ 142 $ 131
Gross margir $ 11 $ 14 $ 14
Net earning: $ 5 $ 5 $ 7

Dividends received from entities accounted for uride equity method were less than $1 million far years ended 2012, 2011 and 2010.
There were no undistributed earnings of affilidtasthe year ended December 31, 2012.

9. ACQUISITIONS

On July 31, 2011, the Company completed the adopnsiof FiberTEK Insulation West, LLC, an insutatimanufacturing operation located
in Nephi, Utah and FiberTEK Insulation, LLC, anufetion manufacturing operation located in Lakeldfdrida (the “Acquisitions”) from
third parties unrelated to the Company (“the SelletAs part of the Company'’s global growth stratethhese acquisitions strengthen its
position as a market leader in the loosefill insatamarket. Operating results of these manufaoctufacilities are included in the Company’s
Building Materials segment within the Consolidakédancial Statements beginning August 1, 2011.

The Company provided total consideration that h&aravalue of $105 million at the acquisition dat®tal consideration that the Company
provided for the Acquisitions consisted of cashmawts of $84 million to the Sellers on July 31, 20dnd $25 million in deferred payments
starting in 2013 through 2018. The deferred paysare recorded at their net present value of $2iomin other liabilities on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Values of assets acquired and liabilities assurhétbadate of the acquisitions include: $37 milliorproperty, plant and equipment and other
assets; $3 million in intangible assets; $6 milliorworking capital and $59 million in goodwill. €pro-forma effect of these acquisitions on
revenues and earnings was not material to the enmlnths ended December 31, 2011.

10. DIVESTITURES

On May 18, 2011, the Company sold its Compositasgteinforcements facility in Capivari, Brazil@hongqging Polycomp International
Company (“CPIC"), an unrelated third party. At dfags the Company received $55 million in cash am@dditional $6 million was placed
into escrow to satisfy any potential adjustmentslaims. The escrow period expired and the fund®wemitted to Owens Corning during
fourth quarter of 2012. The sale and subsequentatiqn of the escrow period resulted in a $16 ignilland $6 million gain, respectively,
which is recorded in other expenses (income),m#ié Consolidated Statements of Earnings (L0sS).

On December 31, 2010, the Company sold its UnitateS Masonry Products business (“Masonry ProdutdasBoral Industries Ltd, an
unrelated third party. At closing, the Company reeé $45 million and will receive an additional $##llion in 2014. The $45 million to be
received in 2014 was recorded at its net presdanevaf $40 million in noncurrent assets on the @tidated Balance Sheets. Additionally,
Company could receive contingent proceeds in 2@&k&db on 2013 financial performance of the formesday Products business. The
Company will maintain an interest in the former Miayy Products business until the second paymesteived. Masonry Products was a
component of the Compa’s Building Materials segmer
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11. LEASES

The Company leases certain equipment and facilitieter operating leases expiring on various datesigh 2028. Some of these leases
include cost-escalation clauses. Such cost-esoalekiuses are recognized on a straight-line loagisthe lease term. Total rental expense
was $79 million, $74 million and $70 million in tiyears ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 201@atésgly. At December 31, 2012, the
minimum future rental commitments under non-caraelaperating leases with initial maturities grediban one year payable over the
remaining lives of the leases are (in millions):

Minimum
Future Rental

Period Commitments
2013 $ 51
2014 $ 4C
2015 $ 2€
2016 $ 19
2017 $ 13
2018 and beyon $ 5C
12. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consigheffollowing (in millions):
Dec. 31,
201 2011
Accounts payable $49€ $48€
Payroll and vacation pe 11t 13C
Payroll, property, and other tax 98 104
Other employee benefits liabilitit 40 43
Warranties (current portiol 20 17
Legal and audit fee 11 10
Accrued interes 11 8
Charges related to cost reduction acti 45 2
Other 59 74
Total $897  $87¢

13. WARRANTIES

The Company records a liability for warranty obtigas at the date the related products are solfushtients are made as new information
becomes available. A reconciliation of the warrdraility is as follows (in millions):

Dec. 31,
2012 2011
Beginning balance $ 38 $ 38
Amounts accrued for current ye 24 19
Settlements of warranty clair _(2)1) (19

Ending balanc 41 38
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14. COST REDUCTION ACTIONS
2012 Cost Reduction Actions

As a result of evaluating market conditions, wektaotions to improve the competitive position of global manufacturing network by
closing certain facilities primarily in Europe atpwith other actions that align with our objectivieghe region. In conjunction with these
actions, the Company recorded $136 million in changlated to cost reduction actions and relagedstfor the twelve months ended 201z
which, $51 million is related to severance anchcduded in charges related to cost reduction ast@nthe Consolidated Statements of
Earnings (Loss) and $85 million is related to ottigarges. The $85 million of other charges is idelliin cost of sales on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss) and consist of $#omin accelerated depreciation and $30 milliorother related charges. Cash payments
related to these activities are expected to coatthtough 2015.

Composites

The Company recorded $131 million in charges rdl&tecost reduction actions and related itemsHertivelve months ended 2012; of which
$49 million is related to severance costs and $Bimis related to other charges. The $82 millafrother charges consist of $55 million in
accelerated depreciation and $27 million in otledated charges. Of the $131 million in total chargd20 million related to actions taken in
Europe to improve the competitive position of olabgl manufacturing network and the remaining $illion related to other global actions
taken in the fourth quarter of 2012.

The Company anticipates incurring approximately 8ifion in additional charges throughout 2013 tethto these actions, of which
approximately $2 million will be presented as clergelated to cost reduction actions on the Catessi@ld Statements of Earnings (Loss).

Building Materials

In the first quarter of 2012, the Company’s actioesulted in $5 million in charges, comprised ofi§ilion in severance costs and $3 million
of other charges.

The following table summarizes the status of theaih liabilities from the Company’s 2012 cost refilut actions (in millions):

Ending
Beginning Balance
Cumulative
Balance Dec. 31
Dec. 31, Costs Charges
2011 Incurred Payments 2012 Incurred
Severance $ — $ 51 $ 6 $ 45 $ 51
Total $ — $ 51 $ 6 $ 45 $ 51

2010 Cost Reduction Actions

As part of the Company’s continuing review of itamfacturing network, actions were taken during®t@ilfurther balance global capacity
and respond to market conditions. No charges ktlat¢hese actions were incurred during the tweteaths ended December 31, 2012.
During the twelve months ended December 31, 20E0Company recorded $40 million in charges rel&ietiese cost reduction actions and
related items; of which $29 million related to seree and are presented in charges related toathsttion actions on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss) and $11 million eeldb accelerated depreciation expense and aredextiin cost of sales on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (Loss). Payments relatduege actions have all been paid as of Decemb&03P.



Table of Contents

-73-
OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

15. DEBT

Details of the Company’s outstanding long-term debtas follows (in millions):

Dec. 31 Dec. 31

2012 2011
6.50% senior notes, net of discount, due 2016 $ 40C $ 64¢
9.00% senior notes, net of discount, due 2 247 34¢

4.20% senior notes, net of discount, due 2 59¢ —
7.00% senior notes, net of discount, due 2 54( 54(C
Accounts receivable securitization facility, mangyiin 2014 141 15¢
Senior revolving credit facility, maturing in 20. 73 13€
Various capital leases, due through and beyond 52 55
Various floating rate debt, maturing through 2! 2 3
Other fixed rate debt, with maturities up to 20a6rates up to 11.0¢ — 8
Fair value adjustment to de 26 39
Total lon¢-term debi 2,08( 1,93¢
Less- current portior 4 4
Long-term debt, net of current portic $ 2,07¢ $ 1,93(

Senior Notes

The Company issued $600 million of 2022 Senior Nate October 17, 2012. The proceeds of these m@msused to refinance $250 million
of our 2016 Senior Notes, $100 million of our 2Beénior Notes and pay down our Senior Revolving [Efeatility. Interest on the notes is
payable semiannually in arrears on June 15 andrbleeel5 each year, beginning on June 15, 2013.

The Company issued $350 million of 2019 Senior Nate June 3, 2009. On October 31, 2006, we iss68d fiillion of 2016 Senior Notes
and $540 million of 2036 Senior Notes. The procesfdhese notes were used to pay certain unseamegddministrative claims, finance
general working capital needs and for general aateqourposes.

The Senior Notes described above are collectivaflyrred to as the “Senior Notes”. The Senior Natesgeneral unsecured obligations of the
Company and rank pari passu with all existing artdré senior unsecured indebtedness of the Compéeynotes will be fully and
unconditionally guaranteed by each of our curredt faiture domestic subsidiaries that is a borroeveguarantor under our Credit Agreement
(as defined below). The guarantees will be unsecang will rank equally in right of payment witH ather existing and future senior
unsecured indebtedness of the guarantors. Thergeaswill be effectively subordinated to existargl future secured debt of the guarantors
to the extent of the assets securing that indebtsdn

The Company has the option to redeem all or patti@Senior Notes at any time at a “make whosglemption price. The Company is sub
to certain covenants in connection with the issearfdhe Senior Notes that it believes are usudlcastomary. The Company was in
compliance with these covenants as of Decembe2(BI12.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company terngdatdll existing interest rate swaps. The swaps wanged at fair value and recorded as
other assets or liabilities, with a fair value adinent to long-term debt on the Consolidated Ba&aiweets. The fair value adjustment to debt
will be amortized through 2016 as a reduction teriast expense in conjunction with the maturityedztthe notes
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Senior Credit Facilities

In July 2011, the Company amended the Senior RengRredit Facility to extend the maturity to J@916 and reduce the pricing. The
available principal amount of $800 million on then®r Revolving Credit Facility includes both bamiags and letters of credit. Borrowings
under the Senior Revolving Credit Facility may Isedifor general corporate purposes and workingalaphe Company has the discretior
borrow under multiple options, which provide foryiag terms and interest rates including the Uni¢aktes prime rate or LIBOR plus a
spread.

The Senior Revolving Credit Facility contains vaisaccovenants, including a maximum allowed leveragie and a minimum required
interest expense coverage ratio that the Compaisvbe are usual and customary for a senior unedatredit agreement. The Company was
in compliance with these covenants as of Decembge?@12.

The Company had $4 million and $42 million of lestef credit outstanding under the Senior Revolvingdit Facility at December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively.

Receivables Securitization Facility

Included in long-term debt on the Consolidated BeéaSheets are amounts outstanding under a Rele=i\Rilrchase Agreement (the
“RPA"). Owens Corning Sales, LLC and Owens Corritggeivables LLC, each a subsidiary of the Comphaye a $250 million RPA with
certain financial institutions. The securitizati@eility was amended on December 16, 2011 to exteaulirity to December 2014. At
December 31, 2012, the Company utilized the fulbant permitted under the terms of the receivaldesritization facility. The Company
had $37 million of letters of credit outstandinglenthe receivables securitization facility at Daber 31, 2012. There were no letters of
credit outstanding under the receivables secutitizdacility at December 31, 2011.

The receivables securitization facility containsi®as covenants, including a maximum allowed legereatio and a minimum required
interest expense coverage ratio that the Compadigvbe are usual and customary for a securitizdteility. The Company was in
compliance with these covenants as of Decembe2(BIL2.

Owens Corning Receivables LLC’s sole business stssi the purchase or acceptance through capitatibutions of trade receivables and
related rights from Owens Corning Sales, LLC aredghbsequent retransfer of or granting of a secumtiérest in such trade receivables and
related rights to certain purchasers party to tR& ROwens Corning Receivables LLC is a separata legtity with its own separate creditors
who will be entitled, upon its liquidation, to batisfied out of Owens Corning Receivables LLC'seés$rior to any assets or value in Owens
Corning Receivables LLC becoming available to Ow@osing Receivables LLG’equity holders. The assets of Owens Corning Ralblkss
LLC are not available to pay creditors of the Compar any other affiliates of the Company or Ow@usning Sales, LLC
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Debt Maturities

The aggregate maturities for all long-term dehtéssfor each of the five years following Decemhbkr2)12 and thereafter are presented in
the table below (in millions). The maturities atated at total cash the Company is contractualligated to pay third parties and are not
stated net of discount. The effects of the interatgt swap are not included in the table below.

Period Maturities
2013 $ 4
2014 14¢
2015 4
2016 477
2017 4
2018 and beyon 1,43¢
Total $ 2,06¢

Short-Term Debt

At December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, short-borrowings were 5 million and 28 million, respreely. The short-term borrowings
for both periods consisted of various operatingdiof credit and working capital facilities. Centaif these borrowings are collateralized by
receivables, inventories or property. The borrowfauglities are typically for one-year renewablents. The weighted average interest rate on
all short-term borrowings was approximately 4.5%December 31, 2012 and 7.4% for December 31, 2011.

16. PENSION PLANS

The Company is committed to providing a competithemefit package to employees. On August 31, 200@obmpany elected to reorganize
its postemployment benefit package, by which themm@any enhanced its 401(k) Plan and froze the UiStates Pension Plan for all salaried
employees and a significant portion of hourly ergpkes, effective January 1, 20:
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The following tables provides a reconciliation bétchange in the projected benefit obligation,ciienge in plan assets and the net amount
recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheethoye¢ars ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (irons)li

Dec. 31, 201. Dec. 31, 201.
U.S. Non-U.S Total U.S. Non-U.S, Total
Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior
Benefit obligation at beginning of perit $1,10¢ $ 502 $1,60¢ $1,05( $  48¢ $1,53¢
Service cos 9 5 14 9 5 14
Interest cos 49 23 72 53 25 78
Actuarial loss 111 34 14~ 81 18 9¢
Currency (gain) los — 16 16 — (7) @)
Benefits paic (87) (23 (120 (87) (22) (20¢)
Settlements / Curtailmen — (6) (6) (@D} 3 4)
Other — 2 2 — (2) 2
Benefit obligation at end of peric $1,181 $ 554 $1,741 $1,10¢ $ 50z $1,60¢
Change in Plan Assets
Fair value of assets at beginning of pel $ 812 $ 36C $1,17:2 $ 767 $ 364 $1,131
Actual return on plan asse 99 40 13¢ 38 1 3¢
Currency gain (loss — 12 12 — (5) (5)
Company contribution 32 18 50 94 23 117
Benefits paic (87) (23 (110 (87) (21) (109¢)
Settlement: — 3 (3 — (2) (2)
Fair value of assets at end of per $ 85€ $ 404 $1,26( $ 81z $ 36C $1,17:
Funded statu $(33) $ (150 $(48) $(299 $ (14 % (43¢
Dec. 31, 201: Dec. 31, 201:
Non- Non-
u.S. U.S. Total U.S. U.S. Total
Amounts Recognized in the Consolidated Balance Shis:
Prepaid pension co $— $ 1 $ 1 $— $ 4 $ 4
Accrued pension co- current — 2 2 — () )
Accrued pension co~ nor-current (331 (149) (480) (299 (142) (435)
Net amount recognize $(331) $(150) $(481) $(293) $(143) $(43€)

Amounts Recorded in Accumulated OCI
Net actuarial los $(39¢6) $ (95 $(492) $(347) $ (82 $(429)
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The following table presents information about phejected benefit obligation, accumulated benddfligation (“ABO”) and plan assets of the
Company’s pension plans (in millions):

Dec. 31, 201: Dec. 31, 201:
Non- Non-

u.S. U.sS. Total u.S. U.S. Total

Plans with ABO in excess of fair value
of plan assets

Projected benefit obligatic $1,18: $511 $1,69¢ $1,10¢ $50C $1,60¢
Accumulated benefit obligatic $1,18: $487 $1,67¢ $1,10¢ $44z $1,547
Fair value of plan asse $ 85€ $36¢ $1,221 $ 812 $354 $1,16¢
Plans with fair value of assets irexcess of ABO
Projected benefit obligatic $ — $43 $ 43 $ — $ 3 $ 3
Accumulated benefit obligatic $ — $33 $ 33 ¢ — $ 3 $ 3
Fair value of plan asse $ — $38 $ 3¢ ¢ — $ 6 $ 6
Total projected benefit obligatic $1,187  $554  $1,741  $1,10¢  $50:  $1,60¢
Total accumulated benefit obligatis $1,18: $52(C $1,707 $1,10¢ $44¢ $1,55(
Total plan asset $ 85€ $404 $1,26( $ 812 $36( $1,17:

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Oblition

The following table presents weighted average apions used to determine benefit obligations attieasurement dates noted:

Dec. 31,
201z 2011

United States Plar

Discount rate 3.8(% 4.6(%

Expected return on plan ass 7.5(% 7.25%
Non-United States Plar

Discount rate 4.1(% 4.65%

Expected return on plan ass 6.13% 7.25%

Rate of compensation incree 3.5(% 3.75%
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Components of Net Periodic Pension Cost

The following table presents the components ofeeiodic pension cost for the periods noted (iHiomk):

Twelve Months
Ended Dec. 31,
201z 2011 201C

Service cost $ 15 $ 14 $ 14
Interest cos 72 78 78
Expected return on plan ass (86) 92 (87)
Amortization of actuarial los 29 15 3
Curtailment/settlement gain — —
@
Net periodic benefit cot $ 30 $ 16 $ 7
Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Net PeriodRension Cost
The following table presents weighted-average apsioms used to determine net periodic pension dosthe periods noted:
Twelve Months
Ended Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010

United States Plar

Discount rate 4.6(% 5.3(% 5.8(%

Expected return on plan ass 7.25% 7.7%% 8.0(%

Rate of compensation incree N/A (a) N/A (a) N/A (a)
Non-United States Plar

Discount rate 4.65% 5.21% 5.41%

Expected return on plan ass 7.22% 7.25% 7.25%

Rate of compensation incree 3.75% 3.8t% 3.92%

(&) Not applicable due to changes in plan made on Aubua009 that were effective beginning Januarg01,0.

The expected return on plan assets assumptiomiiedeby taking into consideration the target pdeset allocation, historical rates of return
on those assets, projected future asset classseand net outperformance of the market by activestment managers. An asset return m

is used to develop an expected range of returqdagminvestments over a 20 year period, with theeeted rate of return selected from a best
estimate range within the total range of project=ullts. The result is then rounded down to theast&5 basis points.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings (Deficit)

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compamayded a debit of $44 million, net of tax, to OOf.the $(491) million balance in OClI,
$20 million is expected to be recognized as nabger pension cost during 2013. For the year eridecember 31, 2011, the Company
recorded a debit of $99 million, net of tax, to O
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Items Measured at Fair Value

The Company classifies and discloses pension @seisiin one of the following three categories:
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets.

Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobsésinputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroteat®y market data.

Plan Assets

The following table summarizes the fair values, Ewels within the fair value hierarchy in whictetfair value measurements fall under
United States pension plan assets at Decembef22,ghd 2011 (in millions):

2012 2011

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
Equity

Domestic actively manage $ 12¢ $ — $ 12¢ $ 118 $ — $ 11¢

Domestic passive inde — 55 55 — 49 49

International actively manage 122 — 122 101 — 101

International passive inde — 27 27 — 16 16
Fixed income and cash equivale

Cash and cash equivalel 1 — 1 15 — 15

Shor-term debi — 24 24 — 3 3

Corporate bond — 274 274 — 292 292

Government dek — 9 94 — 101 101
Real estate investment tru 27 — 27 23 — 23
Absolute return strategit — 76 76 — 68 68
Real asset — 27 27 — 31 31
Total United States plan ass $ 27¢ $ 57 $ 85€ $ 257 $ 56C $ 81z

The following table summarizes the fair values, Ewels within the fair value hierarchy in whictetfair value measurements fall under non-
United States pension plan assets at Decembef22,ghd 2011 (in millions):

2012 2011
Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Total Level 1 Level 2 Total
Equity
Domestic actively manage $ 29 $ — $ 29 $ 32 $ — $ 32
Domestic passive inde — — — — 98 98
International actively manage 55 — 55 46 — 46
International passive inde — 32 32 — 18 18
Fixed income and cash equivale
Cash and cash equivalel 1 — 1 — — —
Corporate bond — 18t 18t — 16€ 16€
Absolute return strategit — 10z 10z — — —

Total nor-United States plan asst $ 85 $ 31¢ $ 404 $ 78 $ 282 $ 36C




Table of Contents

-80-
OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
16. PENSION PLANS (continued)

The above asset allocations are in compliance thémon-United States pension plan’s current inuest policy.

Investment Strategy

The current investment policy for the United Statession plan is to have 38% of assets investediiities, 3% in real estate, 6% in real
assets, and 47% in intermediate and long-term firedme securities, and 6% in absolute returnesgias. Assets are rebalanced periodically
to conform to policy tolerances. The Company atyievaluates the reasonableness of its asset mengihanges in the projected benefit
obligation and market dynamics.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following table shows estimated future bergdigyments from the Company’s pension plans (in amf):

Estimated
Benefit

Year Payments
2013 $102
2014 $101
2015 $104
2016 $105
2017 $104
201¢-2022 $515

Contributions

Owens Corning expects to contribute $20 milliodsh to the United States pension plan during 20@3another $18 million to non-United
States plans. Actual contributions to the plans of@nge as a result of a variety of factors, inclgahanges in laws that impact funding
requirements.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company sponsors two defined contribution plaimgh are available to substantially all Unitedt®s employees. The Company matc
a percentage of employee contributions up to amamxi level and, beginning January 1, 2010, contei@®6 of an employee’s wages
regardless of employee contributions. The Companggnized expense of $30 million, $27 million a@ $nillion during the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelgte@ito these plans.

17. POSTEMPLOYMENT AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS O THER THAN PENSIONS

The Company maintains health care and life inswdnenefit plans for certain retired employees &ed dependents. The health care plau
the United States are non-funded and pay eithestét¢d percentages of covered medically necesgasnses, after subtracting payments by
Medicare or other providers and after stated déiolesthave been met, or (2) fixed amounts of meédirkpense reimbursemel
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Employees become eligible to participate in thetéthiStates health care plans upon retirementyflla@e accumulated 10 years of service
after age 45, 48 or 50, depending on the catedgoeynployee. For employees hired after DecembeRBQ@5, the Company does not provide
subsidized retiree health care. Some of the plemsantributory, with some retiree contributionguated annually. The Company has
reserved the right to change or eliminate thesefitgrians subject to the terms of collective bange agreements.

In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company ratifiedtain plan amendments which reduced the prajdmeefit obligation at year end by
approximately $30 million. The Company will implentean Employee Group Waiver Plan (EGWP) effectaeudry 1, 2013 to manage its
prescription drug benefits for certain retiree gr@urhe Company also negotiated with certain uagshiemployees to increase the eligibility
age for retiree medical benefits and to eliminategost-65 retiree reimbursement account benefiérftployees retiring on or after January 1,
2014.

The following table provides a reconciliation oétbhange in the projected benefit obligation ardnit amount recognized in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets for the years endeeniier 31, 2012 and 2011 (in millions):

Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011
Non- Non-
u.s. U.S. Total u.S. u.s. Total

Change in Projected Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of perit $ 244 $ 20 $ 264 $ 27¢ $ 21 $ 30C
Service cos 3 — 3 3 — 3
Interest cos 10 1 11 13 1 14
Actuarial loss (gain 17 — 17 4 2 2
Currency loss (gair — 1 1 — Q) Q)
Plan amendmen 3 — 3 (30 — (30)
Benefits paic (19 (@D} (20 ()] Q) (18)
Curtailment gair — — — — (2 (2
Benefit obligation at end of peric $ 252 $ 21 $ 278 $ 244 $ 2C $ 264
Funded statu $(252) $(21) $279) $(244) $(20) $(269

Amounts Recognized in the Consolidate
Balance Sheets

Accrued benefit obligatio— current $200 $ (1) $21) $@24H $ (1) %29
Accrued benefit obligatio— nor-current (232) (20 (252) (220) (19 (239
Net amount recognize $(252) $(21) $27F) $(244) $(20) $(269
Amounts Recorded in Accumulated OCI

Net actuarial gail $ 4 $ 5 $ 9 $ 24 $ 5 $ 2¢
Net prior service cred 28 — 28 30 — 3C

Net amount recognize $ 32 $ 5 $ 37 $ 54 $ 5 $ 5¢
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17. POSTEMPLOYMENT AND POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS O THER THAN PENSIONS (continued)

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Benefit Oblidions

The following table presents the discount ratesl tseletermine the benefit obligations:

United States plans
Non-United States plar

Components of Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Gst

The following table presents the components ofeeibdic postretirement benefit cost (in millions):

Service cost

Interest cos

Amortization of prior service cost
Amortization of actuarial gain
Curtailment gain

Net periodic postretirement benefit ¢

Weighted-Average Assumptions Used to Determine Net PeriodRostretirement Benefit Cost

The following table presents the discount ratesl useletermine net periodic postretirement beroefit:

United States plans
Non-United States plar

Dec. 31,
2017 2011
3.5(% 4.35%
3.8(% 4.1(%

Twelve Months

Ended Dec. 31,
2012 2011 201(
$ 3 $ 3 $ 3

11 14 15
@ B
©) o
® © __

$ 6 $ 14 $ 18

Twelve Months
Ended Dec. 31,

201z 2011 201(C
4.3% 5.08% 5.6(%
4.1% 4.8(% 5.15%

The following table presents health care cost trabels used to determine net periodic postretir¢imemefit cost, as well as information

regarding the ultimate rate and the year in whitghrtultimate rate is reached:

United States plar

Initial rate at end of yee

Ultimate rate

Year in which ultimate rate is reach
Non-United States plar

Initial rate at end of yes

Ultimate rate

Year in which ultimate rate is reach

Twelve Months
Ended Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010

7.0(% 7.0(% 7.0(%
5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%
202z 2021 202(C
6.5(% 6.8(% 7.0(%
4.8(% 4.8(% 4.8(%
201¢ 201¢ 201¢
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The health care cost trend rate assumption canadaignificant effect on the amounts reported.llDstrate, a ongercentage point change
the December 31, 2012 assumed health care codtrmwould have the following effects (in millgin

1-Percentage Poin

Increase Decreas:

Increase (decrease) in total service cost andeisitenst components of net periodic postretireme
benefit cos $ 1 $ 1)
Increase (decrease) of accumulated postretirenasfib obligatior $ 10 $ (9)

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings (Deficit)

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Compaayded a debit of $14 million, net of tax, to O&pproximately $5 million of the $37
million balance in accumulated OCI is expecteddadrognized as net periodic postretirement beoesit during 2013. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company recorded a cre8it ®imillion, net of tax, to OCI.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

The following table shows estimated future bergdigments from the Company’s postretirement bepéfits (in millions):

Estimated
Benefit

Year Payments
2013 $ 22
2014 $ 22
2015 $ 22
2016 $ 21
2017 $ 21
201¢&-2022 $ 95

Postemployment Benefits

The Company may also provide benefits to forménactive employees after employment but beforeaetent under certain conditions.
These benefits include continuation of benefithsag health care and life insurance coverage. ttri@d postemployment benefits liability
at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $22 million &&rfillion, respectively. The net periodic posteayphent benefit expense was $1
million for each of the years ended December 3122@011 and 2010, respectively.

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER MATTERS

The Company is involved in various legal proceedirgating to employment, product liability and etimatters. The Company regularly
reviews the status of these proceedings alongledtal counsel. Liabilities for such items are releat when it is probable that the liability has
been incurred and when the amount of
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liability can be reasonably estimated. Liabilitaee adjusted when additional information becomedlavle. Management believes that the
ultimate disposition of these matters will not haveaterial adverse effect on the Company’s operator financial condition taken as a
whole.

Litigation
The Company has nothing to report under this item.
Environmental Matters

We have been deemed by the United States Envirdiairf@rotection Agency to be a Potentially Respdedtarty (“PRP”) with respect to
certain sites under the Comprehensive Environmétgaponse Compensation and Liability Act. We hdse been deemed a PRP under
similar state or local laws and in other instarmméer PRPs have brought suits against us as a&RBritribution under such federal, state, or
local laws. At December 31, 2012, we had envirortaleemediation liabilities as a PRP at 19 sitegrghwe have a continuing legal
obligation to either complete remedial actions antdbute to the completion of remedial actionpag of a group of PRPs. For these sites we
estimate a reserve to reflect environmental lidédithat have been asserted or are probable eitass in which liabilities are probable and
reasonably estimable. At December 31, 2012, o@rvesfor such liabilities was $7 million.

Kearny, New Jersey Manufacturing Facility

During the week of October 29, 2012, the Comparpegenced a flood at its Kearny New Jersey manufag facility as a result of

Hurricane Sandy. This facility is insured for pragedamage and business interruption losses retatedch events, subject to deductibles and
policy limits. In 2012, the Company incurred $9liaih in losses (net of insurance proceeds) reltdetle Hurricane of which $6 million are
related to losses reported in Cost of Sales withréimaining $3 million being reported in Other exges (income) on the Consolidated
Statements of Earnings (loss). As of December 3122we have received insurance advances of $2i@mihat have been presented on the
statement of cash flows as an investing activitseldaon the nature of the insured items. We aleaskessing the damages and currently do
not have a full estimate of the total property dgeeosts and business interruption losses. The @ayripelieves these costs/losses will be
substantially covered by insurance. Also, the tgrif any recoveries may result in expenses bekentin periods before the insurance
receipts are recorded or received.

19. STOCK COMPENSATION
2010 Stock Plan

On April 22, 2010, the Company’s stockholders appdothe Owens Corning 2010 Stock Plan (the “20b@ISPlan”) which replaced the
Owens Corning 2006 Stock Plan (the “2006 Stock'®las amended and restated. The 2010 Stock Ptanrées grants of stock options,
stock appreciation rights, stock awards, restristedk awards, restricted stock units, bonus séwekrds and performance stock awards. Such
shares of common stock include shares that weiitbleabut not granted, or which were granted betexnot issued or delivered due to
expiration, termination, cancellation or forfeitwwesuch awards. At December 31, 2012, the numbghares remaining available under the
2010 Stock Plan for all stock awards was 2.8 mmill
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Stock Options

The Company has granted stock options under itkistdder approved stock plans. The Company calkeslatweighted-average grant-date
fair value using a Black-Scholes valuation modeldptions granted. Compensation expense for opt®onmeasured based on the fair market
value of the option on the date of grant, and éi®gaized on a straight-line basis over a four yeating period. In general, the exercise price
of each option awarded was equal to the markeé mfithe Company’s common stock on the date oftgrad an option’s maximum term is
10 years. The volatility assumption was based berehmark study of our peers.

During 2012, 409,700 stock options were granteti witveighted-average grant date fair value of §¥L5A2sumptions used in the Company’
Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the gdaté fair value were expected volatility of 45.8%pected dividends of 0%, expected
term of 6.26 years and a risk-free interest rate. b¥6.

During 2011, 412,200 stock options were granteti witveighted-average grant date fair value of 8.588sumptions used in the Company’
Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the gdaté fair value were expected volatility of 44.38%pected dividends of 0%, expected
term of 6.26 years and a risk-free interest rat2.6%o.

During 2010, 515,200 stock options were granteti witveighted-average grant date fair value of §¥L1A8sumptions used in the Company’
Black-Scholes valuation model to estimate the gdaté fair value were expected volatility of 52.08%pected dividends of 0%, expected
term of 6.25 years and a risk-free interest rat2.8%o.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd, the Company recognized expense of $5 milidmillion and $3 million
respectively, related to the Company’s stock otidks of December 31, 2012 there was $8 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost
related to stock options. That cost is expectdaktoecognized over a weightatdlerage period of 2.52 years. The total aggregéti@sic valut
of options outstanding as of December 31, 20121 28dd 2010 was $28 million, $12 million and $19liom, respectively. Cash received
from option exercises was $12 million, $10 milliand $2 million for the years ended December 31220011 and 2010, respectively. Tax
benefits realized from tax deductions associated aption exercises totaled $2 million, $1 milliand less than $1 million for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respsactivel

The following table summarizes the Company’s stogtion activity:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010

Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted- Number of Weighted-

Average Average Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
Beginning Balance 3,293,54! $ 26.2¢ 3,397,85! $ 25.0¢ 3,002,47! $ 25.0z
Grantec 409,70( 33.7: 412,20( 33.9¢ 515,20( 25.6:
Exercisec (520,12() 22.6¢ (374,739 25.7¢ (84,050 28.7¢
Forfeited (157,909 28.4¢ (141,779 21.1¢ (35,767) 21.0¢

Ending Balanct 3,025,22 $ 27.7¢ 3,293,54! $ 26.2¢ 3,397,85i $ 25.0¢
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The following table summarizes information abowt @ompany’s options outstanding and exercisable:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Remaining Number Remaining
Range o Contractual Exercisable a Contractual
Exercise Options
Prices Outstanding Life Exercise Price Dec. 31, 201: Life Exercise Price
$7.57 - $34.94 3,025,221 5.7C $ 27.7¢ 2,062,80: 4.6 $ 27.2:

Restricted Stock Awards and Restricted Stock Units

The Company has granted restricted stock awardsestigicted stock units (collectively referred to“eestricted stock”) under its stockholder
approved stock plans. Compensation expense foictest stock is measured based on the market pfittee stock at date of grant and is
recognized on a straighitte basis over the four year vesting period. Stasirictions are subject to alternate vesting gfan death, disabilit
approved early retirement and involuntary termiatiover various periods ending in 2015.

During the years ended December 31, 2012, 2012ahd, the Company recognized expense of $15 mjlia8 million and $15 million
respectively, related to the Company’s restrictedls As of December 31, 2012, there was $23 milbbtotal unrecognized compensation
cost related to restricted stock. That cost is etqubto be recognized over a weighted-average ghefi@.66 years. The total grant date fair
value of shares vested during the years ended Omsredd, 2012, 2011 and 2010, was $12 million, $8ianiand $17 million, respectively.

A summary of the status of the Company’s planstbatrestricted stock issued as of December 32,211 and 2010 and changes during
the twelve months ended December 31, 2012, 2012@hd are presented below:

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended
Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010
Weightec- Weightec- Weightec-
Average Average Average
Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date
Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Beginning Balance 1,941,74. $ 23.8: 1,987,70! $ 19.7¢ 2,177,95: $ 17.3¢
Grantec 638,61¢ 33.4: 565,98: 33.47 740,37! 26.2¢
Vested (544,52 22.3¢ (476,65() 18.8: (873,49() 19.3¢
Forfeited (160,76) 28.3¢ (135,29) 21.67 (57,137 18.9¢
Ending Balanct 1,875,06! $ 27.1¢ 1,941,74. $ 23.8¢ 1,987,70! $ 19.7¢

Performance Stock Awards and Performance StocksUnit

The Company has granted performance stock awadiperformance stock units (collectively referrecdsd*PSUs”) as a part of its long-term
incentive plan, of which 50 percent will be settliagtock and 50 percent will be settled in cagie @mount of PSUs ultimately distributed is
contingent on meeting various stockholder returalgy
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Compensation expense for PSUs settled in stocle@suared based on the grant date fair value amddgnized on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. Compensation expense for P8ttled in cash is measured based on the fair \&ltlee end of each quarter and is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the vggigriod. Vesting will be pro-rated based on theber of full months employed during the
performance period in the case of death, disabiityange in control or involuntary termination, gnd—+ated awards earned will be paid at
end of the three-year period.

During 2012, 2011, and 2010, the Company grantddsP¥he 2012, 2011, and 2010 grants vest afteregtear period based on the
Company’s total stockholder return relative to preeformance of the components of the S&P 500 Iridethe respective three-year period.
The amount of PSUs earned will vary from 0% to 20899 SUs awarded depending on the relative stodenakturn performance.

For all PSUs, respectively, during the period enbBedember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Compangnéed expense of $13 million, $7
million and $13 million. As of December 31, 201ete was $10 million of total unrecognized comp&araost related to PSUs. That cos
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 1.7 years.

2012 Grant

For the 2012 grant, the portion of the PSUs settledhsh will be revalued every reporting periodilithe award is fully vested. As a result,
compensation expense recognized will be adjustdgevious surplus compensation expense recogmiielde reversed or additional
expense will be recognized. For the period endezkBéer 31, 2012, the Company estimated the faireval the cash PSUs granted using a
Monte Carlo simulation that used various assumpttbat include expected volatility of 35.6%, a rigde rate of 0.3% and an expected term
of 2.00 years. Expected volatility was based oerechmark study of our peers. The risk-free intera@tst was based on zero coupon United
States Treasury bills at the time of revaluatidme Expected term represents the period beginnigrleer 31, 2012 to the end of the three-
year performance perio

For the 2012 grant, the fair value of the portio?8Us settled in stock was estimated at the glate using a Monte Carlo simulation that
used various assumptions that include expectediltylaf 48.2%, a risk free interest rate of 0.23d an expected term of 2.91 years.
Expected volatility was based on a benchmark stidyr peers. The risk-free interest rate was basezkro coupon United States Treasury
bills at the grant date. The expected term reptsgbe period from the grant date to the end oftihee-year performance period.

2011 Grant

For the 2011 grant, the portion of the PSUs settladhsh will be revalued every reporting periodilithe award is fully vested. As a result,
compensation expense recognized will be adjustdgevious surplus compensation expense recogmiielde reversed or additional
expense will be recognized. For the period endezkBéer 31, 2012, the Company estimated the faireval the cash PSUs granted using a
Monte Carlo simulation that used various assumpttbat include expected volatility of 30.6%, a rigde rate of 0.1% and an expected term
of 1.00 year. Expected volatility was based onrechenark study of our peers. The risk-free interatd was based on zero coupon United
States Treasury bills at the time of revaluatidme Expected term represents the period beginnigrleer 31, 2012 to the end of the three-
year performance perio
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For the 2011 grant, the fair value of the portié®8Us settled in stock was estimated at the gtatet using a Monte Carlo simulation that
used various assumptions that include expectediltylaf 57.2%, a risk free interest rate of 1.2¥d an expected term of 2.9 years. Expe
volatility was based on a benchmark study of o@rpeThe risk-free interest rate was based onamrpon United States Treasury bills at the
grant date. The expected term represents the peaptdthe grant date to the end of the three-yeaiopmance period.

2010 Grant

For the 2010 grant, the portion of the PSUs settiedhsh is revalued every reporting period uh# award is fully vested. As a result,
compensation expense recognized will be adjustdgevious surplus compensation expense recogmiielde reversed or additional
expense will be recognized. For the period endezkBéer 31, 2012, the Company estimated the fairevaf the PSUs settled in cash using a
Monte Carlo simulation that used various assumpttbat include expected volatility of 22.6%, a ffee interest rate of 0% and an expected
term of 0 years, which is the remaining life of tirant. Expected volatility was based on a benchrstudy of our peers. The rigkee interes
rate was based on zero coupon United States Tkeb#lsrat the time of revaluation. The expectedteepresents the period beginning
December 31, 2012 to the end of the three-yeaopeaence period.

For the 2010 grant, the fair value of the portié®8Us settled in stock was estimated at the gtatet using a Monte Carlo simulation that
used various assumptions that include expectediltglaf 58.8%, a risk-free interest rate of 1.4%d an expected term of 2.9 years, which
was the remaining life of the grant. Expected vliatvas based on a benchmark study of our péire.risk-free interest rate was based on
zero coupon United States Treasury bills at thatgtate. The expected term represents the pemnd the grant date to the end of the three-
year performance perio

Twelve Months Ended

Twelve Months Ended Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31, 2012 Dec. 31, 2011 Dec. 31, 2010

Weightec- Weightec- Weightec-

Average Average Average
Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date Number of Grant Date

PSUs Fair Value PSUs Fair Value PSUs Fair Value
Beginning Balance 508,61t $ 42.2¢ 754,60: $ 19.6¢ 1,064,29: $ 20.7¢
Grantec 256,40( 47.97 354,56« 48.61 470,58 36.5:2
Vested (260,58() 36.5¢2 (526,609 16.4¢ (739,119 31.1¢F
Forfeited/cancelle (91,526 43.4¢ (73,949 25.9¢ (41,159 34.0¢
Ending Balanct 412,91( $ 49.1¢ 508,61t $ 42.2¢ 754,60: $ 19.6¢
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20. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A summary of the balances within each classificaibaccumulated OCI (deficit) as of December 311, 2and 2011 follows (in millions):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011
Currency translation adjustment $ 29 $ 24
Pension and other postretirement adjustment, nigtx (393 (337)
Deferred loss on hedging transactions, net o — 2
Accumulated OCI (deficit $ (369 $ (319

21. WARRANTS

The Company issued 17.5 million Series A warrargpresenting the right to purchases one shareed€timpany’s common stock for
$43.00) and 7.8 million Series B warrants (repréagrthe right to purchase one share of the Comgargmmon stock for $45.25) on
October 31, 2006, all of which remain outstandind exercisable as of December 31, 2012. Such warexpire on October 31, 2013. The
Company has accounted for these warrants as égsaityments since there is no option for cash ticash settlement when the warrants are
exercised. Future exercises and forfeitures willoe the amount of warrants. Exercises will incegage amount of common stock
outstanding and additional paid in capital.

The aggregate fair value of the warrants at Oct8te2006 of $143 million and $60 million for theri&s A warrants and Series B warrants,
respectively, was estimated using the Black-Schadégation method with the following weighted-avgeaassumptions:

Warrants
Series £ Series E
Expected annual dividends 1.5% 1.5%
Risk free interest rai 4.6% 4.6%
Expected term (in year 7.C 7.C

Volatility 34.(% 34.(%
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22. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table summarizes the number of shartgstanding as well as our basic and diluted egmper share for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 (in millions, pkper share amounts):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2012 2011 2010

Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Cori $ (19 $ 27€ $ 93¢

Weightec-average number of shares outstanding used for basiings per sha 119.¢ 122.t 125.¢

Non-vested restricted and performance sh — 0.7 0.€

Options to purchase common st¢ — 0.3 0.2
Weighted-average number of shares outstanding @mdnon equivalent shares used for diluted

earnings per sha 119.¢ 123.t 126.€

Earnings (loss) per common share attributable t@@wCorning common stockholde
Basic $(0.1¢€) $ 2.2¢ $ 7.4:
Diluted $(0.1¢) $ 2.2¢% $ 7.37

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated Wigidg earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Cagriiy the weighted-average number of
shares of the Company’s common stock outstandingglthe period. Outstanding shares consist ofidsihares less treasury stock.

On April 19, 2012, the Company approved a new shayeback program under which the Company is aigbdrto repurchase up to

10 million shares of the Company’s outstanding camrstock (the “2012 Repurchase Program”). The Zdfurchase Program is in
addition to the share buy-back program announceguistié, 2010, (the “2010 Repurchase Program” alidatively with the 2012
Repurchase Program, the “Repurchase Programs”)R€&parchase Programs authorize the Company toategse shares through the open
market, privately negotiated, or other transactidie actual number of shares repurchased willmtpa timing, market conditions and ot
factors and will be at the Company’s discretionribg the year ended December 31, 2012, 3.7 mibiveres were repurchased under the
Repurchase Programs. As of December 31, 2012, libmshares remain available for repurchase utiteRepurchase Programs.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the numtsrasés used in the calculation of diluted earn{fass) per share did not include
0.2 million performance shares, 0.5 million nonteesrestricted shares, 0.6 million options to pasghcommon stock, 17.5 million common
equivalent shares from Series A Warrants or 7.8anicommon equivalent shares from Series B Wasrdne to their anti-dilutive effect.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the numltsrasés used in the calculation of diluted earn{fass) per share did not include
0.8 million options to purchase common stock, Iiilion common equivalent shares from Series A \&ats or 7.8 million common
equivalent shares from Series B Warrants due to dinéi-dilutive effect.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the numlsdranés used in the calculation of diluted earn{fags) per share did not include
0.2 million performance shares, 2.4 million optitagpurchase common stock, 17.5 million commonaaint shares from Series A Watrre
or 7.8 million common equivalent shares from SeBé&arrants due to their a-dilutive effect.
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23. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Items Measured at Fair Value

The Company classifies and discloses assets aiilitiées carried at fair value in one of the followg three categories:
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketddentical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Observable market based inputs or unobséminputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroteatdy market data.

The following table summarizes the fair values, Ewels within the fair value hierarchy in whictetfair value measurements fall, for assets
and liabilities measured on a recurring basis d3emfember 31, 2012 (in millions):

Quoted Prices

Significant
Total in Active Other Significant
Measurec Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical

at Fair Assets Inputs Inputs

Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 1 $ 1 $ — $ —
Term deposit: 1 1
Derivative asset 1 — 1 —
Total asset $ 3 $ 2 $ 1 $ —
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities $ 4 $ — $ (4) $ —
Total liabilities $ (4) $ — $ 4) $ —

The following table summarizes the fair values, Ewels within the fair value hierarchy in whictetfair value measurements fall, for assets
and liabilities measured on a recurring basis d3emfember 31, 2011 (in millions):

Quoted Price

Significant
Total in Active Other Significant
Measurec Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical

at Fair Assets Inputs Inputs

Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets:
Cash equivalent $ 11 $ 11 $ — $ —
Derivative asset 3 — 3 —
Total asset $ 14 $ 11 $ 3 $ —
Liabilities:
Derivative liabilities $ (6) $ — $ (6) $ —
Total liabilities $ (6) $ — $ (6) $ —
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23. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)
Cash equivalents, by their nature, utilize Leveifduts in determining fair value. The Company meesthe value of its natural gas hedge
contracts and foreign currency forward contractsgikevel 2 inputs. The fair value of the Companyaural gas hedges is determined by a

mark to market valuation based on forward curvésgusbservable market prices and the fair valugsdbreign currency forward contracts
determined using observable market transactionsen-the-counter markets.

Items Disclosed at Fair Value

Longterm notes receivable

The fair value has been calculated using the egfddature cash flows discounted at market intewgsss. The Company believes that the
carrying amounts reasonably approximate the fdiresaof long-term notes receivable. Long-term no¢egivable were $53 million as of
December 31, 2012 and are included in other norentiassets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Longterm debt

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt hesn calculated based on quoted market pricebdéosame or similar issues, or on the
current rates offered to the Company for debt efshme remaining maturities.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company’s 6.50% serutes due 2016 were trading at approximately 1dPp@r value, the 7.00% senior
notes due 2036 were trading at approximately 108p&aovalue, the 9.00% senior notes due 2019 wading at approximately 127% of par
value and the 4.20% senior notes due 2022 wergrad approximately 102% of par value.

At December 31, 2012, the Company determined kteabbok value of the remaining long-term debt insints approximates market value.
This approach, using level 1 inputs and utilizindicative market rates for a new debt issuanceoxppated the fair value of the remaining
long-term debt at $268 millior
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24. INCOME TAXES

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Earnings before taxe
United State: $ 31 $ 20z $ 2
Foreign _ (7)) 151 94
Total $ (40) $ 35: $ 96
Income tax expense (benefi
Current
United State: $ 1 $ (14) $ 4¢
State and loce 2 2 —
Foreign _ 20 28 27
Total curreni _ 19 16 7€
Deferred
United State: (22 61 (887)
State and loce 2 7 (55)
Foreign _ (27 (10 2C
Total deferrec (47) 58 (916
Total income tax expense (bene $ (28) $ 74 $ (840

The reconciliation between the United States fddstadutory rate and the Company’s effective incdaerate from continuing operations is:

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,

2012 2011 2010
United States federal statutory rate (35)% 35% 35 %
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavefik (5) 2 2
Foreign tax rate differentii (60) (10 (30)
US tax expense/benefit on foreign earnings/ (62 (D] (2)
Valuation allowanct 127 2 (944,
Uncertain tax positions and settleme (2 3 53
Goodwill — — 11
Other, ne (39 (4 —
Effective tax rate (70)% 21 % (875)%

As of December 31, 2012, the Company has not redoaddeferred tax liability of approximately $238lion for withholding or United
States federal income taxes on approximately $1b8li6n of accumulated undistributed earningstefforeign subsidiaries and affiliates as
they are considered by management to be permaneiriyested.

At December 31, 2012, the Company had federak stadl foreign net operating loss carryforwards28®illion, $3.3 billion and $807
million, respectively. If not utilized, the federahd state net operating Ic
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24. INCOME TAXES (continued)

carryforwards will expire through 2032 while thedmn net operating loss carryforwards will begirekpire in 2013, with the majority
having no expiration date. Certain of these losg/f@wards are subject to limitation as a restithe changes of control that resulted from
the Companys emergence from bankruptcy in 2006 and the adouisif certain foreign entities in 2007. Howewvidile Company believes it
these limitations on its loss carryforwards wilt mesult in a forfeiture of any of the carryforward

The cumulative temporary differences giving risé¢hie deferred tax assets and liabilities at Decer@be2012 and 2011 are as follows (in
millions):

2012 2011
Deferred Deferred
Deferred Deferred
Tax Tax Tax Tax

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

Other employee benefits $ 16C $ — $ 16¢€ $ —
Pension plan 161 — 13€ —
Operating loss carryforwar 1,08( — 1,04( —
Depreciatior — 33z — 37¢
Amortization — 375 — 38C

State and local taxe 5 — 4 —
Other 178 — 155 —
Subtotal 1,57¢ 70k 1,501 75€
Valuation allowance (22¢) — (187) —
Total deferred taxe $ 1,351 $ 70& $ 1,31« $ 75€

The Company had current deferred tax assets ofr#ion and $71 million which are included in otharrrent assets in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2012 and 2GHEatively.

Deferred income taxes are provided for tempordfferdinces between amounts of assets and liabiftienancial reporting purposes and-
basis of such assets and liabilities as measuréer@nacted tax laws and regulations, as well alsSN@x credit and other carryforwards. A
valuation allowance will be recorded to reduce defttax assets if, based on all available evideh¢éeconsidered more likely than not that
some portion or all of the recorded deferred taetsswill not be realized in future periods.

The valuation allowance of $228 million and $18Tiom as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respegtivelated to tax assets for certain
state and foreign jurisdictions.

The Company, or one of its subsidiaries, files medax returns in the United States and otherdargirisdictions. The Company is no lon
subject to U.S. federal tax examinations for yémfore 2008 or state and foreign examinations éary before 2001. Due to the potential for
resolution of federal, state and foreign examimegj@nd the expiration of various statutes of ktidin, it is reasonably possible that the gross
unrecognized tax benefits balance may change witleimext 12 months by a range of zero to $65 aonil
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeafntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows (inlimils):

Twelve Months Ended

Dec. 31,
2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of period $ 17C $ 21C $ 167
Tax positions related to the current y
Gross addition: 12 8 64
Gross reduction — — (18)
Tax positions related to prior ye¢
Gross addition: 7 6 88
Gross reduction (14) (46) (64)
Settlement: (13) @) (29
Lapses on statutes of limitatio (@ (@) 3
Balance at end of peric $ 161 $ 17C $ 21C

The Company classifies all interest and penalteg@ome tax expense. As of December 31, 2012, 26d22010, the Company recognized
$10 million, $13 million and $20 million respectlyein liabilities for tax related interest and péties on its Consolidated Balance Sheets and
$(3) million, $(15) million and $0 million, respeetly, of interest and penalty expense on its Cbdated Statements of Earnings (Loss). If
these unrecognized tax benefits were to be recedris of December 31, 2012, the Company’s incomexpense would decrease by about
$133 million.

25. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In July 2012, the Financial Accounting Standardam@assued updated guidance on the periodic tesfimglefinitelived intangible assets f
impairment. The updated guidance gives compan@sjpkion to perform a qualitative assessment terdehe whether it is more likely than
not that the fair value of a reporting unit is l&san its carrying amount and, thus, whether furitmpairment testing is necessary. The upc
accounting guidance is effective for fiscal yeaggihning after September 15, 2012, with early adogbermitted. The Company believes
there will be no impact on its Consolidated Finah&tatements.

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@dssued authoritative guidance on the presemtati comprehensive income requiring
companies to present the total of comprehensivanire; the components of net income, and the compeiéther comprehensive income
either in a single continuous statement of compreive income or in two separate but consecutivierstants. This guidance eliminates the
option to present components of other comprehensogme as part of the Consolidated Statementsozk8olders’ Equity. There are no
changes to the components that are recognized ine@me or other comprehensive income under cugrecounting guidance. The
amendments in this update are to be applied regotisiely and are effective for fiscal years, angiim periods within those years, beginning
after December 15, 2011. The Company elected septdhe new requirements in two separate but catige statement:
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26. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)

Select quarterly financial information is presernitethe tables below for the quarterly periods @12 and 2011, respectively (in millions,
except per share amounts):

Quarter
First Seconc Third Fourth

2012

Net sales $1,34¢ $ 1,391 $1,27¢ $1,15¢
Cost of sale: 1,16( 1,152 1,07¢ 98¢
Gross margir 18¢€ 23¢ 202 17C
Earnings (loss) before interest and ta (12 85 59 1€
Interest expense, n 28 28 29 29
Income tax expense (bene! 5 17 (14 (36€)
Net earnings (loss) attributable to Owens Cort $ (469 $ 3¢ $ 4 $ (56

BASIC EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $(0.39) $ 0.3Z $ 0.37 $ (0.47)

DILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS) PER COMMON SHAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNING
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $(0.39 $ 032 $037 $(0.47)

During the first, second, third, and fourth qua@8i2 the Company recorded additional pre-tax ire¢empense) of ($4) million ($3 million
after tax expense), $1 million ($1 million after}a($7) million ($3 million after tax expense),da($3) million ($2 million after tax expense)
respectively; related to prior periods. The effgas not material to previously issued financiatestents.

Quarter

First Secon( Third Fourth
2011
Net sales $1,23t $1,451 $1,45C $1,19¢
Cost of sale: 1,03¢ 1,172 1,13¢ 96€
Gross margir 20z 27¢ 317 23C
Earnings before interest and ta: 61 13t 177 88
Interest expense, n 25 28 28 27
Income tax expens 11 29 23 11
Net earnings attributable to Owens Corn $ 24 $ 78 $ 124 $ 5C

BASIC EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARI
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $01¢ $ 065 $10z $ 041

DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARI
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWENS CORNINC
COMMON STOCKHOLDERS $ 0.1¢€ $ 0.6Z $ 1.01 $ 041

During the three months ended March 31, 2011, tragany recorded additional pre-tax income of $4iomil($4 million after tax) related to
prior periods. The effect was not material to poergly issued financial statemer
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27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following Condensed Consolidating Financiat&teents present the financial information requiréth respect to those entities which
guarantee certain of the Company’s debt. The Ca®tkeGonsolidating Financial Statements are predemehe equity method. Under this
method, the investments in subsidiaries are redoatieost and adjusted for the Company’s sharkeo$tibsidiaries’ cumulative results of
operations, capital contributions, distributionsl ather equity changes. The principal eliminatiatries eliminate investment in subsidiaries
and intercompany balances and transactions.

Guarantor and Nonguarantor Financial Statements

As described in Note 15, Owens Corning has issde8l [illion aggregate principal amount of Seniotdéo The Senior Notes and the Senior
Credit Facilities are guaranteed, fully, unconditily and jointly and severally, by each of Owernsring’s current and future 100% owned
material domestic subsidiaries that is a borrowex guarantor under Owens Cornis@redit Agreement, which permits changes to timeet
guarantors in certain situations (collectively, taiarantor Subsidiaries”). The remaining subsid®have not guaranteed the Senior Notes
and the Senior Credit Facilities (collectively, tiNonguarantor Subsidiaries”).

The Company discovered that $105 million of intepes/ments on parent loans were not appropriatelsified between the Parent and the
Guarantor Subsidiaries within the 2010 CondensatsGlaating Statements of Cash Flows. The misdiaaibn impacted previously
reported Parent and Guarantor Subsidiaries netftgtirom operations and net cash flow from finemgcactivities. In addition, the Compa
discovered that $265 million of pension liabilitiasd related deferred tax assets of $101 milliorewet appropriately classified between the
Parent and Guarantor Subsidiaries within the 20d:0dénsed Consolidating Balance Sheet. This itemrakulted in insignificant revisions
the 2010 Condensed Consolidating Statements ofrlac@ he effect of correcting these classificatimas not material to the 2010
consolidating financial information, and relatedaamts presented for 2010 have been revi
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27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NET SALES
COST OF SALE:S
Gross margir
OPERATING EXPENSE!
Marketing and
administrative expenst
Science and technology
expense:
Charges related to cost
reduction action
Other expense
Total operating
expense:
EARNINGS BEFORE
INTEREST AND TAXES
Interest expense (income), |
Loss on extinguishment of de
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
TAXES
Income tax expense (bene!
EARNINGS (LOSS) BEFORE
EQUITY IN NET
EARNINGS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATES
Equity in net earnings of
subsidiaries
Equity in net earnings of
affiliates
NET EARNINGS (LOSS)
Less: Net earnings attributable
noncontrolling interes
NET EARNINGS (LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWENS CORNING

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (LOSS)

(66)
102
74

(242)

Guarantor
Subsidiaries
$ 3,61¢

3,01¢
601
25¢

61

258

$ 131

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries
$ 1,932
1,74°¢

187
13¢€
18

51
23

23C

(49
1C

(53

(53

(52

$ (59

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
(in millions)

Eliminations
$ (37¢)
(376)

(7€)

@

$ (7€)

Consolidatec
$ 5,172
4,37¢

797

50¢

79

51
1C

64¢

14¢
114
74

(40
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in millions)
Guarantor Non-Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidatec
NET SALES $ — $ 3,641 $ 2,01¢ $ (329 $ 5,33t
COST OF SALES (23 3,01¢ 1,63¢ (329 4,30i
Gross margir 23 62€ 37¢ — 1,02¢
OPERATING EXPENSE:!
Marketing and
administrative
expense: 67 314 144 — 52t
Science and technology
expense: — 61 1€ — 77
Other (income) expens (88) 15 38 — (39
Total operating
expense: (21) 39C 19¢ — 567
EARNINGS BEFORE

INTEREST AND TAXES 44 23€ 181 — 461
Interest expense (income), 1 10t (3 6 — 10¢
EARNINGS (LOSS)

BEFORE TAXES (62) 23¢ 17t — 352
Income tax expense (bene! (23 72 25 — 74
EARNINGS (LOSS)

BEFORE EQUITY IN

NET EARNINGS (LOSS)

OF SUBSIDIARIES AND

AFFILIATES (39 167 15C — 27¢
Equity in net earnings of

subsidiaries 314 14¢ — (463) —
Equity in net earnings (loss) c

affiliates — 2 4 — 2
NET EARNINGS 27¢€ 314 154 (463) 281
Less: Net earnings attributabl

to noncontrolling interes — — 5 — 5
NET EARNINGS

ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWENS CORNING $ 27¢ $ 314 $ 14¢ $ (469) $ 27¢€
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF EARNINGS

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(in millions)

NET SALES
COST OF SALES
Gross margir
OPERATING EXPENSE!
Marketing and administrative
expense!
Science and technology exper
Charges related to cost reduct
actions
Other (income) expens
Total operating expens
EARNINGS BEFORE INTEREST
AND TAXES
Interest expense (income), |
EARNINGS BEFORE TAXES
Income tax expense (bene!
EARNINGS BEFORE EQUITY IN
NET EARNINGS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND
AFFILIATES
Equity in net earnings of subsidiari
Equity in net earnings (loss) of
affiliates
NETS EARNINGS
Less: Net earnings attributable to
noncontrolling interes
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWENS CORNING

&+
N—r

Q
=
MR

w1

Guarantor
Subsidiaries
$ 3,38¢

2,81°t
572

33z
63

2
132

52¢
44
@
51

(831)

882
67

95C

$ 95C

Non-
Guarantor
Subsidiaries
$ 1,95¢
1,58¢

364

141
13

27
56

237
127

12¢
50

Eliminations
$ (344)
(349

(1,0_17)
(1,0_17)

$ (1,019

Consolidatec
$ 4,997
4,041

95¢

51¢€
7€
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS ( LOSS)
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

NET EARNINGS (LOSS) $ (19 $ 131 $ (52 $ (76)
Currency translation adjustme 5 — — —
Pension and other postretireme

adjustment (net of tay (56) — — —
Deferred income on hedging (net

of tax) 2 — — —
COMPREHENSIVE

EARNINGS (LOSS) (68) 131 (52 (76)
Less: Comprehensive earnings

attributable to noncontrolling

interest — — 3 —
NET EARNINGS (LOSS)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO

OWENS CORNING $ (69 $ 131 $ (55 $ (76)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations

NET EARNINGS $ 27¢ $ 314 $ 154 $ (463)
Currency translation adjustme (39 — — —
Pension and other postretireme

adjustment (net of tay (80) — — —
Deferred income on hedging (net

of tax) 2 — — —
COMPREHENSIVE

EARNINGS 15¢ 314 154 (46%)

Less: Comprehensive earnings
attributable to noncontrolling
interest — — 5 —

NET EARNINGS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWENS CORNING

0524

15¢ $ 314 $ 14¢ $ (469)

Consolidatec
$ (16)
5

(56)

2

(69)

Consolidatec
$ 281
(39

(80)

$ 15¢



Table of Contents

-102-
OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)
27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidatec

NET EARNINGS $ 93¢ $ 95( $ 74 $ (1,019 $ 94(
Currency translation adjustme 26 — — — 26
Pension and other postretireme

adjustment (net of tay (36€) — — — (36€)
Deferred income on hedging (net

of tax) 2 — — — 2
COMPREHENSIVE

EARNINGS 92t 95( 74 (1,017 932
Less: Comprehensive earnings

attributable to noncontrolling

interest — 8 — 8

NET EARNINGS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWENS CORNING

©

928 $ 95( $ 66 $ (1,019 $ 924
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, ne
Due from affiliates
Inventories
Other current asse
Total current asse
Investment in subsidiarie
Due from affiliates
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible asset
Deferred income taxe
Other nor-current assel

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accruet
liabilities
Due to affiliates
Shor-term debt
Long-term debt current portiot
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Due to affiliates
Pension plan liability
Other employee benefits liabili
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities
OWENS CORNING
STOCKHOLDERY EQUITY
Common stocl
Additional paid in capita
Accumulated earning
Accumulated other
comprehensive defic
Cost of common stock in
treasury
Total Owens Corning
stockholder equity
Noncontrolling interes
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
EQUITY

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

&~
(0]

1,41¢

1,42
1,88¢

331

(in millions)
Non-

Guarantor Guarantor
Subsidiaries Subsidiaries
$ 3 $ 52
— 60C

2,52¢ —
47% 31:<
75 96
3,07¢ 1,061
2,48¢ 55¢
65 1,022
1,29¢ 1,23¢
1,06¢ 75
93¢ 302
52t 25
74 12C
$ 9,53: $ 4,39¢
$ 61C $ 27¢
— 1,10¢
— 5
2 2
612 1,39¢
28 164
1,022 65
— 14¢
254 20
— 38
182 41
6,541 2,062
894 427
7,43k 2,48¢
— 37
7,43 2,52¢
$ 9,53: $ 4,39¢

Eliminations

$ —
(2,529)

(2,529
(9,929
(1,087

(196

$  (13,73Y

(2,529

(2,529
(1,08)

(196)

(8,600
(1,32))

(9,924)
(9,929
$ (13,73)

Consolidatec

$ 55
60C

78€
171

1,61:

2,90z
1,14
1,04t
604
261

$ 7,56¢

$ 7,56¢
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

-104-

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSET¢
Cash and cash equivalel
Receivables, ne
Due from affiliates
Inventories
Other current asse
Total current asse
Investment in subsidiarie
Due from affiliates
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible asset
Deferred income taxe
Other norcurrent assel
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit
Due to affiliates
Shor-term debt
Long-term debt current portior
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portic
Due to affiliates
Pension plan liability
Other employee benefits liabili
Deferred income taxe
Other liabilities
OWENS CORNING STOCKHOLDER EQUITY
Common stocl
Additional paid in capita
Accumulated earning
Accumulated other comprehensive det
Cost of common stock in treast
Total Owens Corning stockhold’ equity
Noncontrolling interes

Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantor Guarantor
Parent Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations
$ — $ — $ 52 $ —
— — 73C (120)
52¢ 2,36¢ — (2,89
— 447 34¢ —
1 75 102 —
53C 2,891 1,23: (3,01¢)
6,581 2,36¢ 532 (9,48¢)
— 63 997 (1,060)
384 1,27¢ 1,24z —
— 1,06¢ 75 —
- 95¢ 352 (23¢€)
71 44¢& 19 —
6C 72 10C —
$7,63: $ 9,14¢ $ 4,551 $ (13,809
$ 21 $ 552 $ 42z $ (120
1,67¢ 20 1,20z (2,89
8 — 20 —
J— 1 3 J—
1,70¢ 574 1,64 (3,019
1,70¢ 29 19z —
- 997 63 (1,060)
29:¢ — 14z —
— 247 20 —
— — 51 —
224 182 27 (23¢)
1 — — —
3,907 6,357 1,88¢ (8,24¢)
47C 763 48C (1,247
(315) — — —
(362) — — —
3,701 7,12 2,36¢ (9,489
N - 40 N
3,701 7,12 2,40¢ (9,489
$7,63: $  9,14¢ $ 4,55] $ (13,80¢)

Consolidatec

$ 52
61C

79t
17¢
1,63¢

2,90¢
1,14¢
1,07:
53¢
232

$ 7,52

$ 87¢
28

4

90¢

1,93(

43¢
267

51
19t

3,907
47¢

(315)

(362)
3,707

3,741
$ 7,52
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOW USEL
FOR INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Additions to plant and
equipmen

Proceeds from Hurricau
Sandy

Proceeds from the sale
of assets or affiliate

Net cash flow provided
by (used for)
investing activities

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from senior
revolving credit and
receivables
securitization
facilities

Payments on senior
revolving credit and
receivables
securitization
facilities

Proceeds from longerm
debt

Payments on long-ternr
debt

Purchases of
noncontrolling
interests

Net decrease in short-
term debt

Purchases of treasury
stock

Other

Other intercompany
loans

Net cash flow provided
by (used for)
financing activities

Effect of exchange rate

Parent

$ (10¢)

(39)

42

1,56¢

Guarantor
Subsidiaries
$ 23¢

(1749
20

5
(149
(22)
(65)
(87

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(in millions)

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

12

(111

31z

(330)

11

Eliminations

Consolidatec

$ 33C

(332)
20

(259

1,87

(22)
(239

(117



changes on cas

Net increase (decrease) in ¢
and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of periot

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD

52

52
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOW USEL
FOR INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Additions to plant and
equipmen

Investment in
subsidiaries and
affiliates

Proceeds from the sale
of assets or affiliate

Net cash flow used for
investing activities

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from senior
revolving credit and
receivables
securitization
facilities

Payments on senior
revolving credit and
receivables
securitization
facilities

Proceeds from longerm
debt

Payments on long-tern
debt

Net increase in short-
term debt

Purchases of treasury
stock

Other

Other intercompany
loans

Net cash flow provided
by financing
activities

Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas

Net increase (decrease) in ¢
and cash equivalen

Parent

()

1,547

(1,429)

(13€)

72

74

3)

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 23€

(222)

(84)

(303)

67

67

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in millions)

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

(219

78

(139

36¢

(207)

(10

18

(139)

33

Eliminations

Consolidatec

(442)

(84)

81

(449

1,91-

(1,630)

(10)
26

(13



Cash and cash equivalents
beginning of periot

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF PERIOD

w

49

52

52

52
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continu ed)

27. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Additions to plant and
equipmen

Proceeds from the sale
of assets or affiliate

Net cash flow provided
by (used for)
investing activities

NET CASH FLOW
PROVIDED BY (USED
FOR) FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from senior
revolving credit
facility

Payments on senior
revolving credit
facility

Proceeds from longerm
debt

Payments on long-term
debt

Purchases of
noncontrolling
interest

Net decrease in short-
term debt

Purchase of treasury
stock

Other

Other intercompany
loans

Net cash flow used for
financing activities

Effect of exchange rate
changes on cas

Net increase (decrease) in ¢
and cash equivalen

Cash and cash equivalents &
beginning of periot

Parent

$ (10%)

45

45

631

(61¢)

(600)

(120)
2

231

(479

(53E)

53¢

Guarantor
Subsidiaries

$ 37C

(139)

(139)

(231)
(231)

OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(in millions)

Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries

(175)

20

(155)

()

(30
(10)

Eliminations

Consolidatec

$ 48¢

(314)

(249

631

(61¢)

(609)

(30
(10

(120)
2

(750

(512)

564



CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF PERIOD

&

w

49

52
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

Number Description Page
Il Valuation and Qualifying Accounts and Reser- for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 10¢
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OWENS CORNING AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES FOR THE YEARS ENDED December 31, 201:
2011 AND 2010

(in millions)
Balance a
Charged tc Charged tc Acquisitions
Beginning Balance
Costs and Other and at End
of Period Expenses Accounts Deductions Divestitures of Period
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 201.
Allowance for
doubtful account $ 15 $ 3 $ — $ (1)(a) $ — $ 17
Tax valuation
allowance $ 187 $ 51 $ — $ (20 $ — $ 22t
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 201:
Allowance for
doubtful account $ 19 $ 3 $ — $ () $ — $ 15
Tax valuation
allowance $ 174 $ 7 $ — $ 6 $ — $ 187
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 201!
Allowance for
doubtful account $ 23 $ 1 $ — $ 4)(a) $ (1) $ 1¢
Tax valuation
allowance $ 1,11¢ $ (90¢€) $ 32 $ — $ — $ 174

(&) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoes:
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Exhibit
Number

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.4

4.€

4.8

4.1C

-110-
EXHIBIT INDEX

Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatincofporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Owensrihg’'s Current

Report on Form-K (File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

Amended and Restated Bylaws (incorporated by rateréo Exhibit 3.2 of Owens Corning’s Current Remor Form 8-K
(File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

Indenture, dated as of October 31, 2006, by anchgrmwens Corning, each of the guarantors namedithand LaSalle
Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorpatdmg reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Owens Corning’srént Report on
Form &K (File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of AprilZ()7, by and among Owens Corning, each of theagitians named
therein and LaSalle Bank National Association rastée (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.Oteens Corning’s
Current Report on Form-K (File No. 1-33100), filed April 13, 2007’

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Deceh2h@007, by and among Owens Corning, each oftlagantors
named therein and LaSalle Bank National Associatigrtrustee (incorporated by reference to ExHildito Owens
Cornin¢'s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20(

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April2808, by and among Owens Corning, each of theagtans named
therein and LaSalle Bank National Association rastée (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4. Oveens Corning’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. -33100) for the quarter ended June 30, 20

Series A Warrant Agreement, dated as of Octobe2@06, between Owens Corning and American Stochsfea & Trus
Company, as Warrant Agent (incorporated by refer¢adExhibit 10.3 to Owens Corning’s Post-Effectirmendment
No. 1 to Form -1 Registration Statement (File No. -136363), filed December 8, 2001

Series B Warrant Agreement, dated as of Octobe2@®16, between Owens Corning and American Stocksfea & Trus!
Company, as Warrant Agent (incorporated by refexe¢adExhibit 10.4 to Owens Corning’s Post-Effectiraendment
No. 1 to Form -1 Registration Statement (File No. -136363), filed December 8, 2001

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of JuUBODG, and the First Amendment thereto, dated &ctdber 27, 2006
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 of Ow@usning’'s Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 to Forrk Begistration
Statement (File No. 3-136363), filed December 8, 200!

Indenture, dated as of June 2, 2009, between O@ernsng, certain of Owens Corning’s subsidiaried ®ells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as trustee (incorpatdtg reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Owens CornBegistration Stateme
on Form &3 (File No. 33-159689), filed June 3, 200¢

Supplemental Indenture, dated June 8, 2009, bet@aems Corning, the guarantors named therein ants\Wargo Bank
National Association, as trustee (incorporateddfgrence to Exhibit 4.1 to Owens Corr’s Current Report on Form 8-K
(File No. 1-33100), filed June 8, 200¢

Form of 9.000% Senior Notes due 2019 (incorporhtereference to Exhibit 4.2 to Owens Corning’s @atrReport on
Form &K (File No. 1-33100), filed June 8, 200¢
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411

4.1z

10.1

10.2

10.2

10.4

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.11

10.1zZ

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢
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Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of MayQ@&0, by and among Owens Corning, certain subgdiaand Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as successor Trustem(porated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Owenm®g’s Current Report
on Form &K (File No. 1-33100), filed May 28, 2010

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Mag@H), by and among Owens Corning, certain subsgdiaand Wells Fargo
Bank, National Association, as Trustee (incorpatdig reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Owens Corning’srént Report on Form 8-
K (File No. 1-33100), filed May 28, 2010

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 26, 2010, byaandng Owens Corning, certain of its subsidiaries |énders signatory
thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, National AssociatamAdministrative Agent (incorporated by referete&xhibit 10.1 to
Owens Cornin’s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 1-33100), filed May 28, 2010

First amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as atMa4, 2011 (incorporated by reference to ExhibiRlto Owens
Corninc’'s Current Report on Form -K (File 1-33100), filed February 15, 201:

Second amendment to Credit Agreement, dated ady?®Jd, 2011 (incorporated by reference to Exhilfitl to Owens
Corninc’'s Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 1-33100), Filed July 29, 2011

Amended and Restated Receivables Purchase Agreedatedtas of December 16, 2011 (incorporated leyeate to Exhibit
10.1 to Owens Cornir's Current Report on Forn-K (File No. 1-33100), filed December 19, 201.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated as of March031, #etween Owens Corning Sales, LLC and Owensi@pfReceivables
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 tawéhs Corning’s Current Report on Form 8-K (File NeB3100), filed
April 5, 2011).

Performance Guaranty dated as of March 31, 20tbi(orated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Owenm@g’'s Current
Report on Form-K (File No. 1-33100), filed April 5, 2011)

Key Management Severance Agreement with Charl&aBa (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18%ens Corning’s
annual report on Form -K (File No. 1-33100) for the year ended December 31, 20(

Agreement with Charles E. Dana (incorporated bgrexfce to Exhibit 10 to Owens Corning Sales, LLAhsiual Report on
Form 1(-K (File No. 1-3660) for the year ended December 31, 20C

Amended and restated Key Management Severance rhgrgavith Michael H. Thaman (incorporated by refieeto Exhibit
10 to Owens Corning Sales, L’s Annual Report on Form -K (File No. 1-3660) for the year ended December 31, 20C

Form of Directors’ Indemnification Agreement (inporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Owens Qugtsi Current Report
on Form &K (File No. 1-33100), filed November 2, 200¢

Owens Corning Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorpadaig reference to Exhibit 10 to Owens Corning Sadle€’s Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q (File No. -3660) for the quarter ended June 30, 200

Owens Corning Executive Supplemental Benefit P2809 Restatement (incorporated by reference toliitxt.28 to Owens
Corninc’'s annual report on Form -K (File No. 1-33100) for the year ended December 31, 20(

Corporate Incentive Plan Terms Applicable to Cartaecutive Officers (incorporated by referenc&xhibit 10 to Owens
Corning Sales, LL's Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. -3660) for the quarter ended March 31, 199
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Owens Corning Supplemental Executive Retirement,Rla amended and restated, effective as of Jatuag09
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Osv@wrning’s annual report on Form 10-K (File Na33t00) for the year
ended December 31, 2008

Corporate Incentive Plan Terms Applicable to Keydtoyees Other Than Certain Executive Officers (fpooated by
reference to Exhibit 10 to Owens Corning Sales, sL@Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (File No. 1-366d))the quarter
ended June 30, 1999

Owens Corning Deferred Compensation Plan, effeetssef January 1, 2007 (incorporated by referem&exhibit 10.5 to
Owens Cornin’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q (File No. -33100) for the quarter ended March 31, 200

First Amendment to the Owens Corning Deferred Campton Plan, effective as of January 1, 2009 (pmated by
reference to Exhibit 10.33 to Owens Corning’s ahnejort on Form 10-K (File No. 1-33100) for theayended
December 31, 2008)

Owens Corning 2010 Stock Plan (incorporated byregiee to Exhibit 10.1 to Owens Corning’s Currenp&¢€on Form 8-K
(File No. 1-33100), filed April 23, 2010).

Ethics Policy for Chief Executive and Senior FinahOfficers (filed herewith)

Subsidiaries of Owens Corning (filed herewit

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (filed hahgw

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantExchange Act Rules 1-14(a) and 15-14(a) (filed herewith)
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuawot Exchange Act Rules 1-14(a) and 15-14(a) (filed herewith)
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed herewit

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350 (filed herewit

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkba

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkba

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkb.

* Denotes management contract or compensatory plarramgement required to be filed as an exhibisyamt to Form 1-K.

Owens Corning agrees to furnish to the SecuritiesExchange Commission, upon request, copies afstluments defining the rights of
holders of longerm debt of Owens Corning where the total amo@iseourities authorized under each issue doesxtete ten percent of t
total assets of Owens Corning and its subsidianea consolidated basis.



Exhibit 14.1

ETHICS POLICY
FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND SENIOR FINANCIAL OFFICERS

The Company is committed to conducting its busimesscordance with applicable laws, rules and letgns and standards of business
conduct, and to full and accurate financial disetesn compliance with applicable law. This Poliapplicable to the Company’s Chief
Executive Officer, and Chief Financial Officer, aBdrporate Controller (together, “Senior Officerssgts forth specific policies to guide you
in the performance of your duties.

As a Senior Officer, you must not only comply wépplicable law. You also must engage in and prorotest and ethical conduct.
Compliance With Laws, Rules And Regulations

You are required to comply with the laws, rules aggllations that govern the conduct of our busraesl to report any suspected violations
to Legal or Corporate Audit Services or to any mendf the Business Conduct Council. The Company migintains a confidential reportil
system, the Business Council Helpline, at 1-800-2889 or, for calls outside the United States, 286-4741.

Conflicts Of Interest

No Senior Officer shall make any investment, aceaptposition or benefits, participate in any tegt®n or business arrangement
otherwise act in a manner, that creates or appe&reate a conflict of interest unless the Se@ificer makes full disclosure of the facts and
circumstances to, and obtains the prior writterraypgl of, the Governance and Nominating Committen® Board of Directors.

Disclosures

It is Company policy to make full, fair, accuratieyely and understandable disclosure, in compliamitie all applicable laws and regulations,
in all reports and documents that the Company fili¢s, or submits or furnishes to, the Securitind &xchange Commission and in all other
public communications made by the Company.

Compliance With Ethics Policy

If you know of or suspect a violation of this Pgligou must immediately report that informatioratoy member of the Governance and
Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors. Yaill not be subject to retaliation because of adjaith report of a suspected violatit

Violations of this Policy may result in disciplinaaction, up to and including discharge. The Goaaoe and Nominating Committee of the
Board of Directors shall determine, or shall deatgrappropriate persons to determine, approprai®nain response to violations of this
Policy.

Waivers Of Ethics Policy

If you would like to seek a waiver of this Poligggu must make full disclosure of your particulaccamstances to the Governance and
Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors. Ardeents to and waivers of this Policy will be palylidisclosed as required |
applicable law and regulations.

No Rights Created

This Ethics Policy is a statement of certain fundatal principles, policies and procedures that gotlege Company’s Senior Officers in the
conduct of the Company’s business. It is not inéehth and does not create any rights in any emplayestomer/client, supplier, competitor,
shareholder or any other person or entity.



Subsidiaries of Owens Corning (12/31/1:2

CDC Corporatior

Crown Mfg. Inc.

Dutch OC Cooperatief Invest U.,
Engineered Pipe Systems, i

EPS Holding A<

Eric Company

European Owens Corning Fiberglas SF
FiberTEK Insulation, LLC

FiberTEK Insulation West, LL(

Instalaciones Especializadas en Confort TermoamugtAmpliacion, S.

de R.L.de C.V
IP Owens Corning I, S. de R.L. de C
IPM Inc.
Modulo SAS
Norske EPS BOT A
Northern Elastomeric, In
OC Canada Finance In
OC Canada Holdings Compa
OC Canada Holdings General Partner:
OC Celfortec Compan
OC Latin American Holdings Gmb
OC NL Invest Cooperatief U./
OC PRO CV
OCCV1, Inc.
OCCV2, LLC
OCV (Thailand) Company Limite
OCV Chambéry Franc
OCV Chambéry Internation.
OCV Composites (China) Co., Lt
OCV Czech Sr
OCV Distribution ANZ Pt-Limited
OCV Fabrics (Changzhou) Co., LI
OCV Fabrics UK Ltd
OCV Finance, LLC
OCV Holdings Belgium Spi
OCV Intellectual Capital, LLC
OCYV ltalia Srl
OCV Mexico S. de R.L. de C.\
OCV Reinforcements (Beijing) Co., Lt

OCV Reinforcements (Hangzhou) Co., L

OCV Reinforcements Alcala Spain, S
OCV Revetex Sr

OCYV Servicios Mexico, S.A. de C.
OCYV Steklovolokno OAC

Owens Corning (China) Investment Company, |
Owens Corning (Guangzhou) Fiberglas Co.,

Owens Corning (Japan) Co., L

State or Other
Jurisdiction
Under the Laws of

Which Organized

Wisconsin
Ontario

The Netherland
Delaware
Norway
Delaware
Belgium

Florida

Utah

Mexico

Mexico
Delaware
France

Norway

New Hampshire
Canad:e

Nova Scotic
Delaware

Nova Scotie
Austria

The Netherland
The Netherland
Delaware
Delaware
Thailand
France

France

China

Czech Republi
Australia
China

United Kingdom
Delaware
Belgium
Delaware

Italy

Mexico

China

China

Spain

Italy

Mexico

Russia

China

China

Japar
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Owens Corning (Nanjing) Building Materials Co., L
Owen-Corning (Shanghai) Fiberglas Co., L
Owens Corning (Shanghai) Trading Co., L

Owens Corning (Singapore) Pte |

Owens Corning (Tianjin) Building Materials Co., L
Owens Corning (> an) Building Materials Co., Ltc
Owens Corning Alloy Canada GP Ir

Owens Corning Alloy Canada L

Owens Corning Argentina Sociedad de Responsabilidaidada

Owens Corning (Australia) Pty Limite

Owens Corning Automotive (UK) Lt

Owens Corning BM (Korea), Lt
Owen-Corning Britinvest Limitec

Owens Corning Building Materials Romania S
Owens Corning Canada GP li

Owens Corning Canada Holdings B

Owens Corning Canada l

Owens Corning Cayman (China) Holdir
Owen-Corning Cayman Limite:

Owens Corning Celfortec Canada GP |
Owens Corning Celfortec L

Owens Corning Composite Materials, LI
Owens Corning Composite Materials Canada GP
Owens Corning Composite Materials Canade
Owens Corning Construction Services, L
Owens Corning Elaminator Insulation Systems, L
Owens Corning Enterprise (India) Pvt. L
Owens Corning Fabwel, LL

Owens Corning Fiberglas A.S. Limita

Owens Corning Fiberglas S.R.

Owen«-Corning Fiberglas Deutschland Gm!
Owens Corning Fiberglas Espana,

Owens Corning Fiberglas Fran
Owen-Corning Fiberglas (U.K.) Pension Plan L
Owens Corning Financial Services Ul

Owens Corning Foam Insulation, LL

Owens Corning Franchising, LL
Owen-Corning Funding Corporatic

Owens Corning Holdings 1 C

Owens Corning Holdings 3 C

Owens Corning Holdings 4 C

Owens Corning Holdings 5 C

Owens Corning Holdings Holland B.'

Owens Corning HOMEXxperts, In

Owens Corning Hong Kong Limite

Owens Corning HT, Inc

Owens-Corning (India) Private Limite

Owens Corning Industries (India) Private Limir
Owens Corning Insulating Systems, LI

Owens Corning Insulating Systems Canada GF
Owens Corning Insulating Systems Canadz
Owens Corning Intellectual Capital, LL
Owens Corning International Holdings C.

China

China

China
Singapore
China

China

Canad:e
Manitoba
Argentina
Australia
United Kingdom
Korea

United Kingdom
Romania
Canadse

The Netherland
Manitoba
Cayman Island
Cayman Island
Canade
Manitoba
Delaware

Nova Scotic
Manitoba
Delaware
Delaware

India

Delaware
Brazil

Uruguay
Germany

Spain

France

United Kingdom
Nova Scotie
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

The Netherland
The Netherland
The Netherland
The Netherland
The Netherland
Delaware

Hong Kong
Delaware

India

India

Delaware
Canade
Manitoba
Delaware

The Netherland



Owens Corning Kohold B.\

Owens Corning Kore

Owens Corning Mexico, S. de R.L. de C
Owens Corning Nc-Woven Technology, LL(
Owens Corning Receivables LL

Owens Corning Remodeling Canada GP
Owens Corning Remodeling Canada
Owens Corning Remodeling Systems, L
Owens Corning Roofing and Asphalt, L1
Owens Corning Sales, LL

Owens Corning Science and Technology, L
Owens Corning Sunrooms Franchising, L
Owen-Corning Sweden Al

Owens Corning Technical Fabrics, LI
Owens Corning US Holdings, LL
Owen-Corning Veil Netherlands B.\
Owen-Corning Veil U.K. Ltd.

Soltech, Inc

Tecnologia Owens Corning I, S. de R.L. de C

The Netherland
Korea

Mexico
Delaware
Delaware
Canadse
Manitoba
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Sweder
Delaware
Delaware

The Netherland
United Kingdom
Kentucky
Mexico



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Forms S-3 a8d$es. 333-179542, 333-165008, 333-
166347, 333-150770, 333-150771, 333-150772 andl38392) of Owens Corning of our report dated Felyr@f, 2013 relating to the

financial statements, financial statement schedntkthe effectiveness of internal control overfiitial reporting which appears in this Form
10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers L
Toledo, Ohio
February 20, 201



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

[, Michael H. Thaman, certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Owens Corning

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 20, 2013

/s/ Michael H. Thama

Michael H. Thaman
Chief Executive Office



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION

I, Michael C. McMurray certify that:

1.
2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Forr-K of Owens Corning

Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dondttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememig,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgdtfe periods presented in this rep

The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainirsgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13z15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(&) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoifee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatheg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be designed uni
our supervision, to provide reasonable assuramgading the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentgilsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andguiures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; an

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiorernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: February 20, 2013

/sl Michael C. McMurray

Michael C. McMurray
Chief Financial Office



Exhibit 32.1

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Owens Cognfthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal yesded December 31, 2012 (the
“Report”), I, Michael H. Thaman, certify, pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantttidh 906 of the Sarban€<ley Act of
2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) Information contained in the Report fairly peess, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the

Company.

/s/ Michael H. Thama
Michael H. Thaman
Chief Executive Office

February 20, 2013



Exhibit 32.2

SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Annual Report of Owens Cognfthe “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal yesded December 31, 2012 (the
“Report”), I, Michael C. McMurray, certify, pursuito 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursua®éttion 906 of the Sarban@xdey Act
of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) Information contained in the Report fairly peess, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results of operations of the

Company.

/sl Michael C. McMurray
Michael C. McMurray
Chief Financial Office

February 20, 201



